
1 
 

 
CITY OF OWOSSO 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY, APRIL 1, 2024 

7:30 P.M. 
 

Meeting to be held at City Hall 
301 West Main Street 

 
AGENDA 

 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 
PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

 
1. Parkinson's Awareness Month Proclamation.   A proclamation of the Mayor's Office declaring the 

month of April 2024 as Parkinson's Awareness Month in the City of Owosso. 
 

2. Promotional Ceremony – Fire Department Employees.  A ceremony recognizing the promotions of 
Captain Brian Matthies and Lieutenant Don Lound. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Public Hearing - Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 344 West Main Street.  

Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen comment regarding the application from Curwood Place 
LLC for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for the property located at 344 
West Main Street. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:   1.19, 3.20, 5.13 
 

2. Public Hearing – Proposed Brownfield Plan #23.  Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen 
comment regarding the proposed Brownfield Redevelopment Plan #23 – Woodland 
Trails/Washington Park Redevelopment Project.   
Master Plan Goals:  1.2, 1.4, 1.9, 1.25, 2.12, 3.1, 5.11, 7.1, 7.4 

 

ATTENTION:  A 30-MINUTE COUNCIL DISCUSSION PERIOD WILL BE HELD IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO 
THIS REGULAR MEETING.  THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND. 

 



2 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Set Public Hearing - Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 300 West Main Street.  

Set a public hearing for Monday, April 15, 2024 to receive citizen comment regarding the application 
from Shook Riverside Development LLC for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption 
Certificate for the property located at 300 West Main Street. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:   1.19, 3.20, 5.13 
 

2. MDOT Local Street Inventory – Decertification of Division Street at Railroad Right-of-Way.  Approve 
decertification/vacation of Division Street within the railroad right-of-way between Monroe Street and 
Corunna Avenue to update the local street inventory according under Public Act 51 of 1951. 

 
3. MI-HOPE Grant – Additional Funds Acceptance.  Accept additional awarded funds in the amount of 

$160,000 for Michigan Housing Opportunities Promoting Energy Efficiency Grant # ARP-2023-37-
MIH (MI-HOPE) to complete home improvement projects for an additional eleven selected residential 
homes in accordance with the MI-HOPE Grant Program Guidelines. 

 Master Plan Implementation Goals: 1.14, 6.6 
 
4. Bid Award – MI-HOPE Grant Project.  Authorize contract with Merkel & Kenney, Inc. for the MI-HOPE 

Grant Project in the amount of $192,341.00 to complete home improvement projects for eleven 
selected residential homes and further authorize payment to the contractor upon satisfactory 
completion of the work or portion thereof in accordance with the Program Guidelines. 

 Master Plan Implementation Goals: 1.14, 6.6 
 
5. Professional Services Agreement – CIS James Miner Connection Project – Engineering Services. 

Approve Addendum No. 2024-01 to the Professional Engineering Services agreement with Fleis & 
Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. for engineering and construction administration services related to the 
CIS James Miner Connection Project in an amount not to exceed $577,000.00 and authorize 
payment up to the contract amount as terms of the contract are fulfilled. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.4, 3.7, 5.3, 5.27, 6.6 
 

6. Contract Authorization – Ambulance Services to Rush Township. Authorize agreement with Rush 
Township to provide ambulance service coverage on their behalf with a charge to the Township in the 
amount of $40,307.50 annually plus charges for services provided.  
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.1, 3.2, 7.1 

 
7. Bid Award – Woodland Trails Sanitary Sewer Repair Project. Authorize contract with Apex Excavating 

& Underground, LLC for the Woodland Trails Sanitary Sewer Repair Project in the amount of 
$72,805.00 plus a contingency in the amount of $10,000.00 upon prior authorization, and further 
authorize payment to the contractor upon satisfactory completion of the work or portion thereof, 
contingent upon approval of related Brownfield Plan #23 and Woodland Trails Development 
Agreement. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 1.4, 3.4 
 

8. Bid Award – 2024 Streetlight Project – Materials Purchase. Approve bid award to Spring City 
Electrical Mfg Co. of Spring City, Pennsylvania for the purchase of 26 Regency Lamp posts and LED 
Luminaires in the amount of $115,518.00 and further authorize payment to the vendor upon 
satisfactory delivery of product. 

 Master Plan Implementation Goals: 1.9, 2.9, 3.4, 3.10, 4.5, 5.12 
 
 
 



3 
 

9. Bid Award – 2024 Streetlight Project – Installation. Approve bid award to J. Ranck Electric, Inc. for the 
2024 Street Light Project installation in the amount of $504,191.25 plus a contingency in the amount 
of $10,000.00 and further authorize payment to the contractor up to $514,191.25 upon satisfactory 
completion of project or portion thereof.  

 Master Plan Implementation Goals: 1.9, 2.9, 3.4, 3.10, 4.5, 5.12 
 
10. Purchase Authorization – John Deere 325G Compact Track Loader. Waive competitive bidding 

requirements, authorize purchase of one John Deere 325G Compact Track Loader from A I S 
Construction Equipment Corporation in the amount of $115,464.11 utilizing the Sourcewell Program 
ULNV0020, and further authorize payment to the vendor upon satisfactory delivery of equipment. 

 
11. Purchase Authorization - Ferric Chloride.  Authorize a purchase agreement with PVS Technologies,   

Inc. for Ferric Chloride utilizing the Lansing Board of Water & Light's joint purchasing consortium  
Competitive Bidding Program in the amount of $1,168.00 per dry ton, with an estimated annual 
contract of $99,864.00, and authorize payment based on unit prices for actual quantities required for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.4 

 
12. Purchase Authorization - Sodium Hypochlorite.  Authorize a purchase agreement with JCI Jones 

Chemicals, Inc. for Sodium Hypochlorite utilizing the Lansing Board of Water & Light's joint   
purchasing consortium Competitive Bidding Program in the amount of $1.81 per gallon, with an 
estimated annual contract of $97,740.00 and authorize payment based on unit prices for actual 
quantities required for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025.   
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.4 

 
13. Purchase Authorization - Bulk Lime. Authorize a purchase agreement with Graymont Western Lime 

Inc. for the purchase of bulk lime for the Filtration Plant and Wastewater Plant, utilizing the Lansing 
Board of Water & Light's joint purchasing consortium Competitive Bidding Program in the amount of 
$189.00 per dry ton, with an estimated annual contract of $158,760.00 and authorize payment based 
on unit prices for actual quantities required for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.4 

 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

 
1. Blight Grant Agreement – 117 West Exchange Street. Consider approval of the Blight Grant 

Agreement in conjunction with the Shiawassee County Land Bank to secure partial funding for clean 
up of the collapsed building at 117 West Exchange Street if approved for grant assistance. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  1.12, 1.19, 2.6, 3.1, 3.2, 4.3, 4.7, 7.1, 7.4 
 

2. Woodland Trails Development Agreement. Consider approval of the Woodland Trails Development 
Agreement between The City of Owosso, Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority and Woodland 
Trails Condominium Association of Owosso to ensure reimbursement of funds for sewer repairs to 
remedy deficiencies and accept the system as public.  
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  1.2, 1.4, 3.1, 3.4, 7.1, 7.4 
 

3. Proposed Property Sale – Twenty-One Day Posting.  Authorize twenty-one (21) day posting period 
for the proposed sale of the city-owned Amos Gould House located at 515 North Washington Street 
in the amount of $360,000.00. 

 
4. Consumers Energy Electric Facilities Easement – Armory Parking Lot.  Consider approval of a 

permanent easement through City-owned parcel 050-470-000-001-00 (Armory Parking Lot) for the 
construction, operation and maintenance of new electric facilities to service the property at 300 West 
Main Street. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.4 

 



4 
 

5. Parks and Recreation Millage Request. Consider resolution authorizing placement of a millage 
request for Parks and Recreation on the ballot for the August 6, 2024 Primary Election. 
 

6. Unpaid Utility Charges.  Authorize the Annual Notice for the collection of unpaid utility charges and 
the intent to lien therefore in compliance with Chapter 15, Section 15.4(c) of the Owosso City Charter. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 
None. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, April 15, 2024 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2024 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2025 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2024 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2025 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing 
impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at 
the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with disabilities requiring 
auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing the following:  Owosso City 
Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. 
The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  

http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/


PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT THE FOLLOWING MEETING  
CAN ONLY BE VIEWED VIRTUALLY 

 
The Owosso City Council will conduct an in-person meeting on April 1, 2024.  Citizens may view and listen to 
the meeting using the following link and phone numbers.   

 
OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, April 1, 2024 
at 7:30 p.m. 

 
The public joining the meeting via Zoom CANNOT participate in public comment. 

 
• Join Zoom Meeting:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84926434289?pwd=eUZvWFg4TW0wdGJqRDV4dW1wYjAzZz09 
 

• Meeting ID:  849 2643 4289 
• Password:  324182 

• One tap mobile 
 

 +13052241968,,84926434289#,,,,*324182# US 
 +13092053325,,84926434289#,,,,*324182# US 
 
Dial by your location 

 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
• For video instructions visit: 

 
o Signing up and Downloading Zoom https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8 
o Joining a Zoom Meeting https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ 
o Joining and Configuring Audio and Video https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY 

 
• Helpful notes for participants:    Helpful Hints 

• Meeting packets are published on the City of Owosso website  http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us 

Any person who wishes to contact members of the City Council to provide input or ask questions on any 
business coming before the Council on April 1, 2024 may do so by calling or e-mailing the City Clerk’s Office 
prior to the meeting at (989)725-0500 or city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. Contact information for individual Council 
members can be found on the City website at: http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council  

The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with 
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with 
disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing 
the following:  Owosso City Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; 
Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84926434289?pwd=eUZvWFg4TW0wdGJqRDV4dW1wYjAzZz09
https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8
https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ
https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Portals/0/Files/Documents/CouncilVirtualMeetingNotice-HelpfulHints.pdf
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council
file://coo-dc1/users$/AKKirkland/Documents/PublicNotices/city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/


Draft 1 03-18-2024 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF MARCH 18, 2024        
7:30 P.M. 

VIRGINIA TEICH CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR ROBERT J. TEICH, JR. 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  PASTOR BILL MOULL 
    OWOSSO FREE METHODIST CHURCH 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: JUSTIN HORVATH, SEDP PRESIDENT 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem Susan J. Osika, 

Councilmembers Janae L. Fear, Jerome C. Haber, Daniel A. Law, Emily 
S. Olson, and Nicholas L. Pidek. 

 
ABSENT: None. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika to approve the agenda with the removal of Item of Business #2 Blight 
Grant Agreement. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Haber and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 4, 2024 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 4, 2024 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Pidek and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Kim White, Director of the Shiawassee District Library, said there is a free event at the Lebowsky Center 
on Saturday, April 13, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. to hear the author of “Firekeeper’s Daughter.” 
 
Tom Manke, 2910 W. M-21, said the book is great.  He asked why the City went with an out-of-town 
realtor.  He said it was a shame because he thought the City had a program if you have a business in 
Owosso you can get paid up to 10% more.   
 



Draft 2 03-18-2024 

Justin Horvath, SEDP president, said the SEDP supports Item #1 on the consent agenda for 344 W. Main 
Street and Item #2 for the Brownfield plan for new housing development for Woodland Trails and 
Washington Park. 
 
Jane Ferraro, 302 W. Oliver Street, asked the council to vote against the zoning ordinance in regard to 
residential districts. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Osika stated the Shamrock Shuffle was a success and thanked the volunteers. 
 
Mayor Teich announced the Owosso Chocolate Walk on April 20, 2024 from 1:00 to 4:00 p.m.  Check in 
is at Gilbert’s Hardware and tickets are $10. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pidek to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
 
Set Public Hearing - Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 344 West Main 
Street.  Set a public hearing for Monday, April 1, 2024 to receive citizen comment regarding the 
application from Curwood Place LLC for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for the 
property located at 344 West Main Street as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 28-2024 
 

SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER APPLICATION FOR  
AN OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE  

FOR THE PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS 344 W. MAIN STREET 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso received application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption 
Certificate on February 23, 2024 from Curwood Place LLC; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso approved a request to establish an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation 
District on September 6, 2016 for the property described as:  
 
LOTS 10 THRU 15 & W 132' LOT 8 & W 132' OF S 18' LOT 7 BLK 6 LUCY L COMSTOCKS ADD, INCL W 
132' CLSD ALLEY; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing must be held and it must be determined that approval of the Obsolete 
Property Rehabilitation Certificate would be beneficial to the City of Owosso, as well as local and regional 
economy. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 

 
FIRST: the Owosso City Council sets a public hearing for Monday, April 1, 2024 at or about 7:30 

p.m. in the council chambers for the purpose of hearing comments for those within the 
district, and any other resident or taxpayer, of the City of Owosso. 

 
SECOND: the City Clerk gives the notifications as required by law. 
 
THIRD: the city staff is directed to investigate and determine if the qualifications of the act are 

satisfied and report said findings at the hearing. 
 

Master Plan Implementation Goals:   1.19, 3.20, 5.13 
 



Draft 3 03-18-2024 

 
Set Public Hearing – Proposed Brownfield Plan #23.  Set a public hearing for Monday, April 1, 2024 to 
receive citizen comment regarding the proposed Brownfield Redevelopment Plan #23 – Woodland 
Trails/Washington Park Redevelopment Project as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 29-2024 
 

SCHEDULING A PUBLIC HEARING FOR ADOPTION OF  
BROWNFIELD PLAN #23 – WOODLAND TRAILS/WASHINGTON PARK 

REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT PURSUANT TO AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
PROVISIONS OF ACT 381 OF THE PUBLIC ACTS  

OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN OF 1996, AS AMENDED 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Brownfield Authority recommended 
approval of Brownfield Plan #23 – Woodland Trails/Washington Park Redevelopment Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Public Act 381 of 1996, as amended, requires a public hearing before approval by the 
governing body. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: a public hearing is called for April 1, 2024 at or about 7:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council 
Chambers for the purpose of hearing comments from those interested in the project and 
brownfield plan. 

 
SECOND: the City Clerk gives the notifications required by Public Act 381. 
 
THIRD: City staff is directed to investigate and determine if the qualifications of the act are 

satisfied and report findings at the hearing. 
 

Master Plan Implementation Goals: 1.2, 1.4, 5.11 
 
 
Traffic Control Order - The Shi-Tri 2024.  Approve request from Fitness Coliseum and the Friends of 
the Shiawassee River for use of Lot #10 on May 18, 2024 from 12:00pm through May 19, 2024 at 2:00pm 
and various streets on Sunday, May 19, 2024 from 8:00am through 11:30am for The Shi-Tri and further 
approve Traffic Control Order No. 1511 formalizing the action. 

 
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 1.17, 4.2, 4.6, 5.9, 5.12 
 
 

*MSHDA NEP Grant – Grant Agreement Approval.  Approve and accept the terms and conditions of 
MSHDA Neighborhood Enhancement Program (NEP) Grant, Grant # HDF-2024-37-NEP in the amount of 
$75,000, designate authorized signatories for said grant, and authorize implementation of the grant 
according to the Program Guidelines as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 30-2024 
 

APPROVING A NEIGHBORHOOD ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM  
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FUND GRANT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 
THE MICHIGAN STATE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (MSHDA) 

 



Draft 4 03-18-2024 

WHEREAS, the Michigan State Housing Development Authority Neighborhood Enhancement Program 
(NEP) is designed to improve the livability and aesthetic of homes in economically disadvantaged 
neighborhoods through the funding of exterior improvements to homes/property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso applied for and received an NEP Grant totaling $75,000 to assist willing 
property owners in funding exterior improvements to their homes, such as roof replacement, windows and 
siding; and 
 
WHEREAS, the beneficiaries of this grant will include residents of the community with qualified incomes as 
determined by the application process defined in the Program Guidelines; and 
 
WHEREAS, the residential homes that qualify will be determined by the application process as defined in 
the program guidelines; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso will not be required to match any grant dollars, but will serve to administer 
the grant, be a pass-through entity for grant funds, and abide by the terms and conditions set forth in the 
grant agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council and the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to  
 enter into the Housing Development Fund Grant Agreement, Grant # HDF-2024-37-NEP,      

between the Michigan State Housing Development Authority and the City of Owosso dated 
March 4, 2024. 

 
SECOND: Planning & Building Director Tanya S. Buckelew and City Manager Nathan R. Henne are 

designated as Authorized Signers for said grant with the authority to sign the associated 
grant agreement, submit payment requests and request grant amendments. 

 
THIRD: Planning & Building Director Tanya S. Buckelew is recognized as the MSHDA appointed 

Grant Administrator for said grant and is authorized to administer the projects named to 
completion in accordance with the Program Guidelines. 

 
 Master Plan Implementation Goals: 1.14, 6.6 
 
 

*Contract Authorization – Ambulance Services to Fairfield Township.  Authorize agreement with 
Fairfield Township to provide ambulance service coverage on their behalf with a charge to the Township 
in the amount of $14,000.00 annually plus charges for services provided as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 31-2024 
 

AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE AMBULANCE 
SERVICES BETWEEN CITY OF OWOSSO AND FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Public Safety Department and Fairfield 
Township desire to enter into an agreement to have Owosso provide ambulance coverage to Fairfield 
Township, Shiawassee County Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, City of Owosso operates a Fire Department which has the ability to provide ambulance 
service to Fairfield Township. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 

 



Draft 5 03-18-2024 

FIRST: the City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to enter into an agreement to provide ambulance services to Fairfield 
Township for an annual fee as outlined in Agreement for Ambulance Services with 
Fairfield Township/City of Owosso.  

 
SECOND: the mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Agreement for Ambulance Services with Fairfield Township/City of 
Owosso. 

 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.1, 3.2, 7.1 
 
 

*Contract Authorization – Ambulance Services to Middlebury Township. Authorize agreement with 
Middlebury Township to provide ambulance service coverage on their behalf with a charge to the 
Township in the amount of $37,591.33 annually plus charges for services provided as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 32-2024 
 

AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE AMBULANCE 
SERVICES BETWEEN CITY OF OWOSSO AND MIDDLEBURY TOWNSHIP 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Public Safety Department and 
Middlebury Township desire to enter into an agreement to have Owosso provide ambulance coverage to 
Middlebury Township, Shiawassee County Michigan and; 
 
WHEREAS, City of Owosso operates a Fire Department which has the ability to provide ambulance 
service to Middlebury Township. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: the City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to enter into an agreement to provide ambulance services to Middlebury 
Township for an annual fee as outlined in Agreement for Ambulance Services with 
Middlebury Township/City of Owosso.  

 
SECOND: the mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Agreement for Ambulance Services with Middlebury Township/City 
of Owosso. 

 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  3.1, 3.2, 7.1 

 
 

*Bid Award – 2024 Bridge Projects.  Approve bid award to E.T. Mackenzie Company of Grand Ledge, 
Michigan for bridge rehabilitation on the Gould Street Bridge and the Oakwood Pedestrian Bridge in the 
amount of $274,893.95 with a $10,000 contingency and further approve payment to the contractor upon 
satisfactory completion of the project or portion thereof as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 33-2024 
  

AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF THE 2024 BRIDGE PROJECTS  
TO E.T. MACKENZIE COMPANY OF GRAND LEDGE, MICHIGAN  

  
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined the Gould Street bridge 
requires compression seal replacement, concrete patching, sidewalk sealing, and epoxy patching and the 



Draft 6 03-18-2024 

Oakwood Pedestrian bridge requires deck board replacement, and that it is in the public’s best interest to 
complete these repairs; and 
  
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso sought bids for the rehabilitation of these bridges as part of the 2024 
Bridge Projects, and the low responsive bid was received from E.T. Mackenzie Company in the amount of 
$274,893.95; and 
 
WHEREAS, E.T. Mackenzie Company is hereby determined to be qualified to provide such services. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: the City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public’s best interest to employ E.T. Mackenzie Company to make repairs on the Gould 
Street bridge and the Oakwood Pedestrian bridge as part of the 2024 Bridge Projects. 

  
SECOND: the mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the necessary documents 

to execute the services contract with E.T. Mackenzie Company in the amount of 
$274,893.95. 

 
THIRD: the accounts payable department is authorized to pay E.T. Mackenzie Company for work 

satisfactorily completed on the project up to the initial contact amount of $274,893.95 
plus contingency in the amount of $10,000.00 with prior authorization for a total of 
$284,893.95. 

 
FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from Major Street fund account number 202-473-

818.000 ($133,001.75) and Parks fund account number 101-751-974.000 ($141,892.20), 
and other funds as appropriate. 

 
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.4, 3.22  
 
 

*Bid Award – 2024 Sewer Lining Project.  Approve bid award to Corby Energy Services, Inc. of 
Belleville, Michigan for sanitary and storm sewer living services in the amount of $141,902.00 with a 
$20,000 contingency and further approve payment to the contractor upon satisfactory completion of the 
project or portion thereof as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 34-2024 
  

AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF THE 2024 SEWER LINING PROJECT  
TO CORBY ENERGY SERVICES, INC. OF BELLEVILLE, MICHIGAN  

  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined segments of sanitary 
and storm sewers on various streets in the City have become deteriorated or damaged and that 
rehabilitation is advisable, necessary and in the public interest; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for the lining of these segments of sanitary and storm sewer 
as part of the 2024 Sewer Lining Project, and the low responsive and responsible bid was received from 
Corby Energy Services, Inc. in the amount of $141,902.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, Corby Energy Services, Inc. is hereby determined to be qualified to provide such services. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  



Draft 7 03-18-2024 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ Corby Energy Services, Inc. to line segments of deteriorated or 
damaged sanitary and storm sewer as part of the 2024 Sewer Lining Project. 

  
SECOND: the Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the necessary documents 

to execute the services contract with Corby Energy Services, Inc. in the amount of 
$141,902.00. 

 
THIRD: the accounts payable department is authorized to pay Corby Energy Services, Inc. for 

work satisfactorily completed on the project up to the initial contact amount of 
$141,902.00 plus contingency in the amount of $20,000.00 for a total of $161,902.00. 

 
FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from the Major and Local Street Maintenance Funds 

accounts 202-463-818.000 and 203-463-818.000 ($35,475.50 each) and Sewer Fund 
account 590-901-973.000-SEWERREHAB ($70,951.00). 

 
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.4 
 
 

Warrant No. 641.  Authorize Warrant No. 641 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 
Randy Smith 
304 Oakwood Avenue 

Reimbursement – Water service line 
replacement – leak at 221 North Ball St Water $10,642.00 

 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Haber, Olson, Fear, Pidek, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmember Law 

and Mayor Teich.  
 
NAYS: None. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 

*Ordinance Amendment - Zoning Ordinance Rewrite   
 
Mayor Teich stated the last ordinance was adopted in 1977, with many addendums overs the years.  He 
further went on to state the current ordinance allows for tri and quad plex’s, with Planning Commission 
approval.  The proposed ordinance allows them as a permitted use and any structure over 2,000 square 
feet would go in front of Planning Commission for approval, otherwise an Administrative Review would 
occur starting with the Building Department.  In the event of a proposed tri or quad plex, whether 
renovating an existing house or building new, the first question is – would the parking be sufficient.  
Setbacks being proposed would allow existing non-conforming to be in conformance.  The section 
regarding residential infill for existing neighborhoods was added to regulate the character of new infill 
housing and promote harmony in neighborhoods between new and existing housing units and suitable 
character in terms of site payout, building dimensions, architectural design and building materials. 
 
Council members asked questions for additional clarity on the proposed ordinance. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika to approve the proposal to repeal and replace Chapter 38, Zoning, of the 
Code of Ordinances with the correction to Article III. Zoning districts in General. Sec. 38-76. Historic 
overlay districts. (5) add The Oliver Street Historic District, The Westown Historic District, the Michigan 



Draft 8 03-18-2024 

Avenue Historic District and The Mason Street Historic District and move Chapter 26, Signs, within the 
new Zoning Ordinance, to update the City’s Zoning Ordinance and map as follows: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 844 
 

APPROVING AMENDMENT 
TO REPEAL AND REPLACE CHAPTER 38, ZONING, 

AND RELOCATE CHAPTER 26, SIGNS, WITHIN THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
WHEREAS, in an effort to attract economic development to the City of Owosso, City staff has been 
working toward the goal of obtaining Redevelopment Ready Communities certification; and 
 
WHEREAS, the next step in the process involved a comprehensive review of the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
to remove obsolete rules and procedures, streamline requirements, and regulate for the kind of 
development the community desires; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Planning Commission believes a 
complete re-write of Chapter 38, Zoning, including an updated Zoning Map, will better address the needs 
of the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held public hearings at their August 28, 2023 and November 27, 
2023 regularly scheduled meetings regarding the proposal to repeal and replace the Zoning Ordinance in 
which no citizen comments were voiced or received; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommends the repeal and replacement of Chapter 38, Zoning, in 
its entirety; and 
 
WHEREAS, they further recommend shifting the Sign Ordinance from Chapter 26, Signs, to an Article 
within the new Chapter 38, Zoning.  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on March 4, 2024, heard all interested persons, and 
deliberated on the proposed ordinance amendments. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.  REPEAL.  That Chapter 38, Zoning, including the Zoning Map, is hereby repealed in its 
entirety. 
 
SECTION 2.  REPLACEMENT.  That the new Chapter 38, Zoning, shall read as follows: 
 

INSERT TEXT OF NEW ZONING ORDINANCE HERE 
 

(Due to its length, at over 200 pages, full text of the new Zoning Ordinance will not be printed here.  
Please see the Record of Ordinances, Ordinance No. 844, in the City Clerk’s Office to view the text in its 

entirety.) 
  
SECTION 3.  RELOCATE.  That Chapter 26, Signs, shall be relocated to Article XX, Signs, of the new 
Chapter 38, Zoning, with no further changes. 
 
SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY.  The various sections and provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed to 
be severable, and should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid the same shall not affect the validity of this 
Ordinance as a whole or any section or provision of this Ordinance other than the section or provision so 
declared to be unconstitutional or invalid. 
 



Draft 9 03-18-2024 

SECTION 5.  INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with 
the provisions of this Ordinance are repealed. 
 
SECTION 7.  AVAILABILITY.  This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the City Clerk’s Office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 8.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This amendment shall become effective April 8, 2024. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Pidek, Haber, Law, Fear, Olson, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika and Mayor 

Teich.  
 
NAYS:  None. 
 

Master Plan Implementation Goals:  A.1, A.8, 1.22, 2.13, 4.9, 4.11, 4.13, 4.14, 4.15, 4.17, 5.6, 5.13,  
     5.15, 5.29 
 
 

Blight Grant Agreement –  (This item was removed from the agenda.) 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Parks and Recreation Commission. 2023 Annual Report. 
Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  February 2024 Building Department Report. 
Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  February 2024 Code Violations Report. 
Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  February 2024 Inspections Report. 
Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  February 2024 Certificates Issued Report. 
Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  February 2024 Police Report. 
Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  February 2024 Fire Report. 
Owosso Historical Commission. Minutes of February 27, 2024. 
Parks & Recreation Commission. Minutes of February 28, 2024. 
Downtown Development Authority. Minutes of March 6, 2024. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Tom Manke, 2910 W. M-21, talked about smaller homes and downsizing.  He asked if the commercial 
roofs are being inspected downtown.   
 
Cheryl Farver, 414 Adams Street, said she is disappointed in council. 
 
Mayor Teich said congratulations to Chief Lenkart for the work on the Fairfield and Middlebury Township 
ambulance services contracts. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, April 01, 2024 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2024 



Draft 10 03-18-2024 

Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2025 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2024 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2025 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika for adjournment at 8:29 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Tanya B. Buckelew, Recording Clerk 
 
 
 

*Due to their length, text of marked items is not included in the minutes.  Full text of these documents is on 
file in the Clerk's Office. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
  301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: March 6, 2024                  
 
TO: Mayor Robert Teich Jr, City Council, and Manager Nathan Henne   
 
FROM:   Michael Dowler, Assessor  
  
RE:  Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 344 W. Main Street 
 
The city clerk has received an application for tax abatement as required under the city’s 
abatement policy on February 23, 2024.  The request specifically asks for an Obsolete 
Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (OPRA Certificate). 
 
Tonight, the Council will hold a public hearing and potentially take action on said OPRA 
tax abatement application.  The project is valued at approximately $2,818,000.  
 
The OPRA abatement, governed by Public Act 146 of 2000, is a tax abatement which 
freezes the existing taxable value on a designated facility prior to rehabilitation for a period 
of up to 12 years.  The rehabilitated facility value will not be fully taxable until the 
abatement is no longer in place.  The proposed project will renovate the 2-story 18,564 
square foot building with nine remodeled apartment residences, a new business 
incubator, and outdoor public space. This will increase downtown private residence 
availability. The estimated cost for this redevelopment is $2,818,000. This exemption 
meets the requirements of the city’s tax abatement policy and can be granted for 8 years.  
 
The council approved an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District for this property on 
September 6, 2016.   
 
The city clerk has notified all taxing jurisdictions as required by the statute and the city’s 
tax abatement policy. 
 
MASTER PLAN GOALS:  1.19, 3.20, 5.13 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

TO APPROVE THE APPLICATION FOR AN 
OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

FROM CURWOOD PLACE LLC 
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT  

344 W MAIN ST 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso is a Qualified Local Government Unit within the State of Michigan and is 
empowered to provide tax exemptions for increased value of rehabilitated facilities within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, after public notice and a public hearing on February 6, 2016, the City Council of the City of 
Owosso approved an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District at 344 W. Main Street in Owosso, Michigan.  
As provided by section 4(2) of Public Act 146 of 2000, said property more particularly described as: 
 

LOTS 10 THRU 15 & W 132' LOT 8 & W 132' OF S 18' LOT 7 BLK 6 LUCY L COMSTOCKS ADD, 
INCL W 132' CLSD ALLEY 

 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk received an application, on February 23, 2024 from Curwood Place LLC, for 
an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for the renovation of the 2 story 18,564 square 
foot building with 9 renovated apartments; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the application is complete, including items (a) through (f) described under “Instructions” on 
the Application for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing concerning the application for an exemption certificate was 
provided to the Assessor of the City and the legislative body of each taxing unit that levies ad valorem 
property taxes in the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City finds that the property meets the definition of an obsolete property as defined in 
section 2(h) of Public Act 146 of 2000 and the application for the exemption certificate is complete; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City finds that the property relates to a rehabilitation program that when completed 
constitutes a “rehabilitated facility” within the meaning of P.A. 146 of 2000, and said property is located 
within an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District established in a Qualified Local Governmental Unit 
eligible under Public Act 146 of 2000 to establish such a district; and  
 
WHEREAS, the rehabilitation includes improvements aggregating 10% or more of the true cash value of 
the property at commencement of the rehabilitation as provided by section 2(l) of PA 146 of 2000; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been found that the rehabilitation of the obsolete property is calculated to, and will at 
the time of the issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable likelihood to increase commercial activity, 
retain and create employment, and revitalize the downtown; and 
 
WHEREAS, the taxable value of the property proposed to be exempt plus the aggregate taxable value of 
the property already exempt under PA 146 of 2000 and under PA 198 of 1974 does not exceed 5% of the 
total taxable value of the unit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant is not delinquent in any taxes related to the facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, the rehabilitation work described in the application had not commenced prior to the 
establishment of the District. 
 
 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, based on the findings above made at a public hearing held 
April 1, 2024, the City Council of the City of Owosso authorizes the application for an Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for 344 W. Main St. for a period of eight (8) years; and 
 
ALSO, BE IT RESOLVED that the rehabilitation shall be completed within eighteen (18) months from the 
date of approval of said application, and 
 
FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the application and resolution are authorized for submittal to 
the State Tax Commission for final review and authorization. 
 
 



301 W. MAIN � OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 · (989) 725-0599 · FAX (989) 723-8854

APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT

Applicant (Official Company Name) _Curwood Place LLC__________________________

Business Name (If Different) ______________________________________________________

Address of Proposed Project _  344 W. Main St. Owosso MI 48867 _________________

Mailing Address (If Different) _2899 Bay Drive West Bloomfield MI 48324___________

Do you own the property? __Yes____ If no, what is your relationship?___________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

Type of Abatement Requested (if known) _OPRA_____________________________________

Total square footage of all current buildings on site __18,564 square feet_____________

Description of proposed project including type of current business activity and product to be
manufactured (if applicable), size of proposed structure and proposed activity and/or product.

__See Attached_______________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

Give estimated cost of the following components applicable for the proposed project:

 Land improvements (excluding land): _________________________________________

 Building improvements: __$2,877,650.00 est cost of project__________________

 Machinery & Equipment: __________________________________________________

 Furniture & Fixtures: ______________________________________________________

Time schedule for start and completion of construction and equipment installation (if applicable):
Building: Equipment installation (if applicable):

 Start Date ___08/01/2024__________ Start Date _____________________

 Completion Date ___10/31/2025_ Completion Date _______________ 



Abatement Application
Page 2

Will project be owned or leased by applicant? _Owned________________________

Will machinery be owned or leased by applicant? ____________________________

How many employees do you currently employ? Full Time __0_______Part Time__________

How many new employees do you estimate after project complete? Full Time _____0______
 Part Time _______________

When project is complete, how many will be:

 Management/Professional ______________ Wage level $_________________________

 Skilled ______________ Wage level $__________________________

 Semi-Skilled ____________ Wage level $_________________________

 Un-Skilled _____________ Wage level $_________________________

Name of Company Officer (contact person) _Ashley Connelly_____________

Title _Project Manager______________________________________________________

Signature ________________________________________________Date ___03/08/24________

Phone Number ___(810)447-1571_____________________________

______________________________________________________________________________
For City Staff Use Only

Was the applicant given a copy of Tax Abatement Policy? Y N

Is an abatement district in place for this project? Y N

If no, legal description of proposed district. ________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

If yes, type of district in place _______________________________Year established ______
Does the proposed project meet the guidelines for Tax Abatement under the policy? Y N

If no, explain _________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

If yes, was notice given to taxing jurisdictions within the proposed project area? Y N
If yes, was notice given to applicant and proper state documents sent? Y N

Name of reviewer _____________________________________________________________

Signature _______________________________________________ Date ________________











 

 

1. Attachment with Narrative 

a. General Description 
The subject property, located at 344 W. Main Street in downtown Owosso, Michigan, is 

an 18,564 sq. ft single building with a total acreage of 0.65 acres with 44 parking spaces. 

The multi-use building was built in ca. 1930 and designed by architect George John 

Bachmann and has a later addition which housed garages for an Oldsmobile dealership. 

It consists of two floors and a basement. The first floor (9,241 sq. ft) has a retail space 

that is currently rented, a vacant blighted foyer, and six garages that are in poor 

condition. The second floor (7591 sq. ft) has nine vacant apartments that require total 

renovation and redesign with partial demolition and rearrangement of walls and spaces. 

The basement is vacant with an obsolete foyer entrance from the street.  

 

b. Proposed use 

 
Curwood Place will continue to be a mixed-use development consisting of retail space, 

residential areas, and community facilities, including art studios and gallery space for 

organizations located in Owosso’s cultural campus. The building’s rehabilitation and 

remodel will be sensitive to the building’s historic elements and will include minor 

preservation work to the historic entrance and facade. Updates to each individual 

apartment will be made to modernize the units on the second floor. A food business is 

proposed for the basements which will provide additional retail/creative pop-up space 

to further local entrepreneurs in their entrepreneurial journey. EV chargers and covered 

parking will be added to the parking area. Murals have been funded and will be added 

to the facade to tie in the art community and Owosso’s history. The center garage unit 

will be renovated into a residential foyer at the rear of the building, including storage 

lockers and an ADA compliant elevator to access the second floor. 

 

The first floor’s retail space, which currently houses a pet store; employing 8 part time 

and 1 full time employee; (lease ending March 2025), will remain as-is during the initial 

phase of construction and development. The original entry is on the east side of the 

building. Prior building owners removed most of the large original windows and 

replaced them with blue painted panels, and the developer is adding murals to these 

areas depicting historic Owosso scenes or art which is distinctive to the Owosso 

community; the funding for these murals has already been secured.  

 

The proposed basement tenant, a hospitality talent accelerator, is raising capital to 

launch a speakeasy bar in the basement which will also house pop-up space that 

provides additional retail outlets for small startup businesses in Owosso. The space will 

be open to the public on select days and provide an event space for small groups (under 

50) in which guests arrive through a secret entrance. Liquor licensing and food retail 

licensing will be obtained for this project. Currently the space is under-utilized as it is 



used as storage for a now-defunct company and the meters for electricity and water for 

the building. 

 

The upper story will be renovated to add 1 additional unit to feature nine rehabbed 

apartments (two two-bedroom unit, five one-bedroom units and two ‘micro’ units). One 

to two of the nine apartments will be available fully furnished. Each individual 

apartment unit will include new plumbing, windows, HVAC systems, ductwork, new 

separate water heaters, electrical panels, washer/dryers, kitchen cabinets, appliances, 

and fixtures will all be replaced with new, energy efficient systems. Similarly, all the 

flooring needs repair and replacement. All bathrooms will be remodeled to include large 

walk-in showers. The hall corridor will be upgraded to include new lighting, doors, and 

skylights and will include the display of local artists' exhibits and historic photos of the 

building and community.  

 

Two of the six first-floor garages (1408 sq. ft total) will be converted to a foyer entrance 

for second floor residents that includes individual storage lockers and an elevator. The 

remaining four garages will be upgraded with a new roof, interiors, external trim, and 

garage doors. The units may be rented as storage or space for local artists to work and 

showcase their products.  

 

The parking lot includes a large parking area (44 spaces), of which the twelve on the 

north end of the building will be covered to be used for additional programmatic space 

by the Shiawassee Arts Center and other local nonprofits for events such as pop-up 

artists, artisan, and food markets. 

 

 

 

 

c. Detailed description of the rehab 

 

Installation of EV chargers and covered parking spaces for residents and patrons 

 

The 6 first-floor garages will be upgraded with a new roof, interiors, external 

trim, and garage doors that include the door within a door. This allows entry 

without having to open the large door. 

 

Construct foyer and install elevator in the center two garage units. Installation 

of an elevator to make the second-floor apartments handicapped accessible. 

 

The basement will be gutted; this includes removal of broken fixture and 

repairing of falling ceilings, crumbling unused incinerator chimney, unfinished 

wall partitions and broken walls and floors. 

 



Update electrical and plumbing to prepare unit for a food business/bar. 

Remodel foyer entrance on the west side of the building.  

Installation of a restroom in the basement. 

 

Application of murals depicting historic Owosso scenes and/or art that is 

distinctive to Owosso community to the facade. 

 

Plumbing, HVAC, ductwork, and fixtures will be replaced with new, energy 

efficient systems throughout the building. 

 

All flooring is in need of repair and replacement. 

 

The second floor has nine vacant apartments that require total renovation and 

redesign to include partial demolitions and rearrangement of walls and spaces.  

 

Each individual apartment unit will include new separate water heaters, HVAC 

systems, windows, doors, electrical panels, energy efficient fixtures, and 

washer/dryers.  

 

Each apartment will have new kitchen cabinets and energy efficient appliances. 

 

All apartment bathrooms will be remodeled to include large walk-in showers to 

be handicapped accessible. 

 

Up to 2 of the 9 apartments will be available fully furnished.  

 

The hall corridor will be upgraded to include new lighting, doors, and skylights.  

 

d. Descriptive List 

 

Please see attached for more comprehensive list; 

>9 washers (Stackable) 

>9 dryers (Stackable) 

>9 water heaters 

>9 HVAC systems 

>9 fridges 

>9 oven/ranges 

>Elevator 

 

 

 

 

e. Time Schedule 



 

Construction to begin in August 2024 and run through October 2025. Please see attached 

document with more details on construction.  

 

 

 

 

f. Business Creation: Expected economic advantages from exemption 

 
The proposed Curwood Place development at 344 W. Main Street in downtown 

Owosso, Michigan will have a catalytic, long-term impact on the community in several 

ways: 

 

Vacancy & Blight: The project activates vacant space, increases density through 

additional rentable commercial units, contributes to the success of local businesses, and 

prioritizes clean and green systems.  

 

Stimulating Economy: The development will grow the area’s tax base by rehabilitating a 

currently underutilized property and creating new retail and residential spaces as well as 

community facilities. Completing the full vision which integrates arts, food, retail, and 

housing along the river will enhance Owosso’s attractiveness, thus encouraging 

additional investment by this investment group and others.  

 

Job Creation: In addition to the job retention that will result from maintaining this 

building through the current lessee (9 jobs retained) there is an approximate 22 jobs 

that will result from this project. 2 of these jobs would result from the rehab in the 

basement, which will provide a small hospitality outpost. 20 of these jobs will be from 

the construction being done on the building.  

 

Housing: With the addition of nine new apartments, the project addresses the critical 

need for affordable housing in Michigan. Access to safe and affordable housing is a 

fundamental right and a key driver of economic growth and community development 

and by investing in affordable housing, the project provides resources for Michigan 

citizens and communities, which helps to attract and retain talent. The addition of 

furnished rental units will attract a diverse range of tenants, who will contribute to the 

local economy and increase community density while prioritizing housing for permanent 

residents. Through the proposed mixed-use development, Curwood Place not only will 

provide affordable, short-term housing options for a variety of individuals and families 

but will stimulate the economy within the community and provide additional 

programmatic offerings to further the City’s development and vision as a regional 

destination to live, work, and play. 

 

Business Creation: The first floor is currently leased and will remain so until 2025. The 

lessee employs 1 full time and 8 part time employees. Newly repurposed spaces will 



introduce new sources of income for the community, including a speakeasy, and rental 

space for a gallery, retail units, classrooms, studio spaces, and storage for rent. The 

creation of a space to be used by an accelerator program for pop ups featuring new 

hospitality talent will allow entrepreneurs in the Food & Beverage industry an 

opportunity to run their small business with guidance and low overhead to increase 

their chances of success in the first year. These new spaces will provide opportunities 

for small businesses and entrepreneurs to thrive, further boosting the local economy 

and existing businesses and contributing to the long-standing cultural community in 

Owosso. The development of Curwood Place will help create jobs by providing space 

and housing for small businesses and the local cultural community, recognizing that a 

thriving business ecosystem is essential for economic growth. 

  

Community Space: The addition of outdoor community space and pop-up markets in the 

parking area will also contribute to the burgeoning arts scene in Owosso, helping to 

revitalize the downtown area and attracting more visitors to the city. By attracting more 

visitors to the area, this project will also support existing businesses in downtown 

Owosso. 

 

Energy Efficient: The building will include LED-certified windows in addition to other 

systems that maximize energy efficiency, including new systems and EV chargers in the 

parking lot. 

 

Placemaking: Being centrally located in downtown Owosso, this project not only allows 

employees to live closer to their workplace but also encourages active participation in 

downtown events and patronage of downtown businesses. Affordable and diverse 

housing options contribute to a healthy urban environment where employees can 

reduce commute times and increase productivity. Meanwhile, the new housing units 

will be close to other critical community facilities in town and encourage non-motorized 

transportation. Murals adorning the facade will depict historic Owosso scenes or art 

which is distinctive to the Owosso community. 









 
 
 
 
301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   (989) 725-0599 

  FAX (989) 723-8854 

 
 

 

DATE:  4.1.24 
TO:  Owosso City Council 
FROM:  Nathan Henne, City Manager 
SUBJECT: Woodland Trails/Washington Park Redevelopment Project, #23 
 
Brownfield #23 will include an estimated capital investment of $14,000,000 - of which $1,177,367 is 
proposed for Brownfield reimbursement to the Developer. 
 
AKT Peerless – on behalf of the County Land Bank - submitted a Brownfield plan in December, 2023 and 
met with staff soon after that submittal.  The Brownfield Plan proposes a term of 24 years for local taxes 
only.   
 
The following is how I scored this project based on the city’s 2019 tax abatement policy: 
 
Capital Investment:   $14,000,000      7 years 
Rehabilitated Facility:   No       0 years 
Job Creation (FTE):   N/A       0 years 
Job Wages:    N/A       0 years 
Number of years in Owosso  Govt. Applicant      3 years 
Employees with Owosso Residency N/A       0 years 
Housing units Created   30 (14 WT, 16 WP)     4 years 
 
TOTAL            14 yrs 
 

Tax Abatement Policy:  Section II Evaluation 
 

Section II of the City’s 2019 abatement policy outlines evaluation criteria based on 2 things:  
development objectives and additional objectives. 
 

A. PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES 
1. To retain local jobs and/or increase the number and diversity of high-quality jobs that 

offer attractive wages and benefits. 
i. This project would create no new permanent jobs 

2. To encourage additional unsubsidized private development in the City – either directly 
or indirectly through spin-off development without the use of further tax abatements. 

i. Unlikely to occur with this development, although it does meet a critical Master 
Plan goal of the city to add additional housing. 

3. To facilitate the development process and to achieve development of sites that would 
not be development without tax abatement assistance. 

i. Due to the infrastructure needs of both sets of properties to support the 
proposed project, it’s very unlikely that this development opportunity would 
succeed without an abatement. 



4. To remove blight and/or encourage redevelopment of commercial and industrial areas 
that result in high quality redevelopment, private investment, and an increase in the city 
tax base. 

i. Remove Blight?  No.  These properties are not blighted.   
“Blighted” means property that meets any of the following criteria: 

- Has been declared a public nuisance in accordance with a local 
housing, building, plumbing, fire, or other related code or 
ordinance. 

- Is an attractive nuisance to children because of physical 
condition, use, or occupancy. 

- Is a fire hazard or is otherwise dangerous to the safety of 
persons or property. 

- Has had the utilities, plumbing, heating, or sewerage 
permanently disconnected, destroyed, removed, or rendered 
ineffective so that the property is unfit for its intended use. 

- Is tax reverted property owned by a qualified local 
governmental unit, by a county, or by this state.  The sale, lease, 
or transfer of tax reverted property by a qualified local 
governmental unit, county, or this state after the property’s 
inclusion in a brownfield plan shall not result in the loss to the 
property of the status as blighted property for purpose of this 
act. 

ii. High Quality Redevelopment?  Yes this would result in the addition of needed 
housing units in the city. 

iii. Private Investment?  Yes.  The applicants will be contributing a large portion of 
the project cost from their own sources. 

iv. Increase in City Tax Base?  Yes.  This would increase the City tax base by an 
estimated $2.5 million after the fourth year of the plan where all construction 
phases are complete. 

5. To offset increased costs of redevelopment (contaminated site cleanup) beyond the 
costs normally incurred in development 

i. No environmental contamination is known to exist on the properties.  
6. To provide infrastructure necessary to accommodate economic development 

i. For the Woodland Trails portion, sewer improvements are needed.  This system 
is still considered private since the original development over 20 years ago.  
Defects in the system prevented the city from accepting this system as public.  
City will make necessary repairs, be reimbursed for those repairs, and accept 
this system as public subject to the approval of a three-party agreement (SCLB, 
WT HOA, City) guaranteeing reimbursement of city cost to repair.  The 
Washington Park property will need work to have utilities serve the 
development.  These costs will be paid by the developer and construction of 
utilities will be to city specs supervised by a professional engineer. 

 
B. ADDITIONAL OBJECTIVES 

1. To support local businesses, extra consideration will be given to existing businesses 
seeking to expand and grow within the city. 

i. This is a housing project but would potentially add residents to Owosso who 
would presumably patronize businesses in the city. 



2. The extent to which the proposed project creates high-quality jobs in the city, paying 
wages equal to or greater than the average local wage of the same class 

i. No new jobs will be created as part of this project. 
3. The extent to which the proposed project adds to the net commercial, industrial, or 

general tax base of the city and optimizes the private development of the proposed site 
i. Yes.  The project adds to the net commercial tax base for the city.  Estimated 

increase in taxable value after the project is completed:  $2.5 million. 
ii. This project increases the residential tax base pertaining to infill housing  

iii. Yes.  This project optimizes the development potential of these sites.  These 
sites are located in areas prime for infill housing development. 

4. Whether or not the proposed project provides services not already provided in the city 
or services which are needed 

i. No.  This project will add housing opportunity which is a benefit to the 
community but not a service. 

5. Whether or not the proposed business would be in direct competition with existing 
businesses in the city.  Abatements should not be given to business which would receive 
a competitive advantage over existing businesses in the city. 

i. This project will not create a competitive advantage over existing businesses in 
the city. 

6. Whether or not the project will significantly impact environmental/natural resources 
i. No significant impacts are forseen. 

7. The extent to which other political subdivisions are in support of the project. 
i. As of 2.29.24, the city has not received any notices of support or opposition to 

the project or its abatement request. 
8. The extent to which the project represents new dollars into the city. 

i. $14,000,000 million investment in additional housing 
1. $12,822,633 million in private investment 
2. $1,177,367 taxpayer investment in this plan. 

9. The extent to which the project requires improvements in city infrastructure, road 
construction, or other traffic problems.  Also to be considered is the impact of the 
proposal on other city services such as law enforcement human services, or 
prosecutions. 

i. The project requires a repair of existing sewer system in Woodland Trails and 
the addition of city utilities to serve the Washington Park site.  The first will be 
paid by the city’s sewer fund and reimbursed through this plan while the latter 
will be funded privately to city specifications. 

ii. Impact on city services (tax revenue that could be used for service but is instead 
repaid to developer) 

 

*Important to remember that after the brownfield expires, TV will be counted as additional general fund revenue.  Denial of the brownfield 
plan does not translate to these increases as the project would have to be completed without the abatement - which is extremely unlikely. 

Service $$ per year $$ Total Percent
Public Safety 209,033$                                   5,016,792$                 58%
General Government 92,581$                                     2,221,935$                 26%
Public Works 39,752$                                     954,041$                     11%
Community Development 4,484$                                       107,604$                     1%
Recreation and Culture 12,666$                                     303,975$                     4%
Total 358,514$                                   8,604,347$                 100%



10. Consistency of the proposed project with city land use regulations, zoning and planning 
policies. 

i. This project meets all regulations and policies mentioned 
11. How the proposed project furthers the goals and objectives of the city 

i. This project would add 30 additional housing units and help meet the Master 
Plan goal of satisfying the housing shortages in the community.  It could also 
bring new residents to the city, increasing population.   

12. The level of private financial investment into the project 
i. There is about $12.8 million in private investment for the project. 

 
Options for City Council 

 
1. Approve this 24 year brownfield application. 
2. Deny the Brownfield application as the project is only eligible for 14 years of any tax 

abatement per the city’s abatement policy.   
3. Approve the plan for 14 years.  This would presumably kill the project.  

 
Master Plan Goals:  1.2, 1.4, 1.9, 1.25, 2.12, 3.1, 5.11, 7.1, 7.4 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION CONCURRING WITH THE PROVISIONS OF A BROWNFIELD  
PLAN ADOPTED BY THE SHIAWASSEE COUNTY BROWNFIELD  

REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FOR THE  
WOODLAND-WASHINGTON PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, Act 381, P.A. 1996 as amended, (the 
“Act”) authorizes municipalities to create a brownfield redevelopment authority to promote the 
revitalization, redevelopment, and reuse of contaminated, blighted, functionally obsolete, historically 
designated or housing property through tax increment financing of eligible environmental, non-
environmental, and/or housing development activities with an approved Brownfield Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso City Council (the “City Council”) established the City of Owosso 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (the “OBRA”) under the procedures of the Act, to facilitate the 
cleanup and redevelopment of Brownfields within the City of Owosso; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Shiawassee County Board of Commissioners (the “Board of Commissioners”) 
established the Shiawassee County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (the “SCBRA”) under the 
procedures under Act 381, to facilitate the cleanup and redevelopment of Brownfields within Shiawassee 
County; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Brownfield Plan (the “Plan”) has been prepared for the redevelopment of the Woodland 
Trails and Washington Park Properties located at 1493 N. Mallard Circle, 1491 N. Mallard Circle, 1487 N. 
Mallard Circle, 1485 N. Mallard Circle, 1479 N. Mallard Circle, 1477 N. Mallard Circle, 1473 N. Mallard 
Circle, 1441 Pintail Ct., 1411 N. Mallard Circle, 1430 N. Mallard Circle, 1426 N. Mallard Circle, 1424 N. 
Mallard Circle, 1406 N. Mallard Circle, 1408 N. Mallard Circle, and N. Washington Street, all of which are 
currently under control of the Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority (the “SCLBA”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Act requires the concurrence of the local unit of government in which the Brownfield Plan 
project is located for Brownfield Plans under County Brownfield Redevelopment Authorities, and the 
Woodland-Washington Brownfield Project is located in the City of Owosso, in County of Shiawassee; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the City Council concurrence, the SCBRA will consider the Brownfield Plan for 
the Woodland-Washington Project and provide a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the City Council concurrence, pursuant to and in accordance with the public 
hearing notice provisions in Act, the Board of Commissioners will set and notice a public hearing and will 
consider the Woodland-Washington Project Brownfield Plan at a regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Board of Commissioners.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that pursuant to the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, 
Act 381 of the Public Acts of 1996, as amended, being MCL 125.2651, et seq, the City of Owosso City 
Council hereby concurs with the Brownfield Plan for the Woodland-Washington Project. 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION OF UNDERSTANDING TO UTILIZE THE SHIAWASSEE COUNTY BROWNFIELD 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FOR THE  
WOODLANDS-WASHINGTON PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has a Brownfield project at the Woodland Trails and Washington Park 
Properties located at 1493 N. Mallard Circle, 1491 N. Mallard Circle, 1487 N. Mallard Circle, 1485 N. 
Mallard Circle, 1479 N. Mallard Circle, 1477 N. Mallard Circle, 1473 N. Mallard Circle, 1441 Pintail Ct., 
1411 N. Mallard Circle, 1430 N. Mallard Circle, 1426 N. Mallard Circle, 1424 N. Mallard Circle, 1406 N. 
Mallard Circle, 1408 N. Mallard Circle, and N. Washington Street, commonly known as the Woodland-
Washington Project,  

WHEREAS, all of the parcels identified in the Brownfield Plan are currently under the control of the 
Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority (the “SCLBA”); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso City Council (the “City Council”) established the City of Owosso 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (the “OBRA”) under the procedures under Act 381, to facilitate the 
cleanup and redevelopment of Brownfields within the City of Owosso; and, 

WHEREAS, the Shiawassee County Board of Commissioners (the “Board of Commissioners”) 
established the Shiawassee County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (the “SCBRA”) under the 
procedures under Act 381, to facilitate the cleanup and redevelopment of Brownfields within Shiawassee 
County; and 

WHEREAS, the SCBRA is prepared to assist the City of Owosso reviewing and administering the 
proposed Woodland- Washington Brownfield Project, provided the City acknowledges certain rights that 
the SCBRA has, to wit:  

• SCBRA intends to collect an administrative fee from the new tax increment revenues 
generated by the developer not to exceed 10% of the available tax increment revenue 
generated from the Plan annually; and 

• The City of Owosso intends to collect an administrative fee from the new tax increment 
revenues generated by the developer not to exceed 5% of the available tax increment 
revenue generated from the Plan annually; and 

• SCBRA may capture and collect from the new tax increment revenues generated by the 
developer an amount up to $315,226, for a period of up to five years after repayment of 
eligible activities is satisfied according to the provisions in the Reimbursement 
Agreement, and that such funds will be placed in the SCBRA Local Brownfield Revolving 
Fund (the “LBRF) revolving loan fund for future remediation projects within the County; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso will have the opportunity to provide public comment on any Brownfield 
plan before it is finally adopted by the SCBRA and the Board of Commissioners. 

THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the City of Owosso requests that the SCBRA undertake review of 
the Woodland-Washington project further considering that all properties are under control of the SCLBA. 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Owosso acknowledges and understands that SCBRA 
intends to collect certain administrative fees and capture certain taxes for its revolving loan fund, which 
will be specified in detail in any Brownfield plan before it is finally adopted. 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with any of the 
provisions of this Resolution are hereby repealed. 



 

 

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

BROWNFIELD PLAN 
Woodland Trails/Washington Park Redevelopment 
Multiple Addresses, Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan 
 

 

PREPARED BY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROJECT # 
 

DRAFT DATE 
 

CITY BRA CONCURRENCE 
CITY CONCURRENCE 

COUNTY BRA APPROVAL 
COUNTY APPROVAL 

Shiawassee County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
201 North Shiawassee, 1st Floor 
Corunna, MI 48817 
Contact Person: Dr. Brian Boggs 
Email: bboggs@shiawassee.net 
Phone: (989) 743-2222 
 
AKT Peerless 
22725 Orchard Lake Road 
Farmington, Michigan, 48336 
Contact Person: Samantha R. Mariuz  
Email: seimers@aktpeerless.com 
Phone: (248) 224-0305 
 
 
17993f-5-25 
 
March 6, 2024 
 
March 6, 2024 
 
March 4, 2024 



Table of Contents  

 

I 

1.0 INTRODUCTION .........................................................................................................................4 

2.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS ...............................................................................................................5 

2.1 DESCRIPTION OF ELIGIBLE PROPERTY (SECTION 13 (2)(H)) .................................................... 5 
2.2 BASIS OF ELIGIBILITY (SECTION 13 (2)(H) , SECTION 2 (P)) ..................................................... 5 
2.3 SUMMARY OF ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES AND DESCRIPTION OF COSTS (SECTION 13 (2)(A),(B)) ... 6 
2.4 ESTIMATE OF CAPTURED TAXABLE VALUE AND TAX INCREMENT REVENUES (SECTION 13 

(2)(C)); IMPACT OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ON TAXING JURISDICTIONS (SECTION 13 
(2)(G), SECTION 2(SS)) ............................................................................................................. 7 

2.5 PLAN OF FINANCING (SECTION 13 (2)(D)); MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF INDEBTEDNESS 
(SECTION 13 (2)(E)) ................................................................................................................. 8 

2.6 DURATION OF BROWNFIELD PLAN (SECTION 13 (2)(F)) ......................................................... 9 

2.7 EFFECTIVE DATE OF INCLUSION IN BROWNFIELD PLAN ......................................................... 9 
2.8 LOCAL BROWNFIELD REVOLVING FUND (“LBRF”) (SECTION 8, SECTION 13(2)(M)) ............... 9 
2.9 OTHER INFORMATION ............................................................................................................. 9 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

Ata chment A ...................................................................................................... Site Maps and Photographs 

• Figure 1 – Topographic Loca�on Map 
• Figure 2 – Eligible Property Boundary Map 

Ata chment B ...................................................................................................................... Legal Descrip�on 

Ata chment C ........................................................................................................................................ Tables 

• Table 1 – Eligible Ac�vi�es 
• Table 2 – Tax Increment Revenue Es�mates 
• Table 3 – Reimbursement Alloca�on Schedule  

 



 

BROWNFIELD PLAN | MULTIPLE ADDRESSES, OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
DRAFT DATE: MARCH 6, 2024 

Page 1 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

PROJECT NAME Woodland Trails/Washington Park Brownfield 
Redevelopment Project - redevelopment and reuse of 
mul�ple parcels located in Owosso, Michigan 

  
WOODLAND TRAILS 

(DEVELOPER 1) 
 
 
 

 
WASHINGTON PARK 

(DEVELOPER 2) 
 
 
 

 
CITY 

 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY 

J.W. Morgan Construc�on, LLC 
7152 Seymour Road 
Swartz Creek, Michigan  
Jeremy Morgan 
(810) 691-6281 
 
Venture Incorporated 
196 Cesar E. Chavez Avenue 
Pon�ac, Michigan 
Allan Mar�n 
(810) 241-1954 
 
City of Owosso 
301 West Main Street 
Owosso, Michigan  
Nathan Henne 
(989) 725-0568 
 
County of Shiawassee 
201 North Shiawassee Street 
Corunna, Michigan 
Dr. Brian Boggs 
(989) 743-2222 
 

  
ELIGIBLE PROPERTY LOCATION The Eligible Property is located at mul�ple addresses in 

Owosso, Michigan.   
  

TYPE OF ELIGIBLE PROPERTY Land Bank Fast Track Authority Owned 
  



 

BROWNFIELD PLAN | MULTIPLE ADDRESSES, OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
DRAFT DATE: MARCH 6, 2024 

Page 2 

 

SUBJECT PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

The Woodland Trails/Washington Park Brownfield 
Redevelopment Project (Project) consists of the 
redevelopment of the mul�ple Shiawassee County Land 
Bank Authority owned parcels and public infrastructure 
improvements located at mul�ple addresses within the 
city of Owosso, Michigan. The Project includes the sale 
of Land Bank owned parcels which will be improved 
with the new construc�on of condominium and 
mul�family units.  
 
The Project is seeking approval of Tax Increment 
Financing (TIF). Redevelopment is expected to begin in 
Spring of 2024. 

  
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES Public Infrastructure Improvements, and Prepara�on 

and Implementa�on of a Brownfield Plan. 
  

REIMBURSABLE COSTS $1,177,367 (Est. Eligible Ac�vi�es & Con�ngency) 
 

  
MAXIMUM DURATION OF 

CAPTURE 
24 years 

  
ESTIMATED TOTAL CAPITAL 

INVESTMENT 
$14,000,000 

  
INITIAL TAXABLE VALUE $0 

 
  



 

BROWNFIELD PLAN | MULTIPLE ADDRESSES, OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
DRAFT DATE: MARCH 6, 2024 

Page 3 

 

LIST OF ACRONYMS AND DEFINITIONS 
 

ACT 381 Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, 1996 PA 381, 
as amended 

BFP OR PLAN Brownfield Plan 
CITY City of Owosso 

COUNTY County of Shiawassee 
WOODLAND TRAILS 

DEVELOPER 
J.W. Morgan Construc�on, LLC 

WASHINGTON PARK 
DEVELOPER 

Ventures Incorporated 

EGLE Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes & 
Energy 

ELIGIBLE PROPERTY Property for which eligible ac�vi�es are iden�fied under 
a Brownfield Plan, referred to herein as “the subject 
property”. 

LBRF Local Brownfield Revolving Fund 
MEDC Michigan Economic Development Corpora�on 

MSF Michigan Strategic Fund  
PROJECT Woodland Trails/Washington Park Redevelopment 

SCBRA Shiawassee County Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority 

SCLBA Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority 
SLBA State Land Bank Authority 

SUBJECT PROPERTY The Eligible Property, located at mul�ple addresses, 
Owosso, Michigan.  

TIF Tax Increment Financing (TIF describes the process of 
using TIR—i.e., TIF is the use of TIR to provide financial 
support to a project) 

TIR Tax Increment Revenue (new property tax revenue, 
usually due to redevelopment and improvement that is 
generated by a property a�er approval of a Brownfield 
Plan) 

  



 

BROWNFIELD PLAN | MULTIPLE ADDRESSES, OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
DRAFT DATE: MARCH 6, 2024 

Page 4 

 

 
BROWNFIELD PLAN 
Woodland Trails/Washington Park Redevelopment 
Mul�ple Addresses, Owosso, Michigan 48867 

1.0 Introduction 
Shiawassee County, Michigan (the “County”), established the Shiawassee County Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”), pursuant to Michigan Public Act 381 of 1996, as amended 
(“Act 381”). The primary purpose of Act 381 is to encourage the redevelopment of eligible property by 
providing economic incen�ves through tax increment financing for certain eligible ac�vi�es. 

The main purpose of this Brownfield Plan is to promote the redevelopment of and investment in certain 
“Brownfield” proper�es within the Community. Inclusion of subject property within Brownfield plans will 
facilitate financing of environmental response and other eligible ac�vi�es at eligible proper�es and will 
also provide tax incen�ves to eligible taxpayers willing to invest in revitaliza�on of eligible sites, 
commonly referred to as “Brownfields.” By facilita�ng redevelopment of Brownfield proper�es, 
Brownfield plans are intended to promote economic growth for the benefit of the residents of the City 
and all taxing units located within and benefited by the Authority. 

The iden�fica�on or designa�on of a developer or proposed use for the Eligible Property that is the 
subject of this Brownfield Plan (the “subject property”) shall not be integral to the effec�veness or 
validity of this Brownfield Plan. This Brownfield Plan is intended to apply to the subject property 
iden�fied in this Brownfield Plan and, if tax increment revenues are proposed to be captured from that 
subject property, to iden�fy and authorize the eligible ac�vi�es to be funded by such tax increment 
revenues. Any change in the proposed developer or proposed use of the subject property shall not 
necessitate an amendment to this Brownfield Plan, affect the applica�on of this Brownfield Plan to the 
subject property, or impair the rights available to the Authority under this Brownfield Plan. 

This Brownfield Plan is intended to be a living document, which may be modified or amended in 
accordance with the requirements of Act 381, as necessary to achieve the purposes of Act 381. The 
applicable sec�ons of Act 381 are noted throughout the Brownfield Plan for reference purposes. 

This Brownfield Plan contains informa�on required by Sec�on 13(2) of Act 381. 

The Woodland Trails/Washington Park Brownfield Redevelopment (the “Project”) consists of the 
redevelopment of Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority (SCLBA) owned parcels located within the 
City of Owosso, Michigan (subject property). The Woodland Trails por�on of the subject property, 
located south of E. North Street and east of S. Gould Street, will include the sale of the land bank owned 
parcels to J.W. Morgan Construc�on, LLC (Developer 1) who will improve the parcels with the 
construc�on of new condominium units.  The City of Owosso (City) will also complete the public sewer 
system improvements within the Woodland Trails por�on of the subject property. The City of Owosso 
has incurred so� costs associated with the engineering of the public sewer project prior to the adop�on 
of this Brownfield Plan.  These costs are considered an eligible ac�vity for future tax increment revenue 
reimbursement with the approval of this Brownfield Plan.   



 

BROWNFIELD PLAN | MULTIPLE ADDRESSES, OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
DRAFT DATE: MARCH 6, 2024 

Page 5 

 

The Washington Park por�on of the subject property, located at the southwest corner of W. Wesley 
Drive and N. Washington Street.  Eligible ac�vi�es for the Project include the installa�on of public water 
mains, completed by Ventures Incorporated (Developer 2). Ventures Incorporated will develop sixteen 
(16) two- and three-bedroom townhomes. 

The County of Shiawassee (the “County”) has incurred so� costs associated with the sale of Land Bank 
Owned parcels as well costs associated with the prepara�on and implementa�on of the Brownfield Plan 
prior to the adop�on of the Brownfield Plan.  These costs are considered an eligible ac�vity for future tax 
increment revenue reimbursement with the approval of this Brownfield Plan.   

This Project will ul�mately improve the underu�lized, tax reverted proper�es and provide much needed 
housing within the city of Owosso.  

The Project is seeking approval of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) for eligible ac�vi�es completed. Eligible 
ac�vi�es are expected to begin in the Spring of 2024 with redevelopment following. 

2.0 General Provisions 
The following sec�ons detail informa�on required by Act 381. 

2.1 Description of Eligible Property (Section 13 (2)(h)) 
The Eligible Property (“subject property”) is located at mul�ple addresses in Owosso, Michigan.  

The Woodland Trails por�on of the subject property consists of fourteen (14) condo parcels located 
south of E. North Street and east of S. Gould Street.  All parcels are zoned Residen�al (R). 

The Washington Park por�on of the subject property consists of one (1) parcel located at the southwest 
corner of W. Wesley Drive and N. Washington Street.  This parcel is zoned Planned Unit Development 
(PUD). 

At achment A includes site maps of the Eligible Property, refer to: Figure 1, Topographic Loca�on Map 
and Figure 2, Eligible Property Boundary Map (which includes lot dimensions). The legal descrip�on of 
the Eligible Proper�es, including the legal descrip�on of the parent condo Parcel for the Woodland Trails 
subject property are further described and presented in At achment B.  

The parcel and all tangible real and personal property located thereon will comprise the Eligible 
Property, which is referred to herein as the “subject property.”  

2.2 Basis of Eligibility (Section 13 (2)(h), Section 2 (p)) 
The subject property is considered “Eligible Property” as defined by Act 381, Sec�on 2 because: (a) the 
subject property is owned by the Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority. 

Address Parcel Identification 
Number Brownfield Eligibility 

1493 N MALLARD CIRCLE  050-750-000-001-00 Land Bank Owned 

1491 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-002-00 Land Bank Owned 

1487 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-003-00 Land Bank Owned 



 

BROWNFIELD PLAN | MULTIPLE ADDRESSES, OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
DRAFT DATE: MARCH 6, 2024 

Page 6 

 

1485 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-004-00 Land Bank Owned 

1479 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-005-00 Land Bank Owned 

1477 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-006-00 Land Bank Owned 

1473 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-007-00 Land Bank Owned 

1441 PINTAIL CT 050-750-000-018-00 Land Bank Owned 

1411 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-030-00 Land Bank Owned 

1430 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-033-00 Land Bank Owned 

1426 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-032-00 Land Bank Owned 

1424 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-031-00 Land Bank Owned 

1406 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-041-00 Land Bank Owned 

1408 N MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-042-00 Land Bank Owned 

N WASHINGTON STREET 050-535-000-001-00 Land Bank Owned 

2.3 Summary of Eligible Activities and Description of Costs (Section 13 (2)(a),(b)) 
The “eligible ac�vi�es” that are intended to be carried out at the subject property are considered 
“eligible ac�vi�es” as defined by Sec 2 of Act 381, because they include public infrastructure 
improvements and the prepara�on and implementa�on of a Brownfield Plan (see Table 1).  

A summary of the eligible ac�vi�es and the es�mated cost of each eligible ac�vity intended to be paid 
for with Tax Increment Revenues from the subject property are shown in the table below. 

Es�mated Cost of Reimbursable Eligible Ac�vi�es 

Description of Eligible Activity Estimated Cost 
1. Infrastructure Improvements $ $957,407 
2. Soft Costs associated with Infrastructure Improvements $ 49,000 
3. 15% Contingency $ 150,961 

Subtotal Eligible Activities Cost with 15% Contingency $ 1,157,367 
4. Brownfield Plan Preparation & Implementation* $ 20,000 

Total Eligible Activities Costs with BFP Preparation & Implementation $ 1,177,367 
5. County BRA Administration Fee – 10% $ 175,604 
6. City BRA Administration Fee – 5% $ 87,802 
7. Local Brownfield Revolving Fund (LBRF)  315,266 

Total Eligible Costs for Reimbursement $ 1,756,039 
 *Contingency is not applied to Brownfield Plan Preparation & Implementation.  

Es�mated Cost of Reimbursable Eligible Ac�vi�es by Each Party 

  County Costs City Costs Developer Costs 

Eligible Activities  $             29,000   $              150,000   $              827,407  

15% Contingency  $               4,350   $                22,500   $              124,111  

Brownfield Plan Preparation  $             10,000   $                           -     $                           -    



 

BROWNFIELD PLAN | MULTIPLE ADDRESSES, OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
DRAFT DATE: MARCH 6, 2024 

Page 7 

 

Brownfield Plan Implementation  $             10,000   $                           -     $                           -    

TOTAL  $             53,350   $             172,500   $              951,517  
 

A detailed breakout of the eligible ac�vi�es and the es�mated cost of each eligible ac�vity intended to 
be paid for with Tax Increment Revenues from the subject property is shown in At achment C, Table 1. 

The County, the City, and Developer 2 desire to be reimbursed for the costs of eligible ac�vi�es. Tax 
increment revenue generated by the subject property will be captured by the Authority and used to 
reimburse the cost of the eligible ac�vi�es completed on the subject property a�er approval of this 
Brownfield Plan and an associated Reimbursement Agreement.  Some eligible ac�vity costs may have 
been incurred prior to the adop�on of the Brownfield Plan.  These costs are eligible for reimbursement 
to the extend permit ed by Act 381 as they are so� costs related to the eligible ac�vi�es within the Plan 
and were integral to appropriately scoping eligible ac�vity costs and assembling the Brownfield Parcels 
and Plan.   

It is currently an�cipated that the remaining eligible ac�vi�es will begin in Spring of 2024 with 
development occurring therea�er.  It is es�mated that all the fourteen (14) Woodland Trails condo 
parcels will be transferred from the Land Bank to Developer 1 over a period of four years, for a five-year 
phase in construc�on period.  The Land Bank will transfer the Washington Park Parcel to Developer 2 in 
2024.  There is no tax increment revenue being generated from the redevelopment of Washington Park 
because there is a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) on the subject property.  Only the tax increment 
revenues generated from Developer 1, will be available to fund eligible ac�vi�es. Further discussion 
regarding the phasing of construc�on and impact on taxable value and tax increment revenues can be 
found in Sec�on 2.4. 

The costs listed in the table above are es�mated costs and may increase or decrease depending on the 
nature and extent of environmental contamina�on and other unknown condi�ons encountered on the 
subject property. The actual cost of those eligible ac�vi�es encompassed by this Brownfield Plan that 
will qualify for reimbursement from tax increment revenues of the Authority from the subject property 
shall be governed by the terms of a Reimbursement Agreement with the Authority (the “Reimbursement 
Agreement”). No costs of eligible ac�vi�es will be qualified for reimbursement except to the extent 
permit ed in accordance with the terms and condi�ons of the Reimbursement Agreement. 

2.4 Estimate of Captured Taxable Value and Tax Increment Revenues (Section 13 (2)(c)); Impact 
of Tax Increment Financing on Taxing Jurisdictions (Section 13 (2)(g), Section 2(ss)) 

This Brownfield Plan an�cipates the capture of tax increment revenues to reimburse the County, City and 
Developers, the for the costs of eligible ac�vi�es under this Brownfield Plan in accordance with the 
Reimbursement Agreement. A table of es�mated tax increment revenues to be captured is at ached to 
this Brownfield Plan as At achment C, Table 2. Tax increment revenue capture is expected to begin in 
2025.  

The total es�mated cost of the eligible ac�vi�es and other costs (including con�ngency, administra�ve 
fees and deposits to the Local Brownfield Revolving Fund (the “LBRF”)) to be reimbursed through the 
capture of tax increment revenue is projected to be $1,756,039. The es�mated effec�ve ini�al taxable 
value for this Brownfield Plan is $0 and is based on land and real property tax only. The ini�al taxable 
value of $0 is set in 2024. Redevelopment of the subject property is expected to ini�ally generate 



 

BROWNFIELD PLAN | MULTIPLE ADDRESSES, OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
DRAFT DATE: MARCH 6, 2024 

Page 8 

 

incremental taxable value in 2025 with the first significant increase in taxable value of approximately 
$20,000 beginning in 2025. 

The fourteen (14) Woodland Trails condo parcels will be transferred from the Land Bank to Developer 1 
over a four-year period beginning in 2024 with two (2) parcels.  There is a corresponding taxable value 
increase based on the value of the land in 2025.  Over the final three years, each year four (4) parcels will 
be transferred and constructed.  The Woodland Trails development is expected to be complete and reach 
full valua�on by 2029.  It is es�mated that each condo will be sold for approximately $350,000, and 
there is a 1% infla�on rate mul�plier in the outyears post construc�on.  The table below illustrates the 
an�cipated property transfer and tax increment revenue growth schedule.  At achment C, Table 2 
provides the Tax Increment Revenue es�mates based on the property transfer and an�cipated 
construc�on schedule.  

Property Transfer and Es�mated Tax Increment Revenue Schedule 

Year Number of Parcels 
Transferred 

Taxable Value 
Parcels 

Transferred 

Cumula�ve 
TV Increase 

Number of Units 
Constructed to Full 

Value 

2024 2 Parcels $                       - $                 - 0 

2025 4 Parcels $            20,000 $      20,000 0 

2026 4 Parcels $            40,000 $    390,200 2 

2027 4 Parcels $            40,000 $ 1,094,102 6 

2028 Construc�on $            40,000 $ 1,805,043 10 

2029 Construc�on $                       - $ 2,483,093 14 

 

It is es�mated that the Authority will capture the 2025 through 2050 tax increment revenues to 
reimburse the cost of the eligible ac�vi�es and make deposits to the LBRF. An es�mated schedule of tax 
increment revenue reimbursement is provided as At achment C, Table 3. 

The captured incremental taxable value and associated tax increment revenue will be based on the 
actual increased taxable value from all taxable improvements on the subject property and the actual 
millage rates levied by the various taxing jurisdic�ons during each year of the plan, as shown in 
At achment C, Tables 2 and 3. The actual tax increment captured will be based on the taxable value set 
through the property assessment process by the local unit of government and equalized by the County 
and the millage rates set each year by the taxing jurisdic�ons. 

2.5 Plan of Financing (Section 13 (2)(d)); Maximum Amount of Indebtedness (Section 13 (2)(e)) 
Eligible ac�vi�es are to be financed by the County, City and Developer 2, Ventures Incorporated, herein 
referred to as the “Par�es”. The Authority will reimburse the Par�es for the cost of approved eligible 
ac�vi�es, but only from tax increment revenues generated from the subject property as available, and 
subject to the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement. The County will be repaid through available tax 
increment revenues first, the City second, and Developer 2 last.  



 

BROWNFIELD PLAN | MULTIPLE ADDRESSES, OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
DRAFT DATE: MARCH 6, 2024 

Page 9 

 

All reimbursements authorized under this Brownfield Plan shall be governed by the Reimbursement 
Agreement. The Authority shall not incur any note or bonded indebtedness to finance the purposes of 
this Brownfield Plan. The inclusion of eligible ac�vi�es and es�mates of costs to be reimbursed in this 
Brownfield Plan is intended to authorize the Authority to fund such reimbursements. The inclusion of 
eligible ac�vi�es and es�mates of costs to be reimbursed in this Brownfield Plan does not obligate the 
Authority to fund any reimbursement or to enter into the Reimbursement Agreement providing for the 
reimbursement of any costs for which tax increment revenues may be captured under this Brownfield 
Plan, or which are permit ed to be reimbursed under this Brownfield Plan. The amount and source of any 
tax increment revenues that will be used for purposes authorized by this Brownfield Plan, and the terms 
and condi�ons for such use and upon any reimbursement of the expenses permit ed by the Brownfield 
Plan, will be provided solely under the Reimbursement Agreement contemplated by this Brownfield 
Plan. 

2.6 Duration of Brownfield Plan (Section 13 (2)(f)) 
Current tax capture projec�ons indicate the tax increment capture will con�nue for twenty-six (26) years. 
In no event shall the dura�on of the Brownfield Plan exceed 35 years following the date of the resolu�on 
approving the Brownfield Plan, nor shall the dura�on of the tax capture exceed the lesser of the period 
authorized under subsec�on (4) and (5) of Sec�on 13 of Act 381 or 30 years. Further, in no event shall 
the beginning date of the capture of tax increment revenues be later than five years a�er the date of the 
resolu�on approving the Brownfield Plan.  

2.7 Effective Date of Inclusion in Brownfield Plan 
The subject property shall become a part of this Brownfield Plan on the date this Brownfield Plan is 
approved by Shiawassee County. The date of tax capture shall commence during the year construc�on 
begins or the immediate following year—as increment revenue becomes available— but the beginning 
date of tax capture shall not exceed five years beyond the date of the governing body resolu�on 
approving the Brownfield Plan amendment. 

2.8 Local Brownfield Revolving Fund (“LBRF”) (Section 8, Section 13(2)(m)) 
The Authority has established a Local Brownfield Revolving Fund (“LBRF”). The Authority will capture 
incremental local taxes fund the LBRF, to the extent allowed by law. The rate and schedule of 
incremental tax capture for the LBRF will be determined on a case-by-case basis. Considera�ons may 
include, but not be limited to the following: total capture dura�on, total annual capture, project 
economic factors, level of exis�ng LBRF funding, projected need for LBRF funds, and amount of tax 
capture available in accordance with Act 381. 

The amount of tax increment revenue authorized for capture and deposit in the LBRF is es�mated at 
$315,266. 

2.9 Other Information 
The tax capture breakdown of tax increment revenues an�cipated to become available for use in the 
Brownfield Plan, if all eligible ac�vi�es, and con�ngency are reimbursed is summarized below.  This is a 
local only Brownfield Plan, and no State tax capture will be sought as part of this Plan.  The Woodland 
Trails parcels are assumed to be 100% homestead, and the Washington Park development has a PILOT, 
therefore, no tax increment revenues are generated from that parcel.  All tax increment revenues from 
the Woodland Trails parcels will be used to reimburse the County, the City, and Developer 2 for eligible 



 

BROWNFIELD PLAN | MULTIPLE ADDRESSES, OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
DRAFT DATE: MARCH 6, 2024 

Page 10 

 

ac�vi�es conducted in accordance with this Plan and subject to the terms of the Reimbursement 
Agreement.  

The Parcels are under control of the Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority.  Therefore, as the 
proper�es transfer from the Land Bank to Developer 1, they are subject to 5/50, and the Shiawassee 
County Land Bank Authority may capture 50% of the taxes for five years on the property.  The 
Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority has an agreement with the State Land Bank Authority to share 
50% of the 5/50 capture.  The Tax Increment Revenue Tables 2 and 3 in At achment C contemplate the 
5/50 capture to the Land Bank Authori�es, with the remainder of the 50% increase in taxable value for 
all tax increment capturable mills reimbursable for Brownfield Eligible Ac�vi�es.  

Tax Capture and Repayment Es�mates 

  Tax Capture Percentage of 
Total 

Es�mated Year 
of Repayment 

Local-Only Tax Capture (100%) $                 1,756,039 
  

County Capture $                       53,350 3% 5 

City Capture $                    172,500 10% 8 

Developer Capture $                    951,517 54% 22 

Admin & LBRF $                    578,672 33% 26 

 

Es�mated Land Bank 5/50 Taxes 

  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
  2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 
Total School Tax 5/50   $60   $1,171   $3,282   $5,415   $7,449   $12,861   $8,617   $4,330  

Total Local Tax 5/50   $287   $5,600   $15,702   $25,906   $35,637   $30,763   $20,611   $10,357  

Total Debt Tax 5/50   $74   $1,445   $4,053   $6,686   $9,198   $7,940   $5,320   $2,673  

Total Annual 5/50 Value  $421   $8,216   $23,037   $38,007   $52,284   $51,564   $34,547   $17,359  

Cumulative 5/50  $421   $8,637   $31,675   $69,682   $121,966   $173,530   $208,077   $225,436  

SLBA Annual Portion  $211   $4,108   $11,519   $19,003   $26,142   $25,782   $17,273   $8,680  

SCLBA Annual Portion  $211   $4,108   $11,519   $19,003   $26,142   $25,782   $17,273   $8,680  

 



 

 

At achments



 

 

At achment A 

Site Maps and Photographs



WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM
OWOSSO, MICHIGAN

PROJECT NUMBER: 17993F-5-25

TOPOGRAPHIC LOCATION MAP DRAWN BY:

DATE:
OGO

10/03/2023

FIGURE 1

OWOSSO NORTH QUADRANGLE
MICHIGAN - SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
7.5 MINUTE SERIES (TOPOGRAPHIC)

T.7 N.-R.3 E.

1 MILE

1 KILOMETER

7000 FEET100001000

01

01

IMAGE TAKEN FROM 1974 U.S.G.S. TOPOGRAPHIC MAP

2000 3000 4000 5000 6000

MICHIGAN
QUADRANGLE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



N
. G

O
U

LD
 S

TR
EE

T

NORTH STREET

MALLARD CIRCLE

855.03'

62
5.

15
'

870.02'

50
.0

1'
57

4.
96

'

APPROXIMATE AREA OF
SHIAWASSEE COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION

FOR HIGHWAY PURPOSES

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

14

10

11

12
13

WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM
OWOSSO, MICHIGAN

PROJECT NUMBER: 17993F-5-25

ELIGIBLE PROPERTY BOUNDARY MAP DRAWN BY:

DATE:
OGO

10/03/2023

FIGURE 2

= RARENT PARCEL LINE*
= CONDOMINIUM UNITS LINE* 150750

SCALE: 1" = 150'

LEGEND

* ADOPTED FROM SHIAWASSEE GIS

CONDOMINIUM OWNED BY
SHIAWASEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY

# ADDRESS PARCEL ID

1 1493 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-001-00

2 1491 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-002-00

3 1487 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-003-00

4 1485 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-004-00

5 1479 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-004-01

6 1477 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-006-00

7 1473 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-007-00

8 1441 PINTAIL COURT 050-750-000-018-00

9 1411 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-030-00

10 1430 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-033-00

11 1426 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-032-00

12 1424 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-031-00

13 1406 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-041-00

14 1408 N. MALLARD CIRCLE 050-750-000-042-00

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



PARCEL 050-535-000-001-00
 N.  WASHINGTON STREET

OWOSSO, MICHIGAN
PROJECT NUMBER: 17993F-5-25

TOPOGRAPHIC LOCATION MAP DRAWN BY:

DATE:
OGO

10/03/2023

FIGURE 1

OWOSSO NORTH QUADRANGLE
MICHIGAN - SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
7.5 MINUTE SERIES (TOPOGRAPHIC)

T.7 N.-R.2 E.

1 MILE

1 KILOMETER

7000 FEET100001000

01

01

IMAGE TAKEN FROM 1974 U.S.G.S. TOPOGRAPHIC MAP

2000 3000 4000 5000 6000

MICHIGAN
QUADRANGLE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



231'
133.7' 6'

27
9'

364.21'

28
4'

W. WESLEY DRIVE

N
. W

AS
HI

N
GT

O
N

 S
TR

EE
T

PARCEL 050-535-000-001-00
N. WASHINGTON STREET

OWOSSO, MICHIGAN
PROJECT NUMBER: 17993F-5-25

ELIGIBLE PROPERTY BOUNDARY MAP DRAWN BY:

DATE:
OGO

10/03/2023

FIGURE 2

= PARCEL LINE
= ELIGIBLE PROPERTY BOUNDARY LINE 80400

SCALE: 1" = 80'

LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



 

 

At achment B 

Legal Descrip�on



12/4/2023, 4:12 PM EST 1/7

Shiawassee GIS
Parcel Report: 050-540-000-002-00 12/4/2023

4:11:45 PM

Property Address

1410 N GOULD ST

OWOSSO, MI, 48867

Owner Address

WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

--

7550 MILLER RD

SWARTZ CREEK, MI 48473-1413

Unit: 050

Unit Name: CITY OF OWOSSO

General Information for 2023 Tax Year

Parcel Number: 050-540-000-002-00

100m

300ft

Parent Condo Parcel 
Land Bank Owned Eligible Condo 
Parcels Identified on Attachment A 
and following Legal Descriptions 



12/4/2023, 4:12 PM EST 2/7

Prev Year Info

Prev Year Info MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

Legal Description

Property Class: 402

Class Name: RESIDENTIAL

School Dist Code: 78110

School Dist Name: OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS

 

PRE 2022: 0%

PRE 2023: 0%

   

   

 

Assessed Value: $0

Taxable Value: $0

State Equalized Value: $0

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

Land Information

Acreage: 0

Zoning: NA

 

 

   



12/4/2023, 4:12 PM EST 3/7

COMMONS AREA FOR WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION PART OF W 1/2 OF NE 1/4 SEC 18
& S 1/6 OF W 1/2 OF SE 1/4 SEC 7, T7N, R3E, CITY OF OWOSSO; BEG AT S 1/4 COR SEC 7, TH N00*26'31"W,
50.01', S89*01'21"E, 855.03', S00*25'59"E, 625.15', N89*01'21"W, 870.02', N01*03'40"E, 574.96' TO POB.
EXCEPT LANDS CONVEYED TO SHIAWASSEE COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION FOR HIGHWAY PURPOSES.
TOGETHER WITH EASEMENTS OF RECORD FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS. ALSO EXCEPT LANDS DEDICATED
AND DEEDED FOR CONDOMINIUM UNITS.

Sales Information
Sale Date: 10-18-2006

Sale Price: 0 
Instrument: QC 
Grantor: WOODSIDE WEST LLC
Grantee: WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC 
Terms of Sale: 21-NOT USED/OTHER 
Liber/Page:

Sale Date: 10-16-2006

Sale Price: 0 
Instrument: WD 
Grantor: CITY OF OWOSSO 
Grantee: WOODSIDE WEST LLC 
Terms of Sale: 03-ARM'S LENGTH 
Liber/Page:

Sale Date: 03-24-2004

Sale Price: 0 
Instrument: OTH 
Grantor: WOODSIDE WEST, LLC 
Grantee: WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM 
Terms of Sale: 21-NOT USED/OTHER 
Liber/Page:

Sale Date: 10-27-2003

Sale Price: 108000 
Instrument: WD 
Grantor: CITY OF OWOSSO 
Grantee: WOODSIDE WEST, LLC 
Terms of Sale: 03-ARM'S LENGTH 
Liber/Page:

Sale Date: 03-01-2001

Sale Price: 400000 
Instrument: WD 
Grantor: SUTTON, RICHARD L & VIOLETTE, ET AL 
Grantee: CITY OF OWOSSO 
Terms of Sale: 03-ARM'S LENGTH 
Liber/Page:

seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:08 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-001-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1493+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1493 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-001-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:08 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-001-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1493+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 1, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC STATE OF MICHIGAN SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:07 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-002-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1491+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1491 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-002-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:07 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-002-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1491+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 2, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC STATE OF MICHIGAN SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:07 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-003-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1487+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1487 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-003-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:07 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-003-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1487+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 3, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC STATE OF MICHIGAN SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:07 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-004-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1485+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1485 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-004-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> 1 Building Department records found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:07 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-004-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1485+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 4, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:06 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-005-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1479+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1479 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-005-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:06 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-005-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1479+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 5, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:06 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-006-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1477+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1477 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-006-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:06 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-006-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1477+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 6, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:05 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-007-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1473+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1473 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-007-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:05 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-007-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1473+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 7, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:05 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-018-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1441+PINTAIL+CT&uid=66… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1441 N PINTAIL CT  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-018-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:05 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-018-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1441+PINTAIL+CT&uid=66… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 18, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:05 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-030-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1411+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1411 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-030-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:05 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-030-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1411+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 30, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:04 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-033-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1430+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1430 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-033-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:04 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-033-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1430+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 33, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:04 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-032-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1426+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1426 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-032-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:04 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-032-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1426+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 32, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:04 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-031-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1424+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1424 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-031-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:04 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-031-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1424+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 31, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:03 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-041-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1406+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1406 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-041-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:03 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-041-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1406+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 41, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:03 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-042-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1408+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 407 RESIDENTIAL
CONDOMINIUMS

Unit 050 OWOSSO

School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

1408 N MALLARD CIRCLE  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-750-000-042-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Building Department information found

> Property Tax information found

No Images Found

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $0 $0 $0

2020 $0 $0 $0

2019 $0 $0 $0

2018 $0 $0 $0

2017 $0 $0 $0

2016 $0 $0 $0

2015 $5,500 $0 $0

2014 $5,500 $0 $0

2013 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500

2012 $9,400 $9,400 $9,137

2011 $9,400 $9,400 $8,897

2010 $15,000 $15,000 $8,749

2009 $16,300 $16,300 $8,776

2008 $16,300 $16,300 $8,407

2007 $16,300 $16,300 $8,218

2006 $15,000 $15,000 $7,925

2005 $15,000 $15,000 $7,672



12/4/23, 4:03 PM Parcel Number - 050-750-000-042-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=1408+N+MALLARD+CIRCL… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code R-1 RES Total Acres 0.000
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

UNIT 42, WOODLAND TRAILS CONDOMINIUM

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

2003 $0 $0 $0

2002 $0 $0 $0

2001 $0 $0 $0

2000 $0 $0 $0

1999 $0 $0 $0

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

12/30/2013 $0.00 AFF STATE OF MICHIGAN MICHIGAN LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTH

21-NOT USED/OTHER Not Available

09/09/2005 $0.00 QC WOODSIDE WEST, LLC WOODSIDE BUILDERS,
INC

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



12/4/23, 4:00 PM Parcel Number - 050-535-000-001-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=Washington+park&uid=666… 1/2

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

Taxpayer SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND
BANK AUTH.
201 N SHIAWASSEE ST
CORUNNA, MI 48817

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 402 RESIDENTIAL-VACANT Unit 050 OWOSSO
School District OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $0
MAP # No Data to Display Taxable Value $0
OBRA # 0 State Equalized Value $0
DDA Not Available Date of Last Name Change Not Available
LDFA Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
TIFA Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date 05/01/1994

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

N WASHINGTON ST  OWOSSO, MI 48867    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 050-535-000-001-00

Property Owner:  SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK AUTH.
Summary Information
> Assessed Value: $0 | Taxable Value: $0
> Property Tax information found
> 4 Invoices Found, Amount Due: 0.00

> 2 Special Assessments found
> 12 Building Department records found

Item 2 of 2 2 Images / 0 Sketches

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $0 $0 $0

2021 $44,200 $44,200 $15,498

2020 $18,700 $18,700 $15,285

2019 $32,500 $15,000 $15,000

2018 $32,000 $32,000 $32,000

2017 $41,800 $41,800 $37,631

2016 $40,700 $40,700 $37,296

2015 $40,000 $40,000 $37,185

2014 $36,600 $36,600 $36,600

2013 $36,600 $36,600 $36,600

2012 $36,900 $36,900 $36,900

2011 $36,900 $36,900 $36,900

2010 $38,800 $38,800 $38,800

2009 $40,600 $40,600 $40,260

2008 $40,600 $40,600 $38,564

2007 $40,600 $40,600 $37,697

2006 $40,600 $40,600 $36,352

2005 $40,600 $40,600 $35,191

https://bsaonline.com/ASSG_Sketch/GetAttachment?id=Qx9VVia39uo%3d&uid=666
https://bsaonline.com/ASSG_Sketch/GetAttachment?id=Qx9VVia39uo%3d&uid=666
https://bsaonline.com/ASSG_Sketch/GetAttachment?id=Qx9VVia39uo%3d&uid=666


12/4/23, 4:00 PM Parcel Number - 050-535-000-001-00 | City of Owosso | BS&A Online

https://bsaonline.com/SiteSearch/SiteSearchDetails?SearchFocus=All+Records&SearchCategory=Address&SearchText=Washington+park&uid=666… 2/2

Land Information

Zoning Code RM-RES Total Acres 2.373
Land Value $0 Land Improvements $0
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood MULT RES - UNDER 12 UNITS Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments No Data to Display Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

COM 358' N & 33' W OF INTER S LN SEC 12 & C/L N WASH ST TH W 231' N 6' W 133.7' N 279' E 364.21' S 284' TO POB PART OF SE 1/4 SE 1/4 SEC 12T7N R2E

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2004 $34,400 $34,400 $34,400

2003 $34,300 $34,300 $33,799

2002 $33,300 $33,300 $33,300

2001 $33,300 $33,300 $33,024

2000 $32,000 $32,000 $32,000

1999 $32,000 $32,000 $32,000

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

Lot 1 284.00 ft 364.00 ft

  Total Frontage:  284.00 ft Average Depth:  364.00 ft

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

02/28/2023 $1.00 QC STATE OF MICHIGAN SHIAWASSEE COUNTY
LAND BANK AUTH.

13-GOVERNMENT Not Available

04/02/2021 $1.00 WD VOIGHT,JERRY S TRUSTEE STATE LAND BANK
AUTHORITY

03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

03/06/1996 $75,000.00 WD MID-MICHIGAN
CONSTRUCTION, CORP.

VOIGHT, JERRY S. TRUST 03-ARM'S LENGTH Not Available

http://www.bsasoftware.com/
seimers
Polygon



 

   
    

At achment C 

Tables 



Table 1. Eligible Activities
Woodland Trails Washington Park

Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority
Owosso, MI

AKT Peerless Project No. 17993f‐5‐25
As of March 6, 2024

ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES COST SUMMARY

County Costs City Costs
Developer 

Costs

Eligible Infrastructure Improvement Activities   1,006,407$       29,000$             150,000$           827,407$          

TOTAL NON‐ENVIRONMENTAL ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 1,006,407$       29,000$             150,000$           827,407$          

Total Environmental Eligible Activities 1,006,407$    29,000$          150,000$        827,407$       

15% Contingency on Eligible Activities 150,961$           4,350$               22,500$             124,111$          

Brownfield Plan Preparation 10,000$             10,000$             ‐$                        ‐$                       

Brownfield Plan Implementation 10,000$             10,000$             ‐$                        ‐$                       

Total Eligible Activities Cost with 15% Contingency 1,177,367$  53,350$        172,500$     951,517$    

County BRA Administration Fee 175,604$          

City BRA Administrative Fee 87,802$            

Local Brownfield Revolving Fund (LBRF) 315,266$          

Total Eligible Costs for Reimbursement 1,756,039$  53,350$        172,500$     951,517$    

Estimated 
Cost of 

Eligible Activity

1 of 8



Table 1. Eligible Activities
Woodland Trails Washington Park

Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority
Owosso, MI

AKT Peerless Project No. 17993f‐5‐25
As of March 6, 2024

ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES COST DETAIL

# of Units Unit Type
Cost/
Unit

 Est. Total Cost  County Costs City Costs
Developer 

Costs

Eligible Infrastructure Improvement Activities
Developer ‐ Road, Sanitary & Storm 
Mobilization, Max 10%, (Road and Sanitary & Storm) 1                    LSUM $27,400.00 27,400$            Developer Costs
Dr Structure, Rem 1                    Ea $500.00 500$                 Developer Costs
Sewer, Rem, Less than 24 inch 85                 Ft $10.00 850$                 Developer Costs
Curb and Gutter, Rem 105               Ft $10.00 1,050$              Developer Costs
Pavt, Rem 320               Syd $10.00 3,200$              Developer Costs
Embankment, CIP 249               Cyd $15.00 3,735$              Developer Costs
Excavation, Earth 155               Cyd $15.00 2,325$              Developer Costs
Subgrade Undercutting, Type II 100               Cyd $40.00 4,000$              Developer Costs
Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 11                 Ea $110.00 1,210$              Developer Costs
Subbase, CIP 22                 Cyd $40.00 880$                 Developer Costs
Aggregate Base, LM, Modified 230               Cyd $40.00 9,200$              Developer Costs
Aggregate Base, 6 inch, Modified 17                 Syd $16.00 272$                 Developer Costs
Aggregate Base, 8 inch, Modified 170               Syd $18.00 3,060$              Developer Costs
Aggregate Base, 9 inch, Modified 517               Syd $20.00 10,340$            Developer Costs
HMA Base Crushing and Shaping, Modified 1,757            Syd $3.50 6,150$              Developer Costs
Material, Surplus and Unsuitable, Rem, LM 100               Cyd $40.00 4,000$              Developer Costs
Salv Crushed Material, LM 25                 Cyd $30.00 750$                 Developer Costs
Asphalt Cement Stabilized Base, Modified 1,757            Syd $4.50 7,907$              Developer Costs
Ashpalt Cement Binder 2,811            Gal $4.50 12,650$            Developer Costs
Trenching, Modified 14                 Sta $400.00 5,600$              Developer Costs
Maintenance Gravel 50                 Ton $40.00 2,000$              Developer Costs
Shoulder, Cl I 41                 Ton $40.00 1,640$              Developer Costs
Sewer, SDR‐26, 6 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 26                 Ft $75.00 1,950$              Developer Costs
Sewer, SDR‐26, 8 inch, Tr Det B, Insulated, Modified 99                 Ft $135.00 13,365$            Developer Costs
Sewer, SDR‐26, 10 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 116               Ft $85.00 9,860$              Developer Costs
Sewer, SDR‐26, 10 inch, Tr Det B, Insulated, Modified 218               Ft $140.00 30,520$            Developer Costs
Sewer, SDR‐26, 12 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 35                 Ft $90.00 3,150$              Developer Costs
Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 6                    Ea $650.00 3,900$              Developer Costs
Dr Structure, Adj, Add Depth 3                    Ft $250.00 750$                 Developer Costs
Dr Structure Cover, EJ 1040 w/ Solid Gasket Sealed Cover 2                    Ea $850.00 1,700$              Developer Costs
Dr Structure Cover, EJ 1040 w/ Type O2 Beehive 3                    Ea $850.00 2,550$              Developer Costs
Dr Structure, 36 inch dia, Modified 2                    Ea $3,000.00 6,000$              Developer Costs
Dr Structure, 48 inch dia, Modified 1                    Ea $4,000.00 4,000$              Developer Costs

2 of 8



Table 1. Eligible Activities
Woodland Trails Washington Park

Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority
Owosso, MI

AKT Peerless Project No. 17993f‐5‐25
As of March 6, 2024

ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES COST DETAIL

# of Units Unit Type
Cost/
Unit

 Est. Total Cost  County Costs City Costs
Developer 

Costs
Dr Structure, 48 inch dia, Sanitary, Modified 1                    Ea $6,000.00 6,000$              Developer Costs
Dr Structure, Tap, 10 inch 1                    Ea $450.00 450$                 Developer Costs
Dr Structure, Tap, 12 inch 1                    Ea $600.00 600$                 Developer Costs
HMA, 3E3 391               Ton $100.00 39,100$            Developer Costs
HMA, 5E3 146               Ton $110.00 16,060$            Developer Costs
HMA Approach 40                 Ton $140.00 5,600$              Developer Costs
Cement 2                    Ton $250.00 500$                 Developer Costs
Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 inch 104               Syd $70.00 7,280$              Developer Costs
Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 9 inch 66                 Syd $90.00 5,940$              Developer Costs
Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4, Modified 45                 Ft $30.00 1,350$              Developer Costs
Barricade, Type III, High Intensity, Double Sided, Lighted, Furn & Oper 3                    Ea $150.00 450$                 Developer Costs
Lighted Arrow, Type C, Furn & Oper 2                    Ea $500.00 1,000$              Developer Costs
Minor Traf Devices, Max $10,000 1                    LSUM $10,000.00 10,000$            Developer Costs
Plastic Drum, Fluorescent, Furn and Oper 25                 Ea $25.00 625$                 Developer Costs
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn and Oper 96                 Sft $6.00 576$                 Developer Costs
Pedestrian Type II Barricade, Temp 2                    Ea $150.00 300$                 Developer Costs
Turf Establishment, Performance 1,749            Syd $7.00 12,243$            Developer Costs
Gate Box, Adj, Temp, Case 1 1                    Ea $500.00 500$                 Developer Costs
Post, Mailbox 4                    Ea $150.00 600$                 Developer Costs
Audio Visual Filming, Pre‐construction 1                    LSUM $2,750.00 2,750$              Developer Costs
Audio Visual Filming, Post‐construction 1                    LSUM $2,750.00 2,750$              Developer Costs
Washington Park Lift Station & Force Main 1                    LSUM $223,000.00 223,000$          Developer Costs
Developer ‐ Water Main 
Mobilization, Max 10%, (Water Main) 1                    LSUM 25,800$       25,800$            Developer Costs
Testing and Chlorination of Water Main 1                    LSUM 5,500$         5,500$              Developer Costs
Connect to Ex. Water Main 3                    Ea 3,300$         9,900$              Developer Costs
Water Main, C909 PVC, 6 inch, TB Detail G, Modified 226               Lf 85$                19,210$            Developer Costs
Water Main, C909 PVC, 8 inch, TB Detail G, Modified 980               Lf 100$             98,000$            Developer Costs
Water Main, C900 PVC, 8 inch, Bore 330               Lf 125$             41,250$            Developer Costs
Water Main, C909 PVC, 12 inch, TB Detail G, Modified 10                 Lf 150$             1,500$              Developer Costs
Water Main, Rem 60                 Lf 10$                600$                 Developer Costs
Existing Valve with Valve Box Removal 1                    Ea 300$             300$                 Developer Costs
Gate Valve and Box, 6 inch, Modified 1                    Ea 1,750$         1,750$              Developer Costs
Gate Valve and Box, 8 inch, Modified 3                    Ea 2,500$         7,500$              Developer Costs
Fire Hydrant and Valve Assembly 5                    Ea 6,600$         33,000$            Developer Costs

3 of 8



Table 1. Eligible Activities
Woodland Trails Washington Park

Shiawassee County Land Bank Authority
Owosso, MI

AKT Peerless Project No. 17993f‐5‐25
As of March 6, 2024

ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES COST DETAIL

# of Units Unit Type
Cost/
Unit

 Est. Total Cost  County Costs City Costs
Developer 

Costs
1 inch Copper Service Lead, Type "K", Modified 141               Ft 70$                9,870$              Developer Costs
Curb Box, Stop, 1 inch Corporation Stop Connection, Modified 17                 Ea 1,300$         22,100$            Developer Costs
Sign, Type III, Rem 5                    Ea 50$                250$                 Developer Costs
Sign, Type III. Erect, Salv 5                    Ea 60$                300$                 Developer Costs
Turf Establishment, Performance 920               Syd 7$                  6,440$              Developer Costs
Additional Developer Incurred Costs
Woodland Trails ‐ Soft Costs 1                    LSUM 10,000$       10,000$            Developer Costs
Washington Park Soft Costs 1                    LSUM 10,000$       10,000$            Developer Costs
Shiawassee County
Land Bank Incurred Soft Costs 1                    LSUM 29,000$       29,000$            County Costs
City of Owosso Costs
Chip our existing flow channel and install new 2                    Ea 10,000$       20,000$            City Costs
Remove and replace pipe 1                    LSUM 100,000$     100,000$          City Costs
Engineering Project Management 1                    LSUM 25,000$       30,000$            City Costs

subtotal 1,006,407$    
Brownfield Plan & Act 381 Work Plan County Costs City Costs Developer Costs

Brownfield Plan 1                    LS 10,000$       10,000$            10,000.00$     
Implementation 1                    LS 10,000$       10,000$            10,000.00$     

subtotal 20,000$          

4 of 8



Table 2. Tax Increment Revenue Estimates
Woodland Trails Washington Park

Owosso, MI
AKT Peerless Project No. 17993f‐5‐25

As of March 6, 2024Estimated TV Increase rate:  1.01
Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Final Phase

Plan Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
Calendar Year 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039

Phase 1 Transfer (2 Parcels) 20,000$       350,200$     353,702$      357,239$     360,811$     364,420$     368,064$     371,744$     375,462$     379,216$     383,009$      386,839$      390,707$     394,614$     398,560$    
Phase 2 Transfer (4 Parcels) ‐$              40,000$       700,400$      707,404$     714,478$     721,623$     728,839$     736,127$     743,489$     750,924$     758,433$      766,017$      773,677$     781,414$     789,228$    
Phase 3 Transfer (4 Parcels) ‐$              ‐$              40,000$         700,400$     707,404$     714,478$     721,623$     728,839$     736,127$     743,489$     750,924$      758,433$      766,017$     773,677$     781,414$    
Phase 4 Transfer (4 Parcels) ‐$              ‐$              ‐$               40,000$        700,400$     707,404$     714,478$     721,623$     728,839$     736,127$     743,489$      750,924$      758,433$     766,017$     773,677$    
Total TV Subject to 5‐50 20,000$       390,200$     1,094,102$   1,805,043$   2,483,093$  2,143,505$  1,436,101$  721,623$     ‐$              ‐$              ‐$               ‐$               ‐$              ‐$              ‐$             

Total TV Subject to Brownfield 20,000$       390,200$     1,094,102$   1,805,043$   2,483,093$  2,507,924$  2,533,004$  2,558,334$  2,583,917$  2,609,756$  2,635,854$   2,662,212$   2,688,834$  2,715,723$  2,742,880$ 
Post‐Dev TV (Developer Estimated) Estimated New TV 20,000$       390,200$     1,094,102$   1,805,043$   2,483,093$  2,507,924$  2,533,004$  2,558,334$  2,583,917$  2,609,756$  2,635,854$   2,662,212$   2,688,834$  2,715,723$  2,742,880$ 

Incremental Difference (New TV ‐ Initial TV) 20,000$       390,200$     1,094,102$   1,805,043$   2,483,093$  2,507,924$  2,533,004$  2,558,334$  2,583,917$  2,609,756$  2,635,854$   2,662,212$   2,688,834$  2,715,723$  2,742,880$ 

School Capture ‐ Only During 5/50 Millage Rate

60$               1,171$         3,282$           5,415$          7,449$          12,861$        8,617$          4,330$         

Local Capture Millage Rate
Incremental 39$               768$             2,153$           3,552$          4,886$          4,935$          4,985$          5,035$          5,085$          5,136$          5,187$           5,239$           5,291$          5,344$          5,398$         
Incremental 10$               190$             534$              881$             1,212$          1,224$          1,236$          1,248$          1,261$          1,273$          1,286$           1,299$           1,312$          1,325$          1,338$         
Incremental 2$                 39$               109$              181$             248$             251$             253$             256$             258$             261$             264$              266$              269$             272$             274$            
Incremental 4$                 76$               214$              353$             486$             491$             495$             500$             505$             510$             516$              521$              526$             531$             537$            
Incremental 1$                 29$               81$                 133$             184$             185$             187$             189$             191$             193$             195$              197$              199$             201$             203$            
Incremental 5$                 93$               261$              430$             592$             598$             604$             610$             616$             622$             628$              635$              641$             647$             654$            
Incremental 83$               1,610$         4,514$           7,448$          10,245$        10,348$        10,451$        10,556$        10,661$        10,768$        10,876$         10,984$         11,094$        11,205$        11,317$       
Incremental 20$               390$             1,094$           1,805$          2,483$          2,508$          2,533$          2,558$          2,584$          2,610$          2,636$           2,662$           2,689$          2,716$          2,743$         
Incremental 25$               488$             1,368$           2,256$          3,104$          3,135$          3,166$          3,198$          3,230$          3,262$          3,295$           3,328$           3,361$          3,395$          3,429$         
Incremental 254$             4,952$         13,886$         22,909$        31,515$        31,830$        32,149$        32,470$        32,795$        33,123$        33,454$         33,789$         34,126$        34,468$        34,812$       
Incremental 20$               390$             1,094$           1,805$          2,483$          2,508$          2,533$          2,558$          2,584$          2,610$          2,636$           2,662$           2,689$          2,716$          2,743$         
Incremental 3$                 59$               164$              271$             372$             376$             380$             384$             388$             391$             395$              399$              403$             407$             411$            
Incremental 108$             2,116$         5,932$           9,787$          13,463$        13,598$        13,734$        13,871$        14,010$        14,150$        14,292$         14,435$         14,579$        14,725$        14,872$       

Local Total 28.7036

Total Local Tax Increment Revenue Capture 287$             5,600$         15,702$         25,906$        35,637$        71,986$        72,706$        73,433$        74,168$        74,909$        75,658$         76,415$         77,179$        77,951$        78,731$       
287$             5,600$         15,702$         25,906$        35,637$        30,763$        20,611$        10,357$       

Non‐Capturable Millages Millage Rate
SCHOOL DEBT 4.7300 New TV 95$               1,846$         5,175$           8,538$          11,745$        11,862$        11,981$        12,101$        12,222$        12,344$        12,468$         12,592$         12,718$        12,845$        12,974$       
CITY DEBT 2.6784 New TV 54$               1,045$         2,930$           4,835$          6,651$          6,717$          6,784$          6,852$          6,921$          6,990$          7,060$           7,130$           7,202$          7,274$          7,347$         

Total Non‐Capturable Taxes 7.4084

74$               1,445$         4,053$           6,686$          9,198$          7,940$          5,320$          2,673$         

421$             8,216$         23,037$         38,007$        52,284$        51,564$        34,547$        17,359$       
421$             8,637$         31,675$         69,682$        121,966$     173,530$     208,077$     225,436$     Totals

SLBA Annual Portion 211$             4,108$         11,519$         19,003$        26,142$        25,782$        17,273$        8,680$          112,718$    
SCLBA Annual Portion 211$             4,108$         11,519$         19,003$        26,142$        25,782$        17,273$        8,680$          112,718$    

Cumulative 5/50

5/50 Rule

Total Local Tax 5/50 Capture

Total Debt Tax 5/50 Capture

Total School Tax 5/50 Capture

Total Annual 5/50 Capture Value

COUNTY OPERATING 5.4220

CITY OPERATING 12.6919
PA 298 1.0000
SATA 0.1500

SRESD CTE 1.0000
LIBRARY 1.2500

MSU EXT 0.0739
SRESD 0.2384
SRESD SP ED 4.1260

SENIOR SERV 0.4879
VET PA214 0.1000
VET SERV 0.1956

SHIA MCF 1.9679

1 of 2



Table 2. Tax Increment Revenue Estimates
Woodland Trails Washington Park

Owosso, MI
AKT Peerless Project No. 17993f‐5‐25

As of March 6, 2024Estimated TV Increase rate: 

Plan Year
Calendar Year

Phase 1 Transfer (2 Parcels)
Phase 2 Transfer (4 Parcels)
Phase 3 Transfer (4 Parcels)
Phase 4 Transfer (4 Parcels)
Total TV Subject to 5‐50

Total TV Subject to Brownfield
Post‐Dev TV (Developer Estimated) Estimated New TV

Incremental Difference (New TV ‐ Initial TV)

School Capture ‐ Only During 5/50 Millage Rate

Local Capture Millage Rate
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental
Incremental

Local Total 28.7036

Total Local Tax Increment Revenue Capture

Non‐Capturable Millages Millage Rate
SCHOOL DEBT 4.7300 New TV
CITY DEBT 2.6784 New TV

Total Non‐Capturable Taxes 7.4084

SLBA Annual Portion
SCLBA Annual Portion

Cumulative 5/50

Total Local Tax 5/50 Capture

Total Debt Tax 5/50 Capture

Total School Tax 5/50 Capture

Total Annual 5/50 Capture Value

COUNTY OPERATING 5.4220

CITY OPERATING 12.6919
PA 298 1.0000
SATA 0.1500

SRESD CTE 1.0000
LIBRARY 1.2500

MSU EXT 0.0739
SRESD 0.2384
SRESD SP ED 4.1260

SENIOR SERV 0.4879
VET PA214 0.1000
VET SERV 0.1956

SHIA MCF 1.9679

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
2040 2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046 2047 2048 2049 2050 2051 2052 2053 2054
402,546$      406,571$      410,637$      414,743$     418,891$     423,080$     427,311$     431,584$     435,899$     440,258$     444,661$      449,108$      453,599$     458,135$     462,716$    
797,121$      805,092$      813,143$      821,274$     829,487$     837,782$     846,160$     854,621$     863,167$     871,799$     880,517$      889,322$      898,215$     907,198$     916,269$    
789,228$      797,121$      805,092$      813,143$     821,274$     829,487$     837,782$     846,160$     854,621$     863,167$     871,799$      880,517$      889,322$     898,215$     907,198$    
781,414$      789,228$      797,121$      805,092$     813,143$     821,274$     829,487$     837,782$     846,160$     854,621$     863,167$      871,799$      880,517$     889,322$     898,215$    

‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$              ‐$              ‐$              ‐$              ‐$              ‐$              ‐$              ‐$               ‐$               ‐$              ‐$              ‐$             

2,770,309$   2,798,012$   2,825,992$   2,854,252$   2,882,794$  2,911,622$  2,940,739$  2,970,146$  2,999,847$  3,029,846$  3,060,144$   3,090,746$   3,121,653$  3,152,870$  3,184,398$ 
2,770,309$   2,798,012$   2,825,992$   2,854,252$   2,882,794$  2,911,622$  2,940,739$  2,970,146$  2,999,847$  3,029,846$  3,060,144$   3,090,746$   3,121,653$  3,152,870$  3,184,398$ 
2,770,309$   2,798,012$   2,825,992$   2,854,252$   2,882,794$  2,911,622$  2,940,739$  2,970,146$  2,999,847$  3,029,846$  3,060,144$   3,090,746$   3,121,653$  3,152,870$  3,184,398$ 

5,452$           5,506$           5,561$           5,617$          5,673$          5,730$          5,787$          5,845$          5,903$          5,962$          6,022$           6,082$           6,143$          6,205$          6,267$         
1,352$           1,365$           1,379$           1,393$          1,407$          1,421$          1,435$          1,449$          1,464$          1,478$          1,493$           1,508$           1,523$          1,538$          1,554$         

277$              280$              283$              285$             288$             291$             294$             297$             300$             303$             306$              309$              312$             315$             318$            
542$              547$              553$              558$             564$             570$             575$             581$             587$             593$             599$              605$              611$             617$             623$            
205$              207$              209$              211$             213$             215$             217$             219$             222$             224$             226$              228$              231$             233$             235$            
660$              667$              674$              680$             687$             694$             701$             708$             715$             722$             730$              737$              744$             752$             759$            

11,430$         11,545$         11,660$         11,777$        11,894$        12,013$        12,133$        12,255$        12,377$        12,501$        12,626$         12,752$         12,880$        13,009$        13,139$       
2,770$           2,798$           2,826$           2,854$          2,883$          2,912$          2,941$          2,970$          3,000$          3,030$          3,060$           3,091$           3,122$          3,153$          3,184$         
3,463$           3,498$           3,532$           3,568$          3,603$          3,640$          3,676$          3,713$          3,750$          3,787$          3,825$           3,863$           3,902$          3,941$          3,980$         

35,160$         35,512$         35,867$         36,226$        36,588$        36,954$        37,324$        37,697$        38,074$        38,455$        38,839$         39,227$         39,620$        40,016$        40,416$       
2,770$           2,798$           2,826$           2,854$          2,883$          2,912$          2,941$          2,970$          3,000$          3,030$          3,060$           3,091$           3,122$          3,153$          3,184$         

416$              420$              424$              428$             432$             437$             441$             446$             450$             454$             459$              464$              468$             473$             478$            
15,021$         15,171$         15,323$         15,476$        15,631$        15,787$        15,945$        16,104$        16,265$        16,428$        16,592$         16,758$         16,926$        17,095$        17,266$       

79,518$         80,313$         81,116$         81,927$        82,747$        83,574$        84,410$        85,254$        86,106$        86,967$        87,837$         88,716$         89,603$        90,499$        91,404$       

13,104$         13,235$         13,367$         13,501$        13,636$        13,772$        13,910$        14,049$        14,189$        14,331$        14,474$         14,619$         14,765$        14,913$        15,062$       
7,420$           7,494$           7,569$           7,645$          7,721$          7,798$          7,876$          7,955$          8,035$          8,115$          8,196$           8,278$           8,361$          8,445$          8,529$         

2 of 2



Table 3. Reimbursement Allocation Schedule
Woodland Trails Washington Park

Owosso, MI
AKT Peerless Project No. 17993f‐5‐25

As of March 6, 2024

County & City 
Reimbursement

Developer 
Reimbursement

Total

53,350$                   1,004,867$             
172,500$                 172,500$                

TOTAL 225,850$                 951,517$                 1,177,367$             

Plan Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Calendar Year 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035

State TIR Available for Reimbursement ‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        

Total Local Incremental Revenue 287$                         5,600$                      15,702$                  25,906$                  35,637$                  71,986$                  72,706$                  73,433$                   74,168$                  74,909$                  75,658$                 
County BRA Administrative Fee (10%) 29$                           560$                         1,570$                     2,591$                     3,564$                     7,199$                     7,271$                     7,343$                      7,417$                     7,491$                     7,566$                    
City BRA Administrative Fee (5%) 14$                           280$                         785$                        1,295$                     1,782$                     3,599$                     3,635$                     3,672$                      3,708$                     3,745$                     3,783$                    
Local TIR Available for Reimbursement 244$                         4,760$                     13,347$                  22,020$                  30,291$                  61,188$                  61,800$                  62,418$                   63,043$                  63,673$                  64,310$                 

Total State & Local TIR Available 244$                         4,760$                     13,347$                   22,020$                   30,291$                   61,188$                   61,800$                   62,418$                   63,043$                   63,673$                   64,310$                  

DEVELOPER Reimbursement Balance 1,177,367$             1,177,123$             1,172,363$             1,159,016$             1,136,997$            1,106,705$            1,045,517$            983,716$               921,298$                858,256$               794,583$               730,273$              

COUNTY Reimbursement Balance 53,350$                   53,106$                   48,346$                   34,999$                  12,979$                  ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                       
Eligible Activities Reimbursement 53,350$                   244$                         4,760$                      13,347$                  22,020$                  12,979$                  ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        
Total COUNTY TIR Reimbursement 244$                         4,760$                     13,347$                  22,020$                  12,979$                  ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        

CITY Reimbursement Balance 172,500$                172,500$                172,500$                172,500$                172,500$                155,188$                93,999$                   32,199$                   ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        
Eligible Activities Reimbursement 172,500$                 ‐$                          ‐$                         17,312$                  61,188$                  61,800$                  32,199$                   ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        
Total CITY TIR Reimbursement ‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         17,312$                  61,188$                  61,800$                  32,199$                   ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        

DEVELOPER Reimbursement Balance 951,517$                951,517$                951,517$                951,517$                951,517$                951,517$                951,517$                951,517$                921,298$                858,256$                794,583$                730,273$               
Eligible Activities Reimbursement 951,517$                 ‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         30,219$                   63,043$                  63,673$                  64,310$                 
Total DEVELOPER TIR Reimbursement ‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         30,219$                   63,043$                  63,673$                  64,310$                 

Total Annual Developer Reimbursement 244$                         4,760$                     13,347$                   22,020$                   30,291$                   61,188$                   61,800$                   62,418$                   63,043$                   63,673$                   64,310$                  

LBRF Year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
LBRF Deposits ‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        

LOCAL no maximum ‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        

LOCAL BROWNFIELD REVOLV. FUND

5/50 Rule

Developer Maximum Reimbursement 

County

City
951,517$                 Estimated Total Years of Plan: 26

DEVELOPER
Beginning 
Balance

1 of 3



Table 3. Reimbursement Allocation Schedule
Woodland Trails Washington Park

Owosso, MI
AKT Peerless Project No. 17993f‐5‐25

As of March 6, 2024

Plan Year
Calendar Year

State TIR Available for Reimbursement

Total Local Incremental Revenue
County BRA Administrative Fee (10%)
City BRA Administrative Fee (5%)
Local TIR Available for Reimbursement

Total State & Local TIR Available

DEVELOPER Reimbursement Balance 1,177,367$            

COUNTY Reimbursement Balance 53,350$                  
Eligible Activities Reimbursement 53,350$                  
Total COUNTY TIR Reimbursement

CITY Reimbursement Balance 172,500$               
Eligible Activities Reimbursement 172,500$                
Total CITY TIR Reimbursement

DEVELOPER Reimbursement Balance 951,517$               
Eligible Activities Reimbursement 951,517$                
Total DEVELOPER TIR Reimbursement

Total Annual Developer Reimbursement

LBRF Year
LBRF Deposits

LOCAL no maximum

LOCAL BROWNFIELD REVOLV. FUND

DEVELOPER
Beginning 
Balance

Estimated Capture
County Administrative Fees  175,604$                

City Administrative Fees 87,802$                  

LBRF 315,266$                

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046

‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        

76,415$                   77,179$                   77,951$                  78,731$                  79,518$                  80,313$                  81,116$                  81,927$                   82,747$                  83,574$                  84,410$                 
7,642$                      7,718$                      7,795$                     7,873$                     7,952$                     8,031$                     8,112$                     8,193$                      8,275$                     8,357$                     8,441$                    
3,821$                      3,859$                      3,898$                     3,937$                     3,976$                     4,016$                     4,056$                     4,096$                      4,137$                     4,179$                     4,220$                    

64,953$                   65,602$                   66,258$                  66,921$                  67,590$                  68,266$                  68,949$                  69,638$                   70,335$                  71,038$                  71,748$                 

64,953$                   65,602$                   66,258$                   66,921$                   67,590$                   68,266$                   68,949$                   69,638$                   70,335$                   71,038$                   71,748$                  

665,320$                599,718$                533,459$               466,538$               398,948$               330,682$               261,733$               192,095$                121,761$               50,723$                 (0)$                         

‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                       
‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        
‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        

‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        
‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        
‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        

665,320$                599,718$                533,459$                466,538$                398,948$                330,682$                261,733$                192,095$                121,761$                50,723$                   (0)$                          
64,953$                   65,602$                   66,258$                  66,921$                  67,590$                  68,266$                  68,949$                  69,638$                   70,335$                  71,038$                  50,723$                 
64,953$                   65,602$                   66,258$                  66,921$                  67,590$                  68,266$                  68,949$                  69,638$                   70,335$                  71,038$                  50,723$                 

64,953$                   65,602$                   66,258$                   66,921$                   67,590$                   68,266$                   68,949$                   69,638$                   70,335$                   71,038$                   50,723$                  

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         21,026$                 
‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                         21,026$                 

2 of 3



Table 3. Reimbursement Allocation Schedule
Woodland Trails Washington Park

Owosso, MI
AKT Peerless Project No. 17993f‐5‐25

As of March 6, 2024

Plan Year
Calendar Year

State TIR Available for Reimbursement

Total Local Incremental Revenue
County BRA Administrative Fee (10%)
City BRA Administrative Fee (5%)
Local TIR Available for Reimbursement

Total State & Local TIR Available

DEVELOPER Reimbursement Balance 1,177,367$            

COUNTY Reimbursement Balance 53,350$                 
Eligible Activities Reimbursement 53,350$                 
Total COUNTY TIR Reimbursement

CITY Reimbursement Balance 172,500$               
Eligible Activities Reimbursement 172,500$               
Total CITY TIR Reimbursement

DEVELOPER Reimbursement Balance 951,517$               
Eligible Activities Reimbursement 951,517$               
Total DEVELOPER TIR Reimbursement

Total Annual Developer Reimbursement

LBRF Year
LBRF Deposits

LOCAL no maximum

LOCAL BROWNFIELD REVOLV. FUND

DEVELOPER
Beginning 
Balance

End Plan
23 24 25 26

2047 2048 2049 2050
‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         

85,254$                  86,106$                  86,967$                  87,837$                  1,325,464$             
8,525$                     8,611$                     8,697$                     8,784$                     175,604$                
4,263$                     4,305$                     4,348$                     4,392$                     87,802$                  

72,466$                  73,190$                  73,922$                  74,662$                  1,126,645$             

72,466$                   73,190$                   73,922$                   74,662$                   1,126,645$             

(0)$                          (0)$                          (0)$                          (0)$                         

‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                       
‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         53,350$                  
‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         53,350$                  

‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                        
‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         172,500$                
‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         172,500$                

(0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                           (0)$                          
‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         951,517$                
‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                         951,517$                

‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                          ‐$                          1,177,367$             

2 3 4 5
72,466$                  73,190$                  73,922$                  74,662$                  ‐$                         
72,466$                  73,190$                  73,922$                  74,662$                 

TOTAL

3 of 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
  301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: March 12, 2024                  
 
TO: Mayor Robert Teich Jr, City Council, and Manager Nathan Henne   
 
FROM:   Michael Dowler, Assessor  
  
RE:  Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 300 W. Main Street 
 
 
The city clerk has received an application for tax abatement as required under the city’s 
abatement policy on March 11, 2024.  The request specifically asks for an Obsolete 
Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (OPRA Certificate). 
 
The OPRA abatement, governed by Public Act 146 of 2000, is a tax abatement which 
freezes the existing taxable value on a designated facility prior to rehabilitation for up to 
12 years.  The rehabilitated facility value will not be fully taxable until the abatement is no 
longer in place.  The proposed project is to renovate the 2-story 7,000 square foot building 
with two apartment residences, real estate office, and restaurant space. This will increase 
downtown private residence availability and small business space.  The estimated cost 
for this redevelopment is $1,200,000.  
 
The council approved an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District for this property on 
April 18, 2016.  With the district already in place the city council is set to schedule a public 
hearing to consider the application for tax exemption. 
 
It is recommended by staff that the city council set a public hearing for April 15, 2024, for 
input from the public both within and out of the district.  The city clerk will send notice to 
all taxing jurisdictions as required by the statute and the city’s tax abatement policy. 
 
MASTER PLAN GOALS:  1.19, 3.20, 5.13 

 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER APPLICATION FOR  

AN OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE  
FOR THE PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS 300 W. MAIN STREET 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso received application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption 
Certificate on March 11, 2024 from Shook Riverside Development LLC; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso approved a request to establish an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation 
District on April 18, 2016 for the property described as:  
 

PART OF ORIGINAL PLAT DESCRIBED AS; SOUTH 1/2 BLOCK 24 & SOUTH 10' OF NORTH 1/2 
BLOCK 24, ALSO ADJACENT RESERVE 1, LYING BETWEEN EAST BANK OF SHIAWASSEE RIVER 

AND SAID DESCRIPTION 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing must be held and it must be determined that approval of the Obsolete 
Property Rehabilitation Certificate would be beneficial to the City of Owosso, as well as local and regional 
economy. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: the Owosso City Council sets a public hearing for April 15, 2024 at or about 7:30 p.m. in 
the council chambers for the purpose of hearing comments for those within the district, 
and any other resident or taxpayer, of the City of Owosso. 

 
SECOND: the city clerk gives the notifications as required by law. 
 
THIRD: the city staff is directed to investigate and determine if the qualifications of the act are 

satisfied and report findings at the hearing. 













3/27/2024

To be attached to and in regards to OPRA Application - 300 W. Main St -
Shook Riverside Development to address 2d

To City Council:

This project is not at all financially feasible without the OPRA certificate. We
are pushing forward, counting on this tax abatement to assist in making the
project possible. Without it, the project will come to a halt. We need the
city’s support to ensure the project can be completed at all, and certainly in
a timely manner. Our first phase is to secure and restore the blighted site
and exterior and in order to keep moving on to complete the project within a
2 year period we need the OPRA certificate. Otherwise, the project will
have to stop and go back on hold indefinitely.

We are looking forward to working with the city in the rehabilitation of this
project with the approval of the OPRA Certificate and appreciate the
council’s support as we work together for community progress.

Respectfully,
Kori and Josh Shook
Shook Riverside Development





 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: April 1, 2024 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Clayton Wehner, Director of Engineering 
 
SUBJECT: Annual Michigan Department of Transportation Street Inventory and Mileage 
 Certification  
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Approval of resolution to remove Division Street within the Huron & Eastern railroad right-of-way 
between Monroe Street and Corunna Avenue from the Michigan Department of Transportation 
(MDOT) local street inventory. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Each year the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) requests street inventory validation 
from municipalities for Act-51 funding distribution purposes.  Division Street within the Huron & 
Eastern railroad right-of-way between Monroe Street and Corunna Avenue has been closed since 
1974, but never formally submitted to MDOT for removal from the local street inventory.  To 
complete the process for removal from inventory, a resolution must be prepared for submission to 
MDOT.    
 
FISCAL IMPACTS  
 
Act-51 maintenance funds received from the State of Michigan will be slightly reduced for local 
streets. 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 
  (2) Map 
  (3) 6/3/1974 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 
MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION GOALS:  
  

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE DECERTIFICATION/VACATION  
OF A PORTION OF DIVISION STREET  

FOR THE PURPOSE OF UPDATING THE LOCAL STREET INVENTORY  
UNDER PUBLIC ACT 51 OF 1951  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, did on June 3, 1974 close Division Street 
within the railroad right-of-way between Monroe Street and Corunna Avenue; and   
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to furnish certain information to the State of Michigan to remove this street 
from the local street inventory as required under Act 51, P.A. 1951 as amended. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: a 108.66’ portion of Division Street within the railroad right-of-way between Monroe Street 
and Corunna Avenue is hereby decertified/vacated from the MDOT local street inventory. 



113

OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL

June 3,   1974 Regular Meeting 7: 30 P. M.

City .Hall

OPENING PRAYER:    Dr.  Ed Bunnell,  John Wesley College
PRESIDING OFFICER:    Mayor Leon Montague

PRESENT:    His Honor Mayor Montague,   Councilmen Collamer,

Dvorak,  Hood,   Seats,  Hathaway,  Councilwoman Teich

ABSENT:      None

Motion by Councilman Dvorak,   supported by Councilman
Collamer that the minutes of May 20,   1974 be approved as

submitted by unanimous vote.

COMMUNICATIONS
114- 23

1.    SHIAWASSEE COUNCIL ON AGING  -  Request the opportunity
to present the project of a Senior Citizens Center.

Councilwoman Teich explained the project and needs of

senior citizens through the pse of a center.

Motion by Councilwoman Teich that the City Council go
on record approving a fund raising drive to raise
funds to purchase the property at 119 Hoyt Street for
the purpose of a Senior Citizen Center and the Council

consider on a limited basis allocation of monies for

the purchase of recreational equipment for the Center.

Motion supported by Councilman Hood and concurred in
by unanimous vote.

115- 23

2 .    SHIAWASSEE COUNTY HEALTH DEPT.  -  Water Service Request

to Fred Sterba,   1926 Owosso Ave.

Motion by Councilman Dvorak to advise the staff to
accomodate the request for a water service.    Motion

supported by Councilman Hood and concurred in by
unanimous vote.

116- 23

3.    PLANNING COMMISSION  -  Tentative approval of Preliminary
Plat of Southeast Owosso Industrial Park dated March,

1974 by resolution by the City Planning Commission
meeting held on May 28,   1974.    Motion by Councilman
Dvorak to approve the tentative Preliminary Plat as
presented by the Planning Commission to the Council of
the Industrial Site.  • Motion supported by Councilman
Seats and concurred in by unanimous vote.

4.    Mrs.  Robert Coon  -  Regarding the  " Old Country Festival"
in July,  beer will be available in the public parking
lot for this family type entertainment.    After discussion

with Mr.  Miner of the River Improvement Association,

Councilman Dvorak moved that the City Council,   City
Manager,  Chief of Police and representatives of the

Festival have a noon meeting to discuss the matter
fully in order to resolve the matter.    Motion supported

by Councilman Collamer and concurred in by unanimous vote.

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

Motion by Councilman Dvorak that the reports of the Public
Services,  Fire Dept. ,  Mid- County Ambulances,  Building
Inspector,  Financial Statements be accepted as submitted.

Motion supported by Councilwoman Teich and concurred in by
unanimous vote.

1 6- 3- 74



114

117- 23

PLANNED USE REPORT  -  REVENUE SHARING

Th'e' Proposed.' Planned Use-: Report;  July. 'i;  1974 -  June 30,

1975' was' presente'd' to the Council by the City Manager.
Motion by Councilman Collamer to approve the Planned
Use Report as presented.    Motion supported by Council-
woman Teich and concurred in bye unanimous vote.

PUBLIC HEARING  -  REZONING 150 JWesley Drive OS1 to RM1
118- 23

Planning Commission recommended tie, rezoning.    Mid-

Michigan Construction Company requested a delay of the
decision on the rezoning of 150 Wesley Drive.

The hearing was opened to the Public and after discussion
by the Council motion by Councilman Dvorak that the
Public Hearing be adjourned to the regular meeting of
July 1,   1974.    Motion supported by Councilman Hood and
concurred in by unanimous vote: /  /

PUBLIC HEARING  -  REZONING  -  1014 to 1110 Beehler from
119- 23 R- 1 to RM- 2

Planning Commission recommended against the rezoning.
Mr.  Don McCarthy requested the rezoning be withdrawn.

WHEREAS,  the City Council after due and legal notice has
met and heard all persons to be affected by the rezoning,
motion by Councilman Dvorak that the rezoning be denied.
Motion supported by Councilman Hathaway and concurred in
by unanimous vote.

CITIZENS APPEARING BEFORE THE COUNCIL
120- 23

Mrs.  Norma Wheeker,  representing the Humane Society of
Hibbard Road that they are interested in approximately
2 a acres of City- owned land adjacent to Rosevear Park
for a new animal shelter.    Motion by Councilman Seats
that this subject be referred to the City Manager and
staff for their evaluations and possible alternatives
and comments.    Motion supported by Councilwoman Teich and
concurred in by unanimous vote.

121- 23
Arla Maloney requested permission to s art a car service
for only Senior Citizens.    City Attorney,  Lewis Benson
ruled that this would come under Taxi- Cab operation and

it would be necessary for Miss Maloney to make application
to the City Clerk and then it would have to be presented
to the Council for their approval.

Mayor Montague called for a recess .at 9:. 30 P. M:

PETITION  -  John Wesley College to construct Curb and
Gutter and Surfacing 121- 23   •

The following preamble and resolution were offered by
Councilman Seats and supported by Councilman Dvorak:  

WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Owosso deems it
necessary to acquire and construct the following described
improvement:

Concrete Curb and Gutter and Surfacing on
South St.  between Shiawassee St.  and

Palmer Street.

2 6- 3- 74



115

NOW,  THEREFORE,   BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1.    The matter of making said public improvements is
hereby referred to the City Manager,  who shall
prepare a report- thereon,  which shall include

plans and detailed estimates of the cost thereof,
an estimate of the life thereof and a description

of the special assessment district and such other

pertinent information as will permit the City
Council to decide the cost,  extent and necessity
of the public improvement and what proportion of

the cost should be paid by special assessment and
what part,   if any,   should be paid by the City at
large.

2.    The City Manager shall present said report to the
City Council when the same has been prepared.

AYES:    Councilmen Collamer,  Dvorak,  Hood,   Seats,

Hathaway,  Councilwoman Teich,  Mayor Montague

NAYS:    None

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

City Clerk

BIDS,  QUOTATIONS AND PURCHASES

REFUSE SERVICE BIDS      /

Motion by Councilman Seats that this continue on old
business and the staff verify the quantity of receptacles.
Motion died for lack of a second.

Motionib  • Councilman Collamer' supported by' Councilman
Dvorak to award to .the. low. bidder, ' Owosso• Refuse,   for

the Refuse Service collections for the following:

125 Trash receptacles on City Streets. -    $2; 405. 00 a year
60 Trash cans in City Parks 932. 40 a year

6 Load- All containers 1, 512 . 00 a year
25 Trash cans in City Parking Lots   .     • 962 . 00 a year

5, 811. 40 a year

The cost be adjusted after verification of the number of

cans.

AYES:    Councilmen Collamer,  Dvorak,  Seats,  Hathaway,
Councilwoman Teich,  Mayor Montague

NAYS:     Councilman Hood

CATCH BASIN CURB INLET AND CAST IRON MANHOLD FRAME WITH

SOLID LID BIDS
123- 23

Motion by Councilman Seats to award to the low bidder,
Neenah Foundry in the amount of  $3, 660. 00 for 20 catch

basin curb inlet and 20 cast iron manholes frames with
solid lids.    Motion supported by Councilman Collamer and
concurred in by unanimous vote.

3
6- 3- 74



116

124- 23

TRUCK MOUNTED WITH 16 YARD CATCH BASIN CLEANER

Motion by Councilman Collamer to' award to the low
bidder,  Krueger Machinery in the amount of  $ 43, 806 . 00.

Request the Purchasing and Engineering Departments
investigate the feasibility of a lump sum payment in
lieu of Lease Purchase Agreement and report back to

the Council the savings.    Motion supported by Councilman
Seats and concurred in by unanimous vote.

LETTER OF INTENT FOR CHESTNUT ST.  RECONSTRUCTION  -

Urban Program
124- 23

Motion by Councilman Seats to authorize a Letter of Intent
for Chestnut Street Reconstruction to be under construction

by July 1,   1975.    Motion supported by Councilman Collamer
and concurred in by unanimous vote.

SIGNAL AT CORUNNA AVENUE AND WASHINGTON ST.

125- 23

Motion by Councilman Dvorak to approve city participation
in the cost of installation by the Michigan Department of
State Highways of a traffic signal at Corunna Avenue and

Washington Street and further that the railroad crossing
at Division Street be closed.  Motion supported by Council-
man Hathaway and concurred in by unanimous vote.

AUTHORIZE STATE TRUNK LINE MAINTENANCE CONTRACT

126- 23

Councilman Collamer offered the following resolution and
moved for its adoption:

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Municipal Maintenance

Contract between the MICHIGAN STATE HIGHWAY

COMMISSION and the City of Owosso for the
period July 1,   1974 to June 30,  1975,   is

hereby accepted and Kenneth Apsey is
designated as Maintenance Superintendent on

sections of State Trunk Line Highways as

shown on the Municipal Route Section Map and
Budget Sheets.

The following City official,  Florence Kohls,

City Clerk is authorized to sign the said
maintenance' contract.

Motion supported by Councilman Dvorak.

AYES:    Councilmen Collamer,  Dvorak,  Hood,  Seats,

Hathaway,  Councilwoman Teich,  Mayor Montague

NAYS:    None

1

4 6- 3- 74

crwehner
Highlight

crwehner
Highlight



117

ELECTRICAL CODE FOR UPDATE

Moved by Councilman Collamer supported by Councilman
Dvorak to put the Electrical Code on first reading and
set a Public Hearing for June 17,  1974.    Motion carried

unanimously.'

127- 23
Motion by Councilman Collamer to authorize eight   ( 8)

antique cars to. he parke'd' at Christian' s,  Friday night
and Saturday,  June 14 and 15.    Motion supported by
Councilman Hood and concurred . in by unanimous vote.

128- 23

Motion by Councilman Collamer to authorize

APPRECIATION OUTSTANDING SERVICE AWARD.

to

MRS.  ROBERT HERRYGERS for

saving the life of a pre- school child by plunging
heroically into an icy, swimming pool and successfully
carrying the child to the pool deck;  and then administering
mouth to mouth resuscitation restoring normal breathing
and life to the, child.    Motion supported by Councilwoman
Teich and concurred in by unanimous vote.

CURWOOD CASTLE DRIVE  -  Name / flange
129- 23

Motion by Councilman Collamer to adopt the following
resolution:  j

BE IT RESOLVED,  to change John St.  and first

block of River St.  to Curwood Castle Drive

from Main St.  to Shiawassee St.  Effective

immediately.

Motion supported by Councilwoman Teich and concurred in by
unanimous vote.

130- 23 

Motion by Councilman Seats the parcel of property  ( Schultz)
not be leased for this year.    Motion supported by Councilman
Hathaway.

AYES:     Councilmen Collamer,  Dvorak,  Seats,  Hathaway,
Councilwoman Teich

NAYS:     Councilman Hood

Motion by Councilman Seats offered the following resolution
for adoption:

131- 23

SCARLETT RESOLUTION

WHEREAS,  the functioning ability of Mid- County
Ambulance was seriously crippled by a recent
accident in which one of the three ambulance
vehicles was damaged beyond repair and

WHEREAS,  replacement of this vehicle will not be

immediately possible,   leaving Mid- County Ambulance
with only one reliable vehicle and one obsolete
vehicle until its replacement is received and

WHEREAS,  William A.  Scarlett has made available

to the Mid- County Ambulance a vehicle which can
be used for emergency service without charge
until the Mid- County Ambulance fleet is again
complete and

5 6- 3- 74



11g

WHEREAS,  this gesture represents a considerable

saving to the people of this community due to
the extremely high cost of rental ambulances;

THEREFORE,  this Council does officially and
gratefully acknowledge this contribution to
the citizens of Owosso by Mr.  Scarlett and
thank him for his public spirit.

Motion supported by Councilman Hood and concurred in by
unanimous vote.

Motion by Councilman Hathaway the meeting be adjourned
11: 00 P. M. ) ,   supported by Councilman Hood and concurred

in by unanimous vote.

Leon A.  Montague,  Mayor

Florence Kohls,  City Clerk

1

i

6 6- 3- 74



crwehner
Oval

crwehner
Typewritten Text
DIVISION STREET CLOSURE AT HURON & EASTERN RAILROAD



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

Bui ld ing Depar tment  301 W Main St  Owosso,  MI 989-725-0535 
 

 
 
 
 

 
DATE: March 27, 2024 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Tanya Buckelew, Planning & Building Director 
 
SUBJECT: MSHDA Michigan Housing Opportunities Promoting Energy Efficiency (MI-HOPE) 

Grant and Bids 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve City administration of the MI-HOPE Grant to eligible City residents for an additional $160,000 for 
energy efficiency improvements.  In addition, recommend Council approval of a contract with Merkel and 
Kenney, Inc. to complete said grant projects.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The City was awarded the MI-HOPE Grant for $105,000 in the Spring of 2023.  Since then additional 
funds became available and awarded to the City.  Total grant award is now $265,000 ($250,000 towards 
home improvement efficiency projects and $15,000 for administrative costs).  A City match is not 
required. 
 
Eleven (11) homeowners were selected from the MSHDA online application portal.   
 
Bids were solicited for the collective group of projects.  Two (2) bids were received on March 19, 2024.   
 

• Merkel and Kenney, Inc. of Owosso, MI for $192,341 
• KimGroup LLC of Holland, MI for $190,370 

 
Merkel & Kenney, Inc. is a local company in Shiawassee County.  While their physical business location 
is no longer inside the city limits, they are still in Shiawassee County.  MSHDA and the MI-HOPE 
Program do not require the lowest bid, just the most logical/acceptable bid. 
 
The grant funds remaining will further be allocated to home improvement projects in a future bidding 
process as this grant project is expected to continue through 2025. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:   
 
Minimal impact on the budget as the City will be reimbursed for the time spent on this grant.  We will track 
the time for the building official, trades inspectors and code enforcement (for their assistance in the 
fieldwork) and my time spent on the program.  In addition, the MI-HOPE grant funds will be paid to Merkel 
& Kenney, Inc. via the City of Owosso. 
 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 
 (2) Bid Tab 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF ADDITIONAL FUNDS RECEIVED FROM  
THE MICHIGAN HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES PROMOTING ENERGY EFFICIENCY (MI-HOPE)  

GRANT #ARP-2023-27-MIH 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso applied for and received a MI-HOPE Grant totaling $105,000 to assist 
property owners in funding energy efficiency improvements, such as window replacement, HVAC 
replacement, and appliance upgrades; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso further applied for another phase of the grant and received an additional 
$160,000 (total grant of $265,000 = $250,000 for home improvement projects and $15,000 for 
administrative costs); and 
 
WHEREAS, the beneficiaries of this grant include eleven (11) residents in the community that experienced 
a Qualified Financial Hardship associated with the coronavirus pandemic; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso will not be required to match any grant dollars, but will serve to administer 
the grant, be a pass-through entity for grant funds, and abide by the terms and conditions set forth in the 
grant agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to  
 approve the acceptance of additional funds in the amount of $160,000.00 for the MI-HOPE 

Program Grant Agreement, Grant # ARP-2023-37-MIH, between the Michigan State 
Housing Development Authority and the City of Owosso. 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

APPROVING CONTRACTOR MERKEL & KENNEY, INC. TO PERFORM  
HOME IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FOR THE MI-HOPE GRANT #ARP-2023-37-MIH  

PER PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso applied for and received a MI-HOPE Grant totaling $265,000 to assist 
property owners in funding energy efficiency improvements, such as window replacement, HVAC 
replacement, and appliance upgrades; and  
 
WHEREAS, the beneficiaries of this grant include eleven (11) residents in the community that experienced 
a Qualified Financial Hardship associated with the coronavirus pandemic; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for a general contractor to perform the home improvements; 
two (2) bids were received (Merkel & Kenney, Inc. of Owosso, MI for $192,341 and KimGroup, LLC of 
Holland, MI for $190,370); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso determined that Merkel & Kenney, Inc. is qualified to provide such services 
and that it has submitted a responsive bid.  Furthermore, MSHDA and MI-HOPE do not require the lowest 
bid, just the most logical/acceptable bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, remaining grant funds will further be allocated to home improvement projects in a future bidding 
process as this grant project is expected to continue through 2025. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
employ Merkel & Kenney, Inc. for home improvement projects to eleven residential homes 
as a part of the 2023/2024 MI-HOPE Grant (ARP-2023-37-MIH) in the amount of $192,341. 

 
THIRD: The City Manager and the Planning & Building Director, having been previously designated 

as authorized signers for the grant, are instructed and authorized to sign homeowner and 
contractor contracts, with one contract signed for each home selected for participation in 
the program.  

 
THIRD: The Accounts Payable department is authorized to pay Merkel & Kenney, Inc. for work 

satisfactorily completed on the project up to the contract amount, with prior approval from 
MSHDA. 

 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the Housing & Redevelopment Fund 254-200-

818.000. 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

  
DATE:                   April 1, 2024 
  
TO:                        Owosso City Council 
                              
FROM:                  Clayton Wehner, Director of Engineering 
  
SUBJECT:            Engineering Services for CIS – James Miner Connection Project 
  
   
RECOMMENDATION 
  
Approval of the proposal provided by Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. in the amount of 
$577,000.00, for engineering services for the CIS -James Miner Connection Project. 
  
 BACKGROUND             
  
On February 20, 2024, city council approved a contract with the Michigan Department of Transportation 
(MDOT) for a $4.4 million grant to connect the Clinton-Ionia-Shiawassee (CIS) trail to the city’s James 
Miner Trail.  Additionally, the city desires to rehabilitate Jerome Street between Hickory Street and 
Oakwood Avenue in conjunction with the trail project.  On March 5, 2024, the city received proposals from 
its four QBS selected firms for engineering services for this project.  These services are necessary to 
design the project and provide construction oversight of the project.  All proposals were evaluated based 
on, 1) Firm’s history & capabilities to perform similar projects, 2) Key personnel assigned, 3) Performance 
measures, and 4) Pricing.  Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. is considered the most qualified to 
provide services for this project based on the proposal submitted.  Specifically, Fleis & Vandenbrink 
Engineering, Inc. has a familiarity with the project from previous work, strong staff having completed 
similar trail projects, and their pricing and schedule were within the guidelines of the grant.  Attached is a 
copy of the Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. proposal. 
 
Firms listed in ranked order with scores (out of 600 total points) are: 

• Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc.  532.5 points 
• ENG, Inc.     530 points 
• Spicer Group     512.5 points 
• OHM Advisors     435 points 

 
FISCAL IMPACTS  
 
Funds for services for the trail portion of the project in the amount of $499,500.00 will be issued from 
major street fund account number 202-451-818.000-MDOT-TRAIL to be covered by the grant.  Funds for 
services for the Jerome Street portion of the project in the amount of $77,500.00 will be issued from major 
street fund account number 202-451-818.000.  
 
ENCLOSURES: (1) Resolution 
 (2) Addendum 
 (3) Request for Proposal  
 (4) Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. Proposal 
 
MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION GOALS: 3.4, 3.7, 5.3, 5.27, 6.6 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT ADDENDUM NO. 2024-01 
TO THE FY2023-2024 GENERAL 

ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT WITH 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. 

FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
FOR THE CIS – JAMES MINER CONNECTION PROJECT 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with Fleis & 
Vandenbrink on June 5, 2023 for the term of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 for general engineering 
services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, has received $4.4 million ($4,400,000.00) in funding through the Fiscal 
Year 2024 State Earmark approved via Public Act 119 of 2023 by the State of Michigan, to be used for 
trail connections and improvements from Priest Road in Shiawassee County to Oakwood Avenue in the 
city of Owosso; and 
 
WHEREAS, the trail connections and improvements will bring the Clinton – Ionia – Shiawassee (CIS) 
Trail into the city of Owosso and connect it with the James S. Miner River Walk and will allow for both 
visitors and residents to utilize the regional trail and provide enhanced recreation opportunities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso also desires to rehabilitate Jerome Street from Hickory Street to 
Oakwood Avenue in conjunction with the trail project; and 
 
WHEREAS, this work requires the services of a professional engineering firm to complete design 
engineering and construction engineering of the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city sought proposals from its Qualification Based Selection (QBS) list of firms to perform 
such work; and 
  
WHEREAS, Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. is selected as the most qualified firm to perform such 
work and offers to complete the engineering services of said project, in an amount not to exceed 
$577,000.00. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ the firm of Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. to provide 
engineering services for the CIS – James Miner Connection Project. 

  
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the necessary documents 

as an Agreement for General Engineering Services between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. 

  
THIRD: The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the amount of 

$577,000.00 to Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. upon successful completion of 
engineering work. 

 
FOURTH: The above engineering expenses shall be paid from Major Street Fund Acct Nos. 202-

451-818.000-MDOT-TRAIL ($499,500.00) and 202-451-818.000 ($77,500.00). 



ADDENDUM NO. 2024-01 TO THE 
FY2023-2024 GENERAL ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT 

WITH 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. 

FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
FOR THE CIS – JAMES MINER CONNECTION PROJECT 

 
This addendum is attached and made part of the contract for services for the General Engineering Services 
Contract, approved by City Council June 5, 2023 for the term of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 between the 
city of Owosso, Michigan (City) and Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. (Engineer). 
 

CIS – JAMES MINER CONNECTION PROJECT 
 

PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The project scope of work is full engineering services as specified in the attached proposal. 
 

SCHEDULE 
 
The schedule for the project is to begin on April 8, 2024 and be completed by June 30, 2026 plus project 
close out procedures as shown in the attached proposal. 
 

COMPENSATION 
 
As specified in the attached proposal, total cost for services is $577,000.00.  The engineer shall submit for 
payment based on monthly progress of the work. 
 
 
 
 
For the Engineer:    
   
Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc.  
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Executed: _________________________, 2024 
 

For the City:       
 
City of Owosso, Michigan 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________
 Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
By: ___________________________________
 Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 
 
Executed: _________________________, 2024

 



Submitted to:
City of Owosso

March 5, 2024
P20387

800.494.5202   |   www.fveng.com     

FRED MEIJER CIS - JAMES MINER 
CONNECTION TRAILWAY EXTENSION



9475 Holly Road, Suite 201
Grand Blanc, MI 48439

P: 810.743.9120
F: 810.771.7860
www.fveng.com

March 5, 2024

Mr. Clayton Wehner, PE, Director of Engineering
City of Owosso
City Hall, 301 W. Main Street 
Owosso, MI 48867

RE:  FRED MEIJER CLINTON-IONIA-SHIAWASSEE (CIS) TRAIL TO THE JAMES MINER RIVER TRAIL

Dear Clayton:

Congratulations on receiving funding to connect the 41+ mile long Fred Meijer Clinton-Ionia-Shiawassee (CIS) Trail to 
the James Miner River Trail in the City of Owosso. This connection will be a great addition to the community and your 
non-motorized transportation network. Trails act to help define the shape and feel of a community, its neighborhoods, 
and the surrounding area. They also enhance quality of life and create a sense of identity, all of which are important 
to a community like yours. Fleis & VandenBrink (F&V) has vast experience in the design and construction of trails and 
will be an ideal partner for this project.

Highlights of F&V include:
 ▪ We Have Extensive Experience in Trails: F&V has designed over 130 miles in the past 10 years. Several of 

these trails are nearby, including the LAFF Pathway in southern Genesee County, the Flint River Trail in northern 
Genesee County, and the extension of the Iron Belle Trail through the City of Grand Blanc, which included a 
combination of shared use paths, on road bike lanes, and share the road street designations.    

 ▪ We Have Specialized Knowledge and Qualifications Relative to this Project: We are pleased to have 
assisted the Friends of the Fred Meijer CIS Trailway Steering Committee with the Trailway Study for this specific 
project. The purpose of that study was to evaluate safe, convenient, and cost-effective options to connect the 
CIS Trail to the James Miner River Trail. It’s exciting to see that the planning efforts, collaboration, and dedication 
of the Steering Committee and City officials over the past 11 years since this study was completed has been 
recognized. It takes many years to bring a project like this to fruition, and it’s great to see that the importance of 
this project and the level of effort that has gone into making this happen was recognized by our State Senator in 
his consideration of legislative earmark funding.

By encouraging and providing alternative modes of transportation, the City is providing increased public health, safety, 
and environmental protection. In recent years, we have all noticed the growing number of people who recognize 
the benefits and importance of pathways and trails and the quality of life that they provide. By choosing F&V, you 
are giving your residents, businesses, and the entire community the best possible benefits from the positive health, 
economic, and social impacts of this project. We appreciate the opportunity in providing our services to the City of 
Owosso. If you need any additional information or have any questions regarding our proposal, please contact me at 
810.244.1729.

Sincerely,

FLEIS & VANDENBRINK 

Geric L. Rose, P.E., P.S.    
Regional Manager, Associate



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1: STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING & SCOPE OF SERVICES

SECTION 2: PROJECT TEAM

SECTION 3:  SPECIALIZED EXPERIENCE

SECTION 4: FAMILIARITY WITH MDOT AND SIMILAR PROJECTS 

SECTION 5: LEVEL OF EFFORT ESTIMATE

SECTION 6: PROJECT SCHEDULE

SECTION 7: PROFESSIONAL FEES

Fred Meijer CIS Trail



STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING
The City of Owosso is seeking professional engineering 
services for the design and construction of a non-motorized 
transportation network to connect the Fred Meijer Clinton-
Ionia-Shiawassee (CIS) trail to the James Miner River 
Trail. This new trail will allow non-motorized access to your 
scenic pathway along the Shiawassee River and your core 
downtown business district. A proposed shared-use path 
will begin at the end of the existing CIS trail at Smith Road, 
just north of W. Main Street (M-21) and continue along 
abandoned railroad right-of-way and M-21 right-of-way to the 
city limits at Chestnut Street. 
 ▪ At Chestnut Street, the bicycle portion of the trail will 

transition to on-road bike lanes south along Chestnut 
Street, east along Stewart Street, and north along Washington Street to the existing James Miner River Trail 
along the Shiawassee River. 

 ▪ Also at Chestnut Street, pedestrians will utilize existing sidewalks along M-21 east to the James Miner River 
Trail near Owosso City Hall. 

 ▪ Improvements will be made to the existing James Miner Trail, on both sides of the Shiawassee River, from 
Washington Street to Oakwood Avenue. 

The total estimated cost, including engineering, is $4,400,000 and is being funded by the State of Michigan in the 
form of a direct grant.

In addition to the pathway extension project, the City plans to rehabilitate Jerome Street from west of Hickory 
Street east to Oakwood Avenue. The total estimated cost of the road rehabilitation, including engineering, is 
$750,000 and is being funded by the City of Owosso.

Due to a pending 2025 MDOT project along M-71 from Corunna Avenue to Main Street, this project is being split 
into the 2025 and 2026 construction seasons.

2025 Construction Season
The 2025 construction season will include the construction of approximately 8,000 feet of 10-foot wide HMA 
path along abandoned railroad right-of-way and M-21 from Smith Road to Chestnut Street. Improvements will 
include clearing, grading, drainage improvements, hard surface removal and restoration, and traffic signal and 
pedestrian crossing upgrades at the Delaney Road and Chestnut Street intersections.

The establishment of an approximately 6,000 foot long pedestrian route along M-21 from Chestnut Street to 
the Shiawassee River trail through the installation of wayfinding signs will also be completed in 2025.

2026 Construction Season
The 2026 construction season will include the establishment of approximately 11,300 feet of on-road bike 
lanes along Chestnut Street, Stewart Street, and Washington Street to connect the new shared-use path to 
the existing James Miner Trail. Bike lanes will be added on both sides of the roads via permanent pavement 
markings and signage. The design of the portion along Washington Street (M-71) between Corunna Avenue 
and the Shiawassee River is currently in progress by MDOT and will be completed as part of their 2025 
improvement project.

Also to be completed in 2026 are the improvements to the existing James Miner River Trail. Along the 
north side of the Shiawassee River from Washington Street to Hickory Street (approximately 800 feet) 
new pavement markings and signage is proposed to be added. From Hickory Street to Oakwood Avenue, 

SECTION 1: STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING & SCOPE OF 
SERVICES



approximately 2,600 feet of trail is proposed to be reconstructed to a 10-foot-wide shared-use path with new 
HMA and aggregate base. Improvements along the reconstructed trail will include:

 ▪ Sidewalk ramp construction at intersecting streets
 ▪ Permanent signage
 ▪ Bollards
 ▪ Lighting
 ▪ Other site amenities, such as benches 

Along this stretch, which is adjacent to the portion of 
Jerome Street to be rehabilitated, we will evaluate options 
to provide separation of the roadway shoulder/parking 
area and the shared-use path. A physical separation, 
either by use of bollards, vegetated area, or a combination 
of both, will help keep motorized vehicles off the trail, and 
help prevent the spread of gravel onto the trail surface. 
Along the south side of the Shiawassee River from 
Washington Street to the boardwalk, approximately 2,500 
feet of 10-foot wide HMA surface is proposed to be placed 
on top of the existing gravel surface pathway. Adequate 
access for ingress and egress of construction equipment 
and materials will need to be evaluated and coordinated 
for this stretch of the project, as there are no adjacent or intersecting streets to gain suitable construction 
access to the trail.

In addition to the above trail improvements, the rehabilitation of approximately 2,000 feet of Jerome Street 
from west of Hickory Street to Oakwood Avenue is proposed to take place during the 2026 construction 
season. Improvements to Jerome Street include pulverizing and stabilizing the existing HMA and aggregate 
base, resurfacing with HMA, storm sewer replacement, non-compliant water service line replacement, and 
permanent pavement markings and signage.  

The proposed improvements shall be designed in accordance with AASHTO and ADA standards. Approvals 
and permitting will be required by the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT), Shiawassee County 
Road Commission, Shiawassee County Drain Commissioner, Shiawassee County SESC, and EGLE. As much 
of the proposed work is within the 100-year floodplain or floodway, a floodplain permit or waiver from EGLE 
will be required. Coordination with Owosso Public Schools Transportation Department, the Railroad, private 
utilities, residents, business owners, and other stakeholders is anticipated during the design and construction 
of this project. Meetings with the utility owners, MDOT, and the private utility owners will be required. A public 
informational meeting will also be conducted one evening at City Hall to solicit feedback on the proposed project.

With the funding for this project being a direct grant in the 
form of a legislative earmark, we understand that this project 
will not follow the MDOT LAP process for design, bidding, 
and construction, and will be let and administered locally 
by the City of Owosso. We are currently working on other 
earmark-funded projects and understand the responsibilities 
of the grant recipient to ensure that the funds and project are 
properly administered and monitored. The earmark projects 
can have a lot less red tape and oversight, but still have 
specific program requirements that must be adhered to. Since 
state funding is allocated for this project and no federal funds 
are involved, outreach to the typical federal crosscutters, 
including SHPO, is not an anticipated requirement.



WORK PLAN - DESIGN ENGINEERING
Our design engineering work plan to accomplish the above 
will begin by meeting with the City to review the project 
objectives and goals, discuss design criteria, and review the 
preliminary schedules provided in our proposal. 

Topographic surveying will then commence while other 
project due diligence is simultaneously completed. A 
topographic survey will be completed along the existing 
railroad bed and M-21 where the new shared-use path 
is proposed along the existing James Miner River Trail 
from Washington Street to Oakwood Avenue on the north side of the river, and from Washington Street to the 
boardwalk on the south side of the river. We plan to utilize the available topographic survey that the City will 
provide for the Jerome Street rehabilitation. 

Available aerial imagery and other sources will be used to convey the design intent for the on-road bike lanes and 
pedestrian route from Chestnut Street to the River Trail. Supplemental field measurements and evaluations will be 
completed as needed. Our due diligence will include geotechnical investigation with our subconsultant, obtaining 
existing utility information from MISS DIG, and scheduling a pre-design meeting with the Shiawassee County 
Road Commission (SCRC) and MDOT. The utility owners will be informed of the project for coordination of any 
upcoming projects or replacements. It is important to keep the utilities abreast of the improvements throughout 
the design process. The meeting with the LCRC and MDOT will review their expectations and requirements 
for pathway construction within the existing road rights-of-way, obtain rights-of-way information (plans, deeds, 
easements, etc.), discuss the required signal and crossing modifications at the Delaney Road and Chestnut 
Street intersections along M-21, and inquire on future road and utility improvements or expansions that need to be 
considered in the pathway design.

Preliminary engineering will begin with a thorough field 
investigation of the proposed shared-use pathway route by 
our engineering staff. This site evaluation will identify:

 ▪ Project challenges
 ▪ Constructability issues
 ▪ Grading concerns
 ▪ Potential utility relocation needs
 ▪ Drainage alterations
 ▪ Driveway adjustments
 ▪ Maintaining of traffic difficulties
 ▪ Permitting and easement requirements 
 ▪ Overall pathway alignment

Once the field topographic survey is completed the mapping will commence. This will include processing the 
topographic survey, establishing the road rights-of-way and approximate property lines, and adding the utility 
information obtained from the utility companies, City, and County agencies. Preliminary pathway alignments and 
the public road crossings will then be evaluated and established. The preliminary alignment(s) will further identify 
potential utility conflicts, constructability concerns, and likely easement and grading permit needs. Options with 
and without a particular permanent or temporary easement will be considered, as we assume that the City desires 
to only seek additional right-of-way through just compensation with willing property owners, and would likely not 
consider acquisition through court action. 

Easements for the betterment of the pathway (and at a construction cost savings to the City) will be identified and 
discussed. Ideally, easement documents would be prepared at this time and presented to the property owners 
for consideration prior to proceeding into detailed design. We will assist by preparing the easement descriptions 
and exhibits. In our cost proposal, we have included title searches to identify the current owner(s) of record for 



the purpose of the easement document as an optional service. Lastly, utilizing the desired pathway alignment 
agreeable to all stakeholders, a preliminary engineer’s opinion of probable construction cost will be prepared.

In other successful pathway projects that we have completed, we found it very beneficial to review the preliminary 
alignments in the field with representatives of the road agencies. Walking the route to discuss what is shown on 
paper, including the potential challenges and alternatives, helps get buy-in and understanding from all parties prior 
to a formal submittal for review and comment. Not only does this save time and potential redesign, but establishes 
a sense of ownership in the layout and design by all stakeholders. We would plan to do the same on this project 
for the portion of the pathway within the M-21 right-of-way.

Final engineering will establish detailed plans and specifications that are suitable for bidding and construction. 
These plans will include:

 ▪ Plan and profiles
 ▪ Cross sections
 ▪ Details
 ▪ Signal modification plans to incorporate pedestrian crossings

 
Recommendations in the geotechnical investigation will be considered in the trail and road pavement design, and 
geosynthetics for separation and stabilization will be incorporated where needed. Technical specifications will 
be prepared for inclusion with the City’s standard front-end documents. The appropriate construction scheduled 
will also be established at this time, taking into account anticipated material lead times and other construction 
variables, such as seasonal water tables or tree/vegetation removal restrictions. Maintaining traffic requirements 
set forth by the road agency will be addressed in the specifications, and on the plans as needed.

As the final plans proceed through the various levels of completion, submittals and meetings will be conducted 
with the city and road agencies for feedback and direction. Utility coordination meetings will also be scheduled to 
review and discuss utility relocation or adjustment needs. These meetings will start early in the design to provide 
ample time for completion prior to pathway construction. 
Plan submittals at the levels desired by the City will be 
accompanied by updated construction cost opinions. 

We would suggest that any public input/information meetings 
related to the trail be completed around the 30% complete 
level. This will allow positive feedback to be incorporated 
before the plans progress to a level of completion where 
changes become costly and time consuming. Any permits 
that were not applied for during the transition from preliminary 
to final engineering will be submitted during this phase. The 
same applies for any easements that have yet to be formally 
granted. The final submittal will include a complete set of bid ready plans, specifications, and cost opinion.

The final phase of design engineering is assistance with bidding and award. Inquires and necessary addendum 
will be addressed during the bidding period. Once bids are received, we will review prior to making a 
recommendation of award.

WORK PLAN - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION
Our construction administration services begin with a preconstruction meeting with the selected contractor, 
City, road agencies, utility owners, and other interested stakeholders. This meeting will review project: 

 ▪ Goals
 ▪ Objectives
 ▪ Requirements



Having already coordinated with the utility owners, the status of any required relocations, replacements, or 
upgrades will be discussed. Maintaining of traffic and detour requirements, both vehicular and pedestrian focused, 
will also be addressed. With the work being split into two construction seasons, we anticipate that a meeting will 
be held at the beginning of each season.

Throughout the duration of construction, we will provide construction staking and staff the project with a 
minimum of one, full-time MDOT certified Construction Services Technician. 

During peak times, or when the Jerome Street rehabilitation is completed concurrently with the trail improvements, 
we anticipate that an additional construction technician may be necessary. Our construction technicians will 
complete the following:

 ▪ Field testing of materials
 ▪ Material testing reports
 ▪ IDRs
 ▪ SESC reports 
 ▪ Daily reports  to the project engineer

Both our field technician and professional engineer will keep the City and other stakeholders abreast as the 
project progresses. Street rehabilitation quantities will be tracked separately of the trail project. Our office 
technician will handle the duties of:

 ▪ Preparing pay applications
 ▪ Contract modifications
 ▪ Assisting with material testing and submittal reviews

Prevailing wage compliance will be completed with assistance from Michigan Fair Contracting Center (MFCC), 
who we have successfully teamed with many times in the past. MFCC offers turn-key prevailing wage compliance 
services, including:

 ▪ Preconstruction meeting attendance
 ▪ On-site wage rate interviews
 ▪ Certified payroll review
 ▪ Expertise with employee classifications, rate of pay, and fringe benefits 

By utilizing MFCC for compliance services, F&V and the City can be assured that all the compliance requirements 
tied to your funding are being upheld.

During construction, pedestrian traffic and access control will be important. We have found that during 
construction of shared-use paths, pedestrians and other users tend to start utilizing these facilities as soon as 
possible, often before the aggregate and asphalt is placed. While it’s great to see the excitement for these new 
trails and connections, it is important to keep everyone safe and out of the way of the contractor’s activities. With 
this project involving the rehabilitation and reconstruction of existing facilities, the likelihood of continued use is 
even higher. Pedestrian safety can be controlled by:

 ▪ Proper signage and traffic control devices
 ▪ Establishment of recommended detour routes
 ▪ Continual project updates on social media, newsletters, or City website
 ▪ Communicating with the residents and other users as they are encountered in the field

At the end of each day, it is important that the contractor leave a safe site, as we know people are likely to be in 
the area.

Vehicular traffic control, which will be necessary for pathway construction, intersection signal improvements, curb 
ramp construction, installation of pavement markings, and road rehabilitation will be frequently monitored and 
coordinated with the City, County, and MDOT.



SCOPE OF SERVICES
Below is a bulleted summary of our scope of services that will be accomplished through our work plan described 
above.

Design Engineering Services:
 ▪ Topographic survey and mapping 
 ▪ Utility coordination
 ▪ Site review and evaluation by professional engineer
 ▪ Geotechnical investigation and soil borings (completed by subconsultant)
 ▪ Pavement section design
 ▪ Traffic signal modification design
 ▪ Electrical design for new lighting along River Trail
 ▪ Prepare preliminary plans and technical specifications
 ▪ Prepare final plans and specifications for advertisement and bidding
 ▪ Prepare engineer’s opinion of probable construction costs at various levels
 ▪ Prepare a project implementation schedule
 ▪ Attend utility coordination meeting with private utility owners
 ▪ Assist with stakeholder and public informational/planning meetings

Bidding Services:
 ▪ Address contractor inquires during bidding process
 ▪ Prepare addendums as necessary
 ▪ Review bids, contractor qualifications, and make recommendation for award

Construction Administration Services:
 ▪ Organize and conduct the pre-construction meeting
 ▪ Schedule and conduct progress and pre-production meetings
 ▪ Construction staking 
 ▪ Full time construction observation and record keeping (average of 50 hours per week for the anticipated 

construction schedule identified)
 ▪ On-site and off-site quality assurance testing. Our field technicians are certified in materials testing and are 

typically able to complete both the daily observation and testing. We will arrange all laboratory testing with 
the local office of PSI and/or SME

 ▪ Office technician tasks including preparation of pay estimates, work orders, contract modifications, and 
other related administrative duties during the duration of this project

 ▪ Review of certified payroll in accordance with Davis-Bacon requirements
 ▪ Assist with citizen inquires, complaints, or claims
 ▪ Address construction related issues
 ▪ Provide project closeout as required by MDOT and the City
 ▪ Provide final documents and files at completion of project to the City

F&V has the capacity to successfully provide and perform 
the services requested by the City of Owosso and required 
for this project. We take pride in the number of pathways that 
we have helped complete throughout neighboring Genesee 
County, and the trust and faith that the Genesee County Road 
Commission has put into us for the scoping, planning, design, 
and construction of these transportation and recreation 
resources. We feel that the City, SCRC, and MDOT will also 
benefit from our passion, experience, and expertise in non-
motorized transportation facilities.  



SECTION 2: PROJECT TEAM

We are proposing a team of highly experienced professionals in the design and construction of roadway, pathway, 
and public utility improvement projects. This team has worked together successfully on several past City projects, 
as well as many other pathway and trail projects for our clients. This team has successfully completed recent 
projects with nearly identical scope, including:

▪ LAFF Pathway, Genesee County - new shared use path within road right-of-way, including road
crossings and traffic signal modifications

▪ Iron Belle Trail, City of Grand Blanc - establishment of on-road bike lanes and share the road bike
routes along city streets

▪ Multiple Roadways, City of Owosso, Village of Almont, City of Yale, Genesee County Road
Commission - road rehabilitation by crush and shape with stabilization and resurfacing

GERIC ROSE, PE, PS* will serve as project manager and provide technical assistance, 
oversight, and advisement during both the design and construction phases. Geric has 25 
years of experience and has successfully completed the design and construction of many 
similar trail and pathway projects. Having been working with the City over the past 10 years, 
he is extremely familiar with the City of Owosso’s staff, standards, and expectations. He has 
previously provided leadership in the City’s Street Improvement Programs, the 2016 Gould 

Street resurfacing, and the N. Gould Street rehabilitation project. 

LARRY HUMMEL, PE* will serve as the technical advisor, assisting our project team and 
the City with all aspects of pathway design and construction. Larry has over 30 years of 
experience in county and state transportation projects. Prior to F&V, Larry served as the 
Engineer-Manager for the Van Buren County Road Commission and chaired several task 
forces and councils. Throughout his career, Larry has shown a passion for trail projects, and 
served on the Board of Directors of the West Michigan Trails & Greenway Coalition from 2011 

to 2022. He also served as Treasurer of the Friends of the Kal-Haven Trail from 2008 to 2019. During his service 
in these organizations, he has seen what works and what doesn’t, not only in design and construction, but also as 
it relates to long term maintenance and preservation of our pathway systems.

TODD RICHTER, PE* will assist Larry in providing quality assurance reviews of the 
project plans and specifications. Todd manages F&V’s construction services group and has 
significant experience in the programming, design, and construction of trail projects.

DAVE HILER, PE* will continue to serve as lead engineer as he has for the City of Owosso 
for nearly a decade. Dave has nearly 30 years of experience in design engineering with an 
emphasis in municipal engineering projects. Dave has assisted Geric in the design of many 
trail projects throughout his career.

GREG HICKEY, PE, PTOE will provide the design of the traffic signal modifications at 
the two M-21 intersections. Greg has 11 years of experience in transportation and traffic 
engineering. As a Professional Traffic Operations Engineer (PTOE), he is knowledgeable 
about traffic signal design, maintenance of traffic, traffic modeling and forecasting, and traffic 
impact studies. F&V is MDOT prequalified in Traffic Signal Design.

ED HAWKS is our Senior Electrical Designer and will assist with the electrical and controls 
design for the new pathway lighting. Ed has over 40 years of experience with industrial 
process control, water and wastewater treatment, and downtown city and park revitalization. 



DAN HOWEY, CST AND BRAD DANKS will serve as the design 
technicians assisting Dave, Geric, and Larry with the design, drafting, and 
preparation of the construction plans. Dan has worked with Geric and 
Dave for over 20 years and has completed numerous other assignments 
for the City of Owosso. Dan is aware of the plan quality expectations and 

standards of the City. Brad has nearly 35 years of experience in civil and architectural engineering, including 25 
years at the Genesee County Road Commission as part of their engineering design team.

MARK FRANK, PE will serve as the certified office technician during the construction phase 
of this project. Mark has over 30 years of experience in the civil engineering field. He provides 
office technician duties for the majority of our MDOT and MDOT LAP projects. Mark is also 
involved with oversight and reporting of soil borings, pavement design recommendations, 
construction testing, and the inspection of soils, concrete, and bituminous pavement.

STEFFAN SHAFFER AND NOAH LEWIS will serve as survey crew 
chiefs for the topographic surveying and construction staking. Both 
Steffan and Noah have completed previous surveys for the City’s 
engineering department.

SKYLER WINKLE will serve as the construction technician. Skyler assists both our Grand 
Blanc and Farmington Hills offices with construction administration and observation 
services. Skyler resides approximately 15 minutes from the City of Owosso.

PSI AND/OR SME will be utilized as a certified subconsultant for Laboratory Material testing during the 
construction phase of this project. 

*Resumes for our project team are provided on the following pages.

CURRENT WORKLOAD & CAPACITY
The City of Owosso has proactively planned the schedule for the design and construction of this project and 
adequate time has been provided to fulfill the requirements. As a result of the City’s efforts, we can provide 
surveying and design engineering during the summer and fall of 2024 along with our current workload. 
Construction in 2025 and 2026 allows us to properly plan and staff this project with a qualified and consistent 
construction administration team.  



FRED MEIJER CIS TRAILWAY STUDY

F&V prepared a feasibility study in 2013 for the Fred Meijer CIS Trailway Steering Committee for the potential 
to connect the James Miner River Walkway to the Fred Meijer Trailway. Our trailway study evaluated safe, 
convenient, and cost effective options to connect the trails from Fred Meijer Trailways’s end at Priest Road in 
Owosso Township, to the James Miner River Walkway in the City of Owosso. 

The study intended to find safe, direct and convenient routes that offered an aesthetic value and served the 
widest range of users, creating an enjoyable experience and encouraging quality economic gain for local 
businesses. 

The proposed routes suggested in the plan were derived from a number of factors, including on-site evaluation 
of existing site conditions, property owner relationships, costs of installation, understanding the anticipated users, 
and meeting with committee members. 

F&V proposed two main routes. Both started at Priest Road, just west of Smith Road; one route was generally 
south of M-21 (aka Main Street), while the other was north of M-21.

The report presented by F&V represented preliminary routing considerations, developed with the ability to apply 
modifications and improvements in the future. 

SECTION 3: SPECIALIZED EXPERIENCE



SECTION 4: FAMILIARITY WITH MDOT AND SIMILAR PROJECTS

Construction Engineering:
 ▪ Assistance
 ▪ Bridges and Ancillary Structures
 ▪ Roadway
 ▪ Roadway – Local Agency Program

Construction Inspection:
 ▪ Bridges and Ancillary Structures 
 ▪ HMA Pavement 
 ▪ Roadway
 ▪ Traffic and Safety

Construction Services:
 ▪ Office Technician 

Construction Testing: 
 ▪ Aggregates
 ▪ Concrete
 ▪ Density

Environmental:
 ▪ Contamination

Surveying: 
 ▪ Construction Staking
 ▪ Hydraulics
 ▪ Right of Way
 ▪ Road Design
 ▪ Structure

Design: 
 ▪ Bridges
 ▪ Bridges: Safety Inspection
 ▪ Bridges: Safety Inspection - Underwater
 ▪ Hydraulics I
 ▪ Hydraulics II
 ▪ Landscape Architecture 
 ▪ Roadway
 ▪ Roadway: Intermediate
 ▪ Traffic: Capacity and Geometrics Analysis
 ▪ Traffic: Pavement Markings
 ▪ Traffic: Safety Studies
 ▪ Traffic: Signal
 ▪ Traffic: Signal Operations
 ▪ Traffic: Signal Operations – Complex
 ▪ Traffic: Work Zone Maintenance of Traffic
 ▪ Traffic: Work Zone Mobility and Safety
 ▪ Utilities: Municipal

MDOT PREQUALIFICATIONS 

F&V is pre-qualified with the State of Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) in the following 
classifications:



IRON BELLE TRAIL (IBT)
Grand Blanc, MI

F&V successfully assisted with the grant application and implementation of conceptual engineering, route 
planning, and pavement markings and signage for the Iron Belle Trail (IBT) through the City of Grand Blanc. This 
funding provided construction assistance for pavement markings and signage along shared lane trail routes, the 
purchase and installation of IBT identification signage, and route planning and preliminary engineering.  

As a result of the route planning, the City completed cost effective on-road trail routes, which included 
implementation of a road diet along the heavily traveled Perry Road to incorporate designated bike lanes into their 
transportation network.  

Through a combination of shared use paths and on-road routes, users of Michigan’s Iron Belle Trail can now visit 
the City of Grand Blanc and the shops and restaurants of its downtown business district.



LAFF SHARED-USE PATHWAY PHASE 1
Argentine, MI

Safety was a concern for Linden Community elementary, middle and high school students walking or riding 
bicycles to school. School and Argentine Township officials wanted to eliminate the safety issue for the 1,900 
students by creating a non-motorized trail system through the campus and along Silver Lake and Lobdell roads.

Fundraising and planning efforts started for Phase 1 – two miles of 10-foot wide shared-use pathway. Funding 
was secured through Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP), Safe Routes to Schools (SRTS) and the 
Michigan DNR Trust Fund (MDNRTF).

F&V assisted Argentine Township and LAFF – a non-profit organization of residents in Linden, Argentine 
Township, Fenton Township and Fenton – from the project’s inception with conceptual planning, grant 
applications, property acquisition, preliminary engineering, EGLE permitting, and construction engineering.

Children traveling by foot or bike now have a safe route to school and there’s ample parking for all that travel to 
use the trail. Residents, businesses, and communities are also connected via this pathway, promoting tourism, 
exercise, and outdoor recreation. 



FLINT RIVER TRAIL
Genesee County, MI

F&V provided both preliminary and construction engineering services for this important section of the Michigan 
Iron Belle Trail and the local Flint River Trail network. This project connects an existing pathway at Stepping 
Stone Falls (near the southerly end of Mott Lake) to an existing pathway near the Bluegill Boat Launch at 
Coldwater Road and Center Road. 

A new 14 foot wide pedestrian bridge adjacent to Stepping Stone Falls provides easy viewing of the picturesque, 
man-made waterfall. From the falls, this 1.4 mile long trail winds through Genesee County Park property which 
is enhanced with diverse wetlands, woodlands, and wildlife.



Below is our anticipated level of effort estimate used in establishing our budget for this project. 

TRAIL DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES
Classification Name Hours

Project Manager Geric Rose, PE, PS 120
Technical Advisor Larry Hummel, PE 40
QA/QC Review Todd Richter, PE 24
Lead Design Engineer   Dave HiIer, PE 200
Design Technician   Brad Danks 210
Design Technician   Dan Howey, CST 225
Electrical Designer   Ed Hawks 40
Signal Designer   Greg Hickey, PE, PTOE 40
Survey Manager   Kevin Cleaver, PS 8
Survey Crew Chief   Steffan Shaffer | Noah Lewis 160
Survey Technician   Dan Howey, CST 120
Administration   Carrie Smeznik 24

TRAIL CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES
Classification Name Hours

Project Manager Geric Rose, PE, PS 175
Technical Advisor Larry Hummel, PE 40
Office Technician Mark Frank, PE 200
Construction Technician Skyler Winkle  1,500 (a)
Survey Technician Dan Howey, CST 24
Survey Manager Kevin Cleaver, PS 16
Survey Crew Chief Steffan Schaffer | Noah Lewis 160
Administration  Carrie Smeznik 24

(a) 30 weeks at average 50 hours per week

SECTION 5: LEVEL OF EFFORT ESTIMATES



JEROME STREET CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES
Classification Name Hours

Project Manager Geric Rose, PE, PS 30
Office Technician Mark Frank, PE 48
Construction Technician Skyler Winkle 200 (b)
Survey Technician Dan Howey, CST 16
Survey Manager Kevin Cleaver, PS 4
Survey Crew Chief  Steffan Schaffer | Noah Lewis 16
Administration  Carrie Smeznik 8

(b) 4 weeks at average 50 hours per week. Budgeted hours for second construction technician to establish NTE fee. It is 
likely that there will be overlap with the trail project and this amount of hours may not be necessary. 

JEROME STREET DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES
Classification Name Hours

Project Manager Geric Rose, PE, PS 32
QA/QC Review Todd Richter, PE 6
Lead Design Engineer   Dave HiIer, PE 36
Design Technician   Brad Danks 80
Design Technician   Dan Howey, CST 24
Administration   Carrie Smeznik 4
Survey Crew Chief Steffan Schaffer | Noah Lewis 160
Administration  Carrie Smeznik 24



Section 6: PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 

  

2024 Design  
 Apr ‘24 May ‘24 June ‘24 July ‘24 Aug ‘24 Sept ‘24 Oct ‘24 Nov ‘24 Dec ‘24 Jan ‘25 Feb ‘25 Mar ‘25 

Topographic 
Surveying, 
Mapping, and 
Due 
Diligence 

                                                

Preliminary 
Engineering 

                                                

Final 
Engineering 

                                                

Advertiseme
nt, and 
Letting 

                                                

  
2025 Construction    

 June ‘25 July ‘25 Aug ‘25 Sept ‘25 Oct ‘25 Nov ‘25 

Trail 
Construction 
 

                        

 Construction: July 1, 2025 through October 28, 2025 (17 weeks) 
 
2026 Construction    

 Mar ‘26 Apr ‘26 May ‘26 June ‘26 July ‘26 Aug ‘26 

Trail 
Construction 
 

                        

Jerome St 
Construction 

                        

Project  
Closeout 

                        

Construction: April 1, 2026 through June 30, 2026 (13 weeks) 
 
 



SECTION 7: PROFESSIONAL FEES

We propose to complete the services noted within this proposal for the following not-to-exceed fees. 

Phase Fee
Trail Design Engineering: $184,900
Trail Construction Administration: $314,600
Jerome Street Rehabilitation Design Engineering: $29,800
Jerome Street Rehabilitation Construction Administration: $47,700
Total Lump Sum Not-to-Exceed Fee: $577,000

Note: Review and permit fees are not included in our cost proposal and shall be paid by the City of Owosso. 

Optional Services not included in above:

 ▪ Title Search for Easement Preparation: Provider fees vary depending on parcel. Estimate will be provided 
once parcels are known

 ▪ Wetland Delineation: Not anticipated. Fee will be provided if determined necessary



P.O.B.

P.O.E.

(Wayfinding Signs only)



 
 
 
 
 
 
202 S. WATER   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0580  ·   
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   March 25, 2024   
 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Chief of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Agreement for Ambulance Services Rush Township 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the contract between The City of Owosso (Owosso) and Rush Township 
(Township) to have Owosso provide ambulance coverage to Rush Township, Shiawassee County MI.  
 

Background: 
Township wishes to contract with Owosso to provide ambulance coverage to the residents of Rush 
Township.  
 

Over the last several months, officials from Rush Township and Owosso Fire staff have met to discuss 
Owosso City Fire/EMS providing ambulance coverage to the township. The attached contract was 
approved by Rush Township Board on March 14, 2024.  
 

Fiscal Impacts: 
Revenue: The Township shall pay the City of Owosso the sum of $40,307.50 on an annual basis.  
 

The Owosso Fire Department charges users of the ambulance service for services provided. Revenue for 
ambulance fees is based on a variety of factors: this amount is affected by the payer mix (e.g. Medicare, 
Medicaid, commercial or third-party insurance, or self-pay) and service mix (e.g. ALS or BLS, emergency 
or non-emergency).  
 

The estimated number of ambulance runs for Rush Township will be 4 runs per month. The revenue for 
these calls is estimated at $12,000.00 per year. ** This is based on the average number of patients that 
are transported to a medical facility.  
 

Estimated Revenue: $52,307.50 
 

Expenditures: The Owosso Fire Department plans to add three (3) additional firefighters/paramedics (one 
assigned per shift). The cost of additional personnel will be $302,409.00. (based on current pay-scale).  
 

Additional expenses for the ambulance contract include: 
a. Uniforms/Fire gear for three new employees:   $10,000.00 
b. Additional medical supplies:     $8,000.00 
c. Fuel       $10,000.00 
d. Vehicle Expenses     $7,500.00 

 

Estimated Expenses:  $337,990.00 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE AMBULANCE 
SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND RUSH TOWNSHIP 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Public Safety Department and Rush 
Township desire to enter into an agreement to have the City of Owosso provide ambulance coverage to 
Rush Township, Shiawassee County, Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, City of Owosso operates a Fire Department which has the ability and desire to provide 
ambulance service to Rush Township. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to enter into an agreement to provide ambulance services to Rush 
Township for an annual fee as outlined in the Agreement for Ambulance Services with 
Rush Township/City of Owosso.  

 
SECOND: The Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the documents in the 

form attached, Agreement for Ambulance Services with Rush Township/City of Owosso. 











City of Owosso 

By: 
--,------,-----,--

Robert Teich 
ITS: Mayor 

ATTEST:

By: _____________
Amy K. Kirkland
ITS: Clerk

Prepared By: 
Scott J. Gould (P76101) 
Owosso City Attorney 114 E. 
Main Street, Suite 218 
Owosso, Michigan 48867 
989-729-0071

5 

Rush Township 

� 
, av L 

By-. .12 .�-/ 
inda Grigsby 

ITS: Clerk 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 

 
    
DATE: April 1, 2024 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Clayton Wehner, Director of Engineering 
 
SUBJECT: Woodland Trails Sanitary Sewer Repair Project Bid Award  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Award of sanitary sewer repair services to Apex Excavating & Underground, LLC of Marion, MI, for the 
Woodland Trails Sanitary Sewer Repair Project in the amount of $72,805.00.    
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Bids were received on February 20, 2024 for the Woodland Trails Sanitary Sewer Repair Project.  This work 
is necessary to repair sections of sanitary sewer main and manhole flow channels within the Woodland Trails 
Condominium prior to acceptance of their sanitary sewer system into the city’s sanitary sewer system.  Four 
(4) bids were received with Apex Excavating & Underground, LLC the low responsive bidder.  The bid tab is 
attached. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Funds for this work are to be charged to the Sewer Fund Account No. 590-549-818.000-WASHPARK21 in the 
amount of $72,805.00, plus contingency funds in the amount of $10,000.00 for a total of $82,805.00.  These 
expenses will be reimbursed by the Brownfield Plan. 
 
 
 

 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 
                      (2) Bid Tab 
 
 
MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION GOALS: 1.4, 3.4 

 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF THE WOODLAND TRAILS  
SANITARY SEWER REPAIR PROJECT  

TO APEX EXCAVATING & UNDERGOUND, LLC OF MARION, MICHIGAN  
  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined the sanitary sewer within 
the Woodland Trails Condominium has defects and repairing these defects before accepting this sanitary 
sewer into the city’s sanitary sewer system is advisable, necessary and in the public interest; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for these repairs as part of the Woodland Trails Sanitary 
Sewer Repair Project, and the low responsive bid was received from Apex Excavating & Underground, 
LLC in the amount of $72,805.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, Apex Excavating & Underground, LLC is hereby determined to be qualified to provide such 
services. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ Apex Excavating & Underground, LLC to repair sanitary sewer 
as part of the Woodland Trails Sanitary Sewer Repair Project. 

  
SECOND: The Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the necessary documents 

to execute the services contract with Apex Excavating & Underground, LLC in the 
amount of $72,805.00. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Apex Excavating & Underground, 

LLC for work satisfactorily completed on the project up to the initial contact amount of 
$72,805.00 plus contingency in the amount of $10,000.00 with prior authorization for a 
total of $82,805.00. 

 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the Sanitary Sewer Fund Account No. 590-549-

818.000-WASHPARK21.  These expenses are to be reimbursed by the Brownfield Plan. 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract for Services Between 
 

The City of Owosso 
 

and 
 

Apex Excavating & Underground, LLC 
 
 

Woodland Trails Sanitary Sewer Repair Project 
 
 
 

April 2024 
 

  



CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on April ____, 2024 between the CITY OF OWOSSO, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, 301 W. Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867 (“city”) and Apex Excavating 
& Underground, LLC (“contractor”), a Michigan company, whose address is 4891 Fell Drive, 
Marion, Michigan 49665. 
 
Based upon the mutual promises below, the contractor and the city agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I - Scope of work 
The contractor agrees to provide the services listed in the proposal entitled “Woodland Trails 
Sanitary Sewer Repair Project”, as attached, including all written modifications incorporated into 
any of the documents, which are incorporated as part of this contract: 
  
 Bid documents 
 Bid proposal 
 Contract and exhibits 
 Bonds 
 General conditions 
 Standard specifications 
 Detailed specifications 
  
ARTICLE II - The Contract Sum 
(A) The city shall pay to the contractor for the performance of the contract, in the unit prices as 
given in the proposal not to exceed seventy-two thousand eight hundred five dollars ($72,805.00).  
No additional work shall be performed unless a change order is issued by the city. 
 
(B) The amount paid shall be equitably adjusted to cover changes in the work ordered by the city 
but not required by the contract documents where there is a written change order. 
 
ARTICLE III – Assignment 
This contract may not be assigned or subcontracted without the written consent of the city. 
 
ARTICLE IV - Choice of law 
This contract shall be construed, governed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Michigan.  By executing this agreement, the contractor and the city agree to a venue in a court of 
appropriate jurisdiction sitting within Shiawassee County for purposes of any action arising under 
this contract. 
 
Whenever possible, each provision of the contract will be interpreted in a manner as to be effective 
and valid under applicable law.  The prohibition or invalidity, under applicable law, of any provision 
will not invalidate the remainder of the contract. 
 
ARTICLE V - Relationship of the parties 
The parties of the contract agree that it is not a contract of employment but is a contract to 
accomplish a specific result.  Contractor is an independent contractor performing services for the 
city.  Nothing contained in this contract shall be deemed to constitute any other relationship 
between the city and the contractor. 
 
Contractor certifies that it has no personal or financial interest in the project other than the 
compensation it is to receive under the contract.  Contractor certifies that it is not, and shall not 
become, overdue or in default to the city for any contract, debt, or any other obligation to the city 
including real or personal property taxes.  City shall have the right to set off any such debt against 
compensation awarded for services under this agreement. 
  



ARTICLE VI – Notice 
All notices given under this contract shall be in writing, and shall be by personal delivery or by 
certified mail with return receipt requested to the parties at their respective addresses as specified 
in the contract documents or other address the contractor may specify in writing. 
 
ARTICLE VII - Indemnification 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, for any loss not covered by insurance under this contract; 
contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the city, its officers, employees and agents 
harmless from all suits, claims, judgments and expenses including attorney’s fees resulting or 
alleged to result, in whole or in part, from any act or omission, which is in any way connected or 
associated with this contract, by the contractor or anyone acting on the contractor’s behalf under 
this contract.  Contractor shall not be responsible to indemnify the city for losses or damages 
caused by or resulting from the city’s sole negligence. 
 
ARTICLE VIII - Entire agreement 
This contract represents the entire understanding between the city and the contractor and it 
supersedes all prior representations or agreements whether written or oral.  Neither party has 
relied on any prior representations in entering into this contract.  This contract may be altered, 
amended or modified only by written amendment signed by the city and the contractor. 
 
 
FOR CONTRACTOR     
 
By___________________________   
 
Its:___________________________   
 
Date:_________________________    
 
 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO  
 
By___________________________  By___________________________ 
  
Its: Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor   Its: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
Date:_________________________   Date:_________________________ 
 
 







 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 

 
DATE: April 1, 2024 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Lizzie Fredrick, Downtown Development Authority/Owosso Main Street Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: New Downtown Streetlights Bid Award  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of the low responsive bid from Spring City Electrical Mfg Co. of Spring City, PA for the New 
Downtown Streetlights in the amount of $115,518.00. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Bids were received on March 12, 2024, for the New Downtown Streetlights.  This includes purchasing new 
streetlights for portions of Washington Street, Comstock Street, Main Street, and Park Street.  See attached 
streetlight specifications.  Two (2) bids were received with Spring City Electrical Mfg Co. being the low 
responsive bidder.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Funds for the streetlights are to be charged to General Fund Account No. 101-000-540.000-DDASTRLITE in 
the amount of $115,518.00.  These expenses will be partially reimbursed by ARPA funds ($275,000.00) and a 
MEDC Revitalization and Placemaking Program (RAP 2.0) grant ($300,000.00). A transfer of DDA TIF funds 
to the General Fund will be necessary for any overages.  
 
 
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 1.9, 2.9, 3.4, 3.10, 4.5, 5.12 

 
Attachment: (1) Resolution 
                    (2) Streetlight Specifications 
                    (3) Bid Tab 

 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF THE NEW DOWNTOWN STREETLIGHTS  
FROM SPRING CITY ELECTRICAL MFG CO. OF SPRING CITY, PENNSYLVANIA 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined replacing the streetlights 
on portions of Washington Street, Comstock Street, Main Street, and Park Street is advisable, necessary, 
and in the public’s best interest; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for the purchase of New Downtown Streetlights for the 2024 
Street Light Project, and the low responsive bid was received from Spring City Electrical Mfg Co. in the 
amount of $115,518.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, Spring City Electrical Mfg Co. is hereby determined to be qualified to provide said 
streetlights. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST: the City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public’s best interest to purchase 26 Yorktown LED luminaires with Regency lamp posts 
from Spring City Electrical Mfg Co. in the amount of $115,518.00. 

 
SECOND: the contract between the City of Owosso, Michigan and Spring City Electrical Mfg Co. 

shall be in the form of a City Purchase Order.  
 
THIRD: the accounts payable department is authorized to pay Spring City Electrical Mfg Co. up to 

the purchase order amount of $115,518.00 upon satisfactory delivery of said streetlights. 
 
FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from General Fund account no. 101-000-540.000-

DDASTRLITE, and other funds as appropriate.  These expenses will be partially 
reimbursed by ARPA funds and an MEDC Revitalization and Placemaking Program (RAP 
2.0) grant with any overages being funded by a transfer of DDA TIF funds to the general 
fund.  





REGENCY
12'-11"
14'-7 7/8"
18" DIAMETER
ONE PIECE, CAST DUCTILE IRON PER A536-84
GRADE 65-45-12
POWDER COAT - RIVER TEXTURE GLOSS BLACK
LOCATED IN BASE SECURED WITH TAMPER PROOF
HEX SOCKET SECURITY MACHINE SCREWS
DRILL AND TAP INSIDE WALL OF BASE OPPOSITE
ACCESS DOOR TO ACCOMMODATE A 1/4"-20
GROUND STUD (STUD SUPPLIED BY OTHERS)
(4) 3/4" DIA. X 24" LONG + 3" HOOK (FULLY
GALVANIZED WITH 1 GALVANIZED NUT AND 1
GALVANIZED WASHER PER BOLT)
3" REQUIRED
2 7/8" DIA. X 3" HIGH (TO ACCEPT LUMINAIRE)
· 15 AMP GFCI RECEPTACLE WITH IN-USE

COVER (GFWI)

DPSRGN-18-12.92-TN2.88-3.00-GFWI-CU
323/1NW

STYLE:
HEIGHT:
PHOTOMETRIC CENTER:
BASE:
MATERIAL:

FINISH:
ACCESS DOOR:

GROUND PROVISIONS:

ANCHOR BOLTS:

BOLT PROJECTION:
TENON:
MODIFIER:

CATALOG NO.:
· POST:
· ANCHOR BOLT:

LAMP POST SPECIFICATIONS

STYLE:

HEIGHT:
WIDTH:
MATERIAL:

PANEL:
FINISH:
LAMPING:
VOLTAGE:
COLOR TEMP.:
DISTRIBUTION:
SURGE:
MODIFIER:

CATALOG NO.:

LUMINAIRE SPECIFICATIONS
YORKTOWN FULL CUT OFF LED LUMINAIRE WITH
OPEN CAGE
37"
20 1/2" HEXAGONAL (POINT TO POINT)
CAST ALUMINUM ALLOY A.N.S.I. 356, PER A.S.T.M.
B26-95
FROSTED ACRYLIC
POWDER COAT - RIVER TEXTURE GLOSS BLACK
100 WATT LED SYSTEM
ELECTRONICALLY WIRED AT 120-277 VOLTS
3000K (WARM WHITE)
TYPE IV (ASYMMETRIC DISTRIBUTION)
10KV SURGE PROTECTION
· GETTYSBURG FITTER (M2)
· BOROUGH FINIAL (FBR)

ALMYRK-M2-LE100-EVX-2F2-30-CR4-YPLF-FBR-CU

HALL AND MAIN STREETS - P.O. BOX 19 - SPRING CITY, PA. 19475
PHONE (610) 948-4000 - FAX (610) 948-5577 - WWW.SPRINGCITY.COM

Spring City Electrical Mfg. Co.

N.T.S.

SCALE

DESCRIPTION

DRAWING NO.

02-02-2022

THE 12'-11" REGENCY LAMP POST WITH THE
YORKTOWN FULL CUT-OFF LED LUMINAIRE

DRAWN BY:

B.K.R.

DATE

SPEC-33536

This drawing is property of Spring City Elect. Mfg. and is issued to the
recipient with the understanding that it shall not be copied, duplicated, passed
on to unauthorized parties, nor used for any purpose other than that for which
it is specifically furnished except with Spring City's written permission.

OPPORTUNITY CITY OF OWOSSO, MI

18" DIAMETER

℄ OF RECEPTACLE
& ACCESS DOOR

SECTION A-A
BASE PLATE DETAIL

12
'-1

1"

A 18" DIAMETER

AC
C

ES
S 

D
O

O
R

16
'-0

" O
VE

R
AL

L 
H

EI
G

H
T

A

Ø8" DIA.
CLEAR OPENING

Ø12 1/2" DIA.
BOLT CIRCLE

14
'-7

 7
/8

" T
O

 T
H

E 
PH

O
TO

M
ET

R
IC

 C
EN

TE
R

EPA INFORMATION

SECTION
PROJECTED AREA

(Sq. Ft.)
X CENTROID (Ft.) Y CENTROID (Ft.) Cd EPA (Sq. Ft.) WEIGHT (lbs.)

POST 6.20 0.00 Ft. 5.15 Ft. 1.20 7.44 585

LUMINAIRE 1.64 0.00 Ft. 14.48 Ft. 1.20 1.97 40

Drag Coefficient According To Standard Specifications for Structural Supports (Table 3.8.6-1) OVERALL WEIGHT 625

1 REVISED BY:  B.K.R. DATE: 03-16-2022

16
"

15 AMP, TAMPER AND WEATHER
RESISTANT GFCI RECEPTACLE (COOPER
INDUSTRIES #: TWRVGF15) SUPPLIED
WITH WEATHER PROOF (WEATHER
PROOF WHILE IN USE) LOCKABLE
ALUMINUM COVER (TAYMAC #: MX4280)

2 REVISED BY:  B.K.R. DATE: 02-02-2024

2

2

2

2

2

2

FROSTED ACRYLIC DIFFUSING
PANEL LOCATED IN ROOF



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: April 1, 2024 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Clayton Wehner, Director of Engineering 
 
SUBJECT: 2024 Street Light Project Bid Award  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Award of street light installation services to J. Ranck Electric, Inc. of Mt Pleasant, Michigan, for the 2024 
Street Light Project in the amount of $504,191.25.    
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Bids were received on March 12, 2024 for the 2024 Street Light Project.  This work includes removing existing 
street lights; and installing new street lights, conduit, electric wire along with concrete restoration along 
portions of Washington Street, Comstock Street, Main Street, and Park Street.  See attached project map.  
Four (4) bids were received with J. Ranck Electric, Inc. being the low responsive bidder.  

 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Funds for this work are to be charged to General Fund Account No. 101-000-540.000-DDASTRLITE, and 
other funds as appropriate, in the amount of $504,191.25, plus contingency funds for field adjustments in the 
amount of $10,000.00 for a total of $514,191.25.  These expenses will be partially reimbursed by ARPA funds 
($275,000.00) and a MEDC Revitalization and Placemaking Program (RAP 2.0) grant ($300,000.00). A 
transfer of DDA TIF funds to the General Fund will be necessary for any overages.  
 
 
 

 
Attachment: (1) Resolution 
                    (2) Project Map 
                    (3) Bid Tab 
 
 
MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION GOALS: 1.9, 2.9, 3.4, 3.10, 4.5, 5.12 

 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF THE 2024 STREET LIGHT PROJECT  
TO J. RANCK ELECTRIC, INC. OF MT PLEASANT, MICHIGAN  

  
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined replacing the decorative 
street lights on portions of Washington Street, Comstock Street, Main Street, and Park Street is 
advisable, necessary, and in the public’s best interest; and 
  
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso sought bids for the replacement of these street lights as part of the 2024 
Street Light Project, and the low responsive bid was received from J. Ranck Electric, Inc. in the amount of 
$504,191.25; and 
 
WHEREAS, J. Ranck Electric, Inc. is hereby determined to be qualified to provide such services. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: the City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public’s best interest to employ J. Ranck Electric, Inc. to replace street lights as part of 
the 2024 Street Light Project. 

  
SECOND: the mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the necessary documents 

to execute the services contract with J. Ranck Electric, Inc. in the amount of $504,191.25. 
 
THIRD: the accounts payable department is authorized to pay J. Ranck Electric, Inc. for work 

satisfactorily completed on the project up to the initial contact amount of $504,191.25, 
plus contingency in the amount of $10,000.00 with prior written authorization for a total of 
$514,191.25. 

 
FOURTH: the above expenses shall be paid from General Fund account no. 101-000-540.000-

DDASTRLITE, and other funds as appropriate.  These expenses will be partially 
reimbursed by ARPA funds and an MEDC Revitalization and Placemaking Program (RAP 
2.0) grant with any overages being funded by a transfer of DDA TIF funds to the general 
fund.  



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract for Services Between 
 

The City of Owosso 
 

and 
 

J. Ranck Electric, Inc. 
 
 

2024 Street Light Project 
 
 
 

April 2024 
 

  



CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on April ____, 2024 between the CITY OF OWOSSO, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, 301 W. Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867 (“city”) and J. Ranck Electric, 
Inc. (“contractor”), a Michigan company, whose address is 1993 Gover Parkway, Mt Pleasant, 
Michigan 48858. 
 
Based upon the mutual promises below, the contractor and the city agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I - Scope of work 
The contractor agrees to provide the services listed in the proposal entitled “2024 Street Light 
Project”, as attached, including all written modifications incorporated into any of the documents, 
which are incorporated as part of this contract: 
  
 Bid documents 
 Bid proposal 
 Contract and exhibits 
 Bonds 
 General conditions 
 Standard specifications 
 Detailed specifications 
  
ARTICLE II - The Contract Sum 
(A) The city shall pay to the contractor for the performance of the contract, in the unit prices as 
given in the proposal not to exceed five hundred four thousand one hundred ninety-one dollars and 
twenty-five cents ($504,191.25).  No additional work shall be performed unless a change order is 
issued by the city. 
 
(B) The amount paid shall be equitably adjusted to cover changes in the work ordered by the city 
but not required by the contract documents where there is a written change order. 
 
ARTICLE III – Assignment 
This contract may not be assigned or subcontracted without the written consent of the city. 
 
ARTICLE IV - Choice of law 
This contract shall be construed, governed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Michigan.  By executing this agreement, the contractor and the city agree to a venue in a court of 
appropriate jurisdiction sitting within Shiawassee County for purposes of any action arising under 
this contract. 
 
Whenever possible, each provision of the contract will be interpreted in a manner as to be effective 
and valid under applicable law.  The prohibition or invalidity, under applicable law, of any provision 
will not invalidate the remainder of the contract. 
 
ARTICLE V - Relationship of the parties 
The parties of the contract agree that it is not a contract of employment but is a contract to 
accomplish a specific result.  Contractor is an independent contractor performing services for the 
city.  Nothing contained in this contract shall be deemed to constitute any other relationship 
between the city and the contractor. 
 
Contractor certifies that it has no personal or financial interest in the project other than the 
compensation it is to receive under the contract.  Contractor certifies that it is not, and shall not 
become, overdue or in default to the city for any contract, debt, or any other obligation to the city 
including real or personal property taxes.  City shall have the right to set off any such debt against 
compensation awarded for services under this agreement. 
  



ARTICLE VI – Notice 
All notices given under this contract shall be in writing, and shall be by personal delivery or by 
certified mail with return receipt requested to the parties at their respective addresses as specified 
in the contract documents or other address the contractor may specify in writing. 
 
ARTICLE VII - Indemnification 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, for any loss not covered by insurance under this contract; 
contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the city, its officers, employees and agents 
harmless from all suits, claims, judgments and expenses including attorney’s fees resulting or 
alleged to result, in whole or in part, from any act or omission, which is in any way connected or 
associated with this contract, by the contractor or anyone acting on the contractor’s behalf under 
this contract.  Contractor shall not be responsible to indemnify the city for losses or damages 
caused by or resulting from the city’s sole negligence. 
 
ARTICLE VIII - Entire agreement 
This contract represents the entire understanding between the city and the contractor and it 
supersedes all prior representations or agreements whether written or oral.  Neither party has 
relied on any prior representations in entering into this contract.  This contract may be altered, 
amended or modified only by written amendment signed by the city and the contractor. 
 
 
FOR CONTRACTOR     
 
By___________________________   
 
Its:___________________________   
 
Date:_________________________    
 
 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO  
 
By___________________________  By___________________________ 
  
Its: Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor   Its: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
Date:_________________________   Date:_________________________ 
 
 









Aerial View of Subject Area 

� Subject Area 

200 

-==-c:::::::i---======--- Feet 
0 50 100 150 

City of Owosso Engineering Dept. GIS Office 
21 June 2023 I 

crwehner
Rectangle



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
  
DATE: April 1, 2024 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: DPW – Purchase One (1) John Deere 325G Compact Track Loader 
 Sourcewell Program ULNV0020 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval to purchase one (1) John Deere 325G Compact Track Loader and accessories from AIS 
Construction Equipment Corporation, in the amount of $115,464.11. 
  
BACKGROUND:  
 
Back in 1999, the City purchased our current 4x4 skid steer, which had an estimated working 
lifespan of fifteen (15) years.  This piece of equipment is 25 years old.  The useful and safe service 
life of this equipment has expired, and it is no longer economical to maintain. 
 
Staff has recommended upgrading to a compact track loader over a 4x4 wheeled skid steer. A 
large portion of our heavy duty equipment is already John Deere.  John Deere has a universal 
driving/operational setup, if you are able to drive/operate one, you can drive/operate all of their 
equipment.  As well as streamlining an efficient fleet maintenance/repair and tooling system.  This 
unit will also add redundancy to the fleet of essential equipment. 
 
Waiver of the competitive bidding process in accordance with the City of Owosso Purchasing 
Policy, in order to take advantage of Sourcewell competitive contract pricing, is recommended.  
Owosso City Ordinance section 2-345(3) exception to competitive bidding states; “Where the 
council shall determine that the public interest will best be served by joint purchase with, or 
purchase from, another unit of government”.   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The compact track loader was included in the fiscal year 2023/24 budget.  Funds will be expended 
from the Fleet Motor Pool Replacement Account 661-901-979.000 in amount of $115,464.11. 
 
Document originated by: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 
 (2) AIS Sourcewell Quote 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR 
ONE JOHN DEERE 325G COMPACT TRACK LOADER 

FROM A I S CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT CORPORATION 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a Department of Public Works 
requiring the use of compact track loader(s); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, has budgeted from the Fleet Motor Pool Replacement Fund for the 
purchase of one (1) compact track loader and accessories; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Director of Public Services & Utilities has reviewed the equipment on the 
Sourcewell Program as priced by A I S Construction Equipment Corporation, and recommends 
authorizing a purchase agreement between the City of Owosso and A I S Construction Equipment 
Corporation for the acquisition of one (1) John Deere 325G Compact Track Loader and accessories on 
the Sourcewell Program ULNV0020 in the amount of $115,464.11 total; and  
 
WHEREAS, waiver of the purchasing policy formal bid requirements is requested, to initiate procurement 
upon approval and authorization.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to contract with A I S Construction Equipment Corporation for the purchase 
of one (1) John Deere 325G Compact Track Loader and accessories on Sourcewell 
Program ULNV0020, for use in the Fleet Motor Pool, in the amount of $115,464.11.  

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to A I S Construction 

Equipment Corporation in the amount of $115,464.11. 
 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from account no. 661-901-979.000. 



 

GRAND RAPIDS 
600 AIS Drive Southwest 
Grand Rapids, MI  49548 
Telephone:  (616) 538-2400 

SAGINAW 
4600 AIS Drive 
Bridgeport, MI  48722 
Telephone:  (989) 777-0090 

TRAVERSE CITY 
8300 M-72 East 
Williamsburg, MI  49690 
Telephone:  (231) 267-9513 

   
LANSING 
3600 North Grand River Avenue 
Lansing, MI  48906 
Telephone:  (517) 321-8000 

RICHMOND 
65809 Gratiot Avenue 
Lenox, MI  48050 
Telephone:  (586) 727-7502 

WEST DETROIT 
56555 Pontiac Trail 
New Hudson, MI  48165 
Telephone:  (248) 437-8121 

 
March 1, 2024 
 
Mr. Zach Ryan  
City of Owosso Public Works 
522 Milwaukee St. 
Owosso, MI 48867 
 
RE: Sourcewell Program ULNV0020 Pricing For New Deere 325G. 
       
Dear Mr. Ryan, 
 
AIS Construction Equipment Corp & John Deere are pleased to provide you the following  
pricing for a new Deere model 325G compact track loade.                                                                            
Pricing is current Sourcewell Program ULNV0020 pricing and as such will be firm until there 
is a manufacturer list price increase. 
 
One (1) New John Deere 325G as outlined in the attached equip details pages, 
 
             List Price                                                              $       100,965.00 
             Less Sourcewell Discount 30%                                   (  30,289.50) 
             Sub-Total                                                              $         70,675.50 
             PDI 1.5%                                                                           1,060.13 
             AT322310 78” bucket w/BOCE                                        2,503.00 
             BYT10226 severe duty door                                              3,201.00 
             AT348835 weight kits (3 @ 172 lbs.)                                1,161.00  
             BYT10048 beacon installed                                                  329.00 
             BYT10680 SMV sign installed                                             180.00 
             BYT12804 hazard warning lights installed                           225.00 
             48” forks & carriage                                                           1,500.00 
             Hard copy parts & service manuals                                       525.00 
             Install & set-up                                                                      750.00 
             Factory freight & delivery                                                  3,100.00 
One (1) New John Deere PR84B power rake (net of discounts)   12,706.50 
One (1) New Blue Diamond Swing Arm Brush Cutter  
              Net of discounts                                                                17,547.98 
 
             TOTAL CASH PRICE DELIVERED                  $        115,464.11 
 
As AIS is authorized vendor for Sourcewell Program 011723-JDC, if PO issued 
it should be made out to:   
                                            AIS Construction Equipment Corp. 
                                            56555 Pontiac Trail 
                                            New Hudson, MI 48165 
 



 
Please contact me any time with questions or if additional info is needed.  AIS &  
my-self look forward to assisting you with any of your construction equipment needs! 
 
Sincerely, 
AIS Construction Equipment Co. 
 
Craig Vick 
 
Craig Vick 
Governmental Sales Manager 
586-634-2760 
 
ckv 
 
  
 
            



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
DATE: April 1, 2024 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT:  Joint Solicitation–Lansing Board of Water & Light (LBWL) Consortium for 

Bulk – FY2024-25 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Authorization to enter into purchase orders with PVS Technologies, Inc. JCI Jones Chemicals, 
Inc., and Graymont Western Lime Inc. for bulk chemicals necessary for treatment of potable water 
and wastewater. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Lansing Board of Water & Light solicits bids each year for bulk chemicals for its own 
operations and many other surrounding communities.  The following bulk chemicals are the lowest 
priced available through the competitive bid process for the 2024-2025 budget year: 
 
Ferric Chloride (FeCl3) is used at the Wastewater Treatment, works for removal of phosphorous 
and suspended solids. Of the bids received by LBWL, PVS Technologies, Inc. of Detroit, Michigan 
was the low responsible and responsive bidder at $1,168.00/Dry Ton of FeCl3 ion.  The dry price 
increased 2% over last year ($1,150/Dry Ton).  2023 price was $1,150.00/Dry Ton, 2022 price 
was $778.00/Liquid Ton or $778.00/Dry Ton. Before this prices remained the same from 2019 – 
2021 at $225.00/Liquid Ton and $592.00/Dry Ton.    
 
Sodium Hypochlorite (NaOCl) is used at the Wastewater Treatment Plant, works for disinfection 
of process wastewater effluent, and at the Water Filtration Facility for disinfection of potable 
drinking water.  Of the bids received by LBWL, JCI Jones Chemicals, Inc., of Riverview, 
Michigan was the low responsible and responsive bidder at $1.81/gallon(*higher unit price if 
amounts less than 4,500 gals per order, **prices can change quarterly).  2023 price was 
$2.05/gallon, 2022 price was $1.59/gallon, 2021 price was $0.72/gallon, 2020 price was 
$0.71/gallon, 2019 price was $0.746/gallon, and 2018 price was $0.67/gallon. 
      
CaCO3 Lime (Pebble Quick Lime) is primarily used for the removal of carbonate hardness and 
iron from ground water, and also provides some disinfection properties for water.  Of the bids 
received by LBWL, Graymont Western Lime Inc. of Westbend, Wisconsin was the low 
responsible bidder at $189.00/Dry Ton, an increase of 10% over last year.  2023 price was 
$172.00/Dry Ton, 2022 price was $149.50/Dry Ton, 2021 price was $143.50/Dry Ton, 2020 price 
was $143.90/Dry Ton, 2019 price was $143.00/Dry Ton, and 2018 price was $134.61/Dry Ton. 

 
 
 
 



 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
FeCl3 usage estimated for FY2023-2024 is 85.5 ton @ $1,168.00/Dry Ton for estimated total 
 ……………………………………………………………………………... $99,864.00 
      
NaOCl usage estimated for FY2023-2024 is 54,000 gallons @ $1.81/gallon for estimated total
 ……………………………………………………………………………... $97,740.00 
      
CaCO3 usage estimated for FY2023-2024 is 840 ton @ $189.00/Dry Ton for estimated total
 ……………………………………………………………………………... $158,760.00  
 
 
 
Document originated by: Ryan E. Suchanek 
 
 
Attachments:   (1) Resolutions 
                       (2) Bid Documents – PVS Technologies, Inc. 
   (3) Bid Documents – JCI Jones Chemicals, Inc. 
   (4) Bid Documents – Graymont Western Lime Inc. 
 
 
Master Plan Implementation Goals: 3.4  



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE ORDER  
FOR FERRIC CHLORIDE FROM PVS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LANSING BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT CONSORTIUM 
2024 COMPETITIVE BIDDING PROGRAM  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires Ferric Chloride (iron) in bulk 
deliveries for use in treating municipal wastewater; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lansing Board of Water & Light (LBWL) solicited competitive bids for ferric chloride; and 
it is hereby determined that PVS Technologies, Inc. is qualified to provide such product and that it has 
submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
execute a purchase order with  PVS Technologies, Inc. of Detroit, Michigan for the 
purchase of Ferric Chloride at the price of $1,168.00 per dry ton, with an estimated usage 
of 85.5 dry ton for FY 2024-2025. 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to PVS Technologies, 

Inc. in the estimated amount of $99,864.00 for FY2024-2025, based on unit prices and 
actual quantities delivered. 

 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the wastewater fund following delivery, and 

chargeable to account 599-548-743.100. 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE ORDER FOR  
SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE WITH JCI JONES CHEMICALS, INC.  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LANSING BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT CONSORTIUM 
2024 COMPETITIVE BIDDING PROGRAM  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires sodium hypochlorite in bulk 
deliveries for use in treating municipal wastewater and drinking water; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lansing Board of Water & Light (LBWL) solicited competitive bids for sodium 
hypochlorite; and it is hereby determined that JCI Jones Chemicals, Inc. of Riverview, Michigan is 
qualified to provide such product and that it has submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
execute a purchase order with JCI Jones Chemicals, Inc. for the purchase of sodium 
hypochlorite at the price per gallon noted below, with an estimated total usage of 54,000 
gallons for FY2024-2025: 

 
# Gallons Delivered $/Gallon 
1,000-1,999 gals/del          $3.58/gal 
2,000-2,999 gals/del          $2.48/gal 
3,000-3,999 gals/del          $2.06/gal 
4,000-4,499 gals/del          $1.87/gal 
4,500+ gals/del                  $1.81/gal 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to JCI Jones 

Chemicals, Inc. in the estimated amount of $97,740.00, which may be exceed based on 
usage and actual need. 

 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the wastewater and water fund following delivery, 

and chargeable to account 599-548-743.300 with the estimated amount of $73,305.00 
and to account 591-553-743.000 with the estimated amount of $24,435.00. 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE ORDER FOR  
LIME (PEBBLE QUICK LIME) WITH GRAYMONT WESTERN LIME INC.  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LANSING BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT CONSORTIUM 
2024 COMPETITIVE BIDDING PROGRAM  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires Lime in bulk deliveries for use in 
treating municipal drinking water; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lansing Board of Water & Light (LBWL) solicited competitive bids for lime; and it is 
hereby determined that Graymont Western Lime Inc. of Westbend, Wisconsin is qualified to provide such 
product and that it has submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
execute a purchase order with Graymont Western Lime Inc. for the purchase Lime at the 
price of $189.00 per ton, with an estimated usage of 840 ton for FY2024-2025. 

 
SECOND: the accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Graymont Western 

Lime Inc., in the estimated amount of $158,760.00, based on unit prices and actual 
quantities received. 

 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be paid from the water fund following delivery, and chargeable 

to account 591-553-743.000. 



 
 
 
 

301 W. MAIN  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0599  FAX (989) 723-8854 

 
 

 

DATE:  3.25.24 
TO:  CITY COUNCIL 
FROM:  CITY MANAGER 
SUBJECT: Approve Blight Grant Agreement – City Club Building – 117 W Exchange St 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In summer of 2023, the roof and floors of 117 W Exchange St collapsed into the basement of the 
structure.  The façade of the structure was ordered to be braced and preserved by the Owosso Historic 
District Commission and the work necessary was completed shortly after the collapse.  Then the Building 
Official began court proceedings against the owner of the property for not cleaning up the property, 
removing the debris, and managing the water intrusion into the shared foundation.  The Shiawassee 
Circuit Court began proceedings whereby the owner of the property caused a default judgement to be 
issued because he ignored the Court’s attempts to engage him in the process.  Ultimately, the Court 
gave the City permission to clean up the site and charge the cost to the property’s tax bill. 
 
The SEDP, through the County Land Bank, approached the city shortly after the Court ruling and offered 
to try for some blight elimination grant money through the state to assist in the city’s efforts to clean up 
the property – should the city council approve the cleanup.  This option was open to the owner during 
the regular funding rounds, but it did not pan out.  The SEDP was able to secure some funding from 
another project that did not proceed in Owosso Township and the Township Board agreed to release 
their award to assist the City of Owosso with this project.  Those grant funds amount to $88,873.96.   
 
The City Council is now asked to execute the cleanup of the property in the form of a blight grant 
agreement with the County Land Bank so that a portion of the project can be funded with these grant 
funds the SEDP and the City Administration were able to secure after all grant rounds have ended.  The 
price for the cleanup is estimated at $235,470.56 but may change because the Land Bank has to bid out 
the project per state grant rules.  The estimate came from the only source we had – which was a quote 
from the building owner’s contractor. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the Blight Grant Agreement with the County Land Bank to secure partial funding to clean up 
the property at 117 W Exchange St contingent upon the funds being awarded.  If the state denies the 
grant, the city may revisit the issue.  If the grant is approved, the County Land Bank will bid the project 
as required by grant rules while the city will provide the bid specifications.  The front façade will be 
preserved by order of the HDC.  Total cost to the City is estimated at $146,596.60 – but again that could 
change depending on the bids.  I’d recommend approving this agreement with a cost not to exceed that 
amount in case the bids come back higher. 
 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  1.12, 1.19, 2.6, 3.1, 3.2, 4.3, 4.7, 7.1, 7.4 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

APPROVING LAND BANK BLIGHT GRANT AGREEMENT FOR  
117 W EXCHANGE ST 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, received permission from the 
Shiawassee Circuit Court to clean up the collapsed building in the downtown at 117 W Exchange St; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner of the building has refused to comply with the Building Official’s attempts to gain 
compliance through an owner-initiated cleanup of the collapsed building; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SEDP, City Administration, and County Land Bank have secured a grant funding 
opportunity through direct negotiation with the State of Michigan Land Bank and Owosso Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Land Bank is authorized to bid the project as required by the Grant rules with City 
providing bid specifications; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to maintain the downtown area free from neglectful collapses of private 
properties in an attempt to eliminate and discourage blight. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to approve the Blight Grant Agreement for the cleanup of the collapsed 
building at 117 W Exchange St. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Blight Grant Agreement. 
 
THIRD: City’s portion of the cost not to exceed $146,596.60. 
 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the General fund. 



1 
 

BLIGHT GRANT AGREEMENT 

This blight grant agreement (the Agreement) is by and between the SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND 
BANK AUTHORITY (SLCB) and the CITY OF OWOSSO (City), effective April 1st, 2024 (the 
Effective Date). SCLB and the CITY shall each individually be referred to herein as a Party and 
collectively as the Parties. 

RECITALS 
  
WHEREAS, the above identified Parties have mutually accepted the following: 
 

A. Whereas the property located at 117 W. Exchange St., Owosso (the Property), Michigan is in 
severe disrepair and presents a public hazard to the citizens of the City of Owosso; 

B. The purpose of the Blight Grant Agreement (BGA) is to respond to the public health emergency 
or its negative economic impacts by promoting health and safety and addressing blight in 
disproportionately impacted communities around the State of Michigan by investing in projects 
that result in the demolition or stabilization of public or privately-owned structures; 

C. The City has expressed a strong desire to stabilize and retain the historic façade of the Property 
instead of completely demolishing a building in its historic downtown district; 

D. The SCLB has awarded Round 3 Blight Elimination Program (BEP) funds towards stabilization 
of the 117 Exchange Street Property contingent upon execution of a satisfactory Blight Grant 
Agreement between the City and the SCLB; and  

E. The Parties desire to cooperate in expending the awarded funds to accomplish eligible 
stabilization activities in connection with the Property as allowed by order of the 35th Circuit 
Court. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties agree as follows: 

I.  PURPOSE AND PROJECT SCOPE.  

A. The purpose of this Agreement is to memorialize the agreement between the SCLB and the City 
whereby the SCLB will provide funding in the amount not to exceed Eighty-Eight Thousand 
Dollars ($88,000.00), less any applicable administrative fees, towards stabilization activities at 
the Property.  The City reserves the right to conduct additional demolition, repair, stabilization, 
and/or remediation activities on the Property funded by non-BEP funds so long as such activities 
do not conflict with the stabilization activities covered by this Agreement.   

B. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the SCLB and the City on the subject 
of the Property and may be modified only by written agreement between the SCLB and the City.  

II. SITE ACCESS 

The City has obtained an order of the 35th Circuit Court allowing the City to secure, stabilize, repair and/or 
demolish the Property.  The City hereby grants the SCLB (and its employees, officers, agents, authorized 
representatives, contractors, subcontractors and vendors) access to the Property in order to conduct 
activities under the BEP.  Specifically, the SCLB is authorized to conduct stabilization activities described 
in the application for BEP funding for the Property, and the SCLB’s access to the Property is limited to 
access necessary to complete such activities.   Any change to the project scope requires the consent of the 
City. 



2 
 

 

III. TERM.  

This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date and will terminate upon completion of the 
stabilization activities. 

IV. CONTACTS.  

SCLB Contact:    City Contact:  
Dr. Brian Boggs   Nathan Henne 
County Administrator   City Manager 
201 N. Shiawassee St.   301 W. Main Street 
Corunna, MI 48817   Owosso, Michigan 

V. CHANGES.  

No changes or amendments to this Agreement shall be effective unless reduced to writing and executed 
by both Parties. 

VI. SCLB RESPONSIBILITIES.  

A. The SCLB will oversee the bidding, awarding and completion of the stabilization activities 
pursuant to applicable state and federal statutes and regulations.    

B. All local, State, and federal permits, if required, are the responsibility of the SCLB or its 
vendors/designees.  

C. The SCLB affirms with this Agreement that it has acquired the appropriate SCLB Board approval 
of this Agreement. 

D. The SCLB is responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and 
coordination of all designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other services furnished by the 
SCLB or its contractors/subcontractors/vendors under this Agreement. The SCLB or its 
subcontractor shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors, omissions, or 
other deficiencies in designs, drawings, specifications, reports, or other services.  

E. The City’s approval of drawings, designs, specifications, reports, and incidental work or materials 
furnished hereunder shall not in any way relieve the SCLB of responsibility for the technical 
adequacy of the work. The City’s review, approval, acceptance, or payment for any of the services 
shall not be construed as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or cause of action arising 
out of the performance of this Agreement.  

F. SCLB shall conduct any required preliminary studies prior to beginning the bidding process for 
the project.  

G. The SCLB, upon receiving the bid specifications from the City relating all the work forecasted 
to be performed to accomplish the task of this Agreement, shall conduct, in consultation with the 
City, the public bid and contractor/vendor selection.  
 

VII. CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES. 
 

A. The City affirms with this Agreement that it has acquired the appropriate City Council approval 
of this Agreement. 

B. The City shall obtain an order of the Circuit Court sufficient to give site control to the SCLB to 
perform the stabilization activities in compliance with BEP regulations and requirements. 



3 
 

C. The City shall perform a bid specification relating all the work forecasted to be performed in 
order to accomplish the task of this Agreement and forward said bid specification to the SCLB. 
The SCLB shall be responsible for setting the bid request to the public and for selecting the 
appropriate contractors/vendors. 

D. The City shall cooperate with the SCLB’s efforts to oversee the project. 
E. Based on those studies and/or resulting bids, the City’s budget and sources of funding will be 

reviewed by City to determine if adequate financial resources are available. The City intends to 
fund the balance of the project cost that exceeds the SCLB’s contribution. If it is determined that 
the project exceeds available financial resources or said project is beyond what the City deems a 
reasonable cost for the project, City may terminate this Agreement for lack of adequate funding. 

F. The City’s approval of drawings, designs, specifications, reports, and incidental work or materials 
furnished hereunder shall not in any way hold the SCLB responsible for the technical adequacy 
of the work. The City’s review, approval, acceptance, or payment for any of the services shall 
not be construed as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or cause of action arising out of 
the performance of this Agreement.  

G. The City may establish a special assessment and assess for the entire amount contributed by the 
City only, for the public improvement and benefited land according to its local ordinance. 

H.  The City is responsible for recording a lien naming the City first in priority upon the privately-
owned Property in the full amount of both BEP and City Funds expended. A release of lien shall 
be provided upon repayment of the Funds spent upon the project.   

VIII. ASSIGNABILITY and SUBCONTRACTORS.  

A) With the exceptions of the Shiawassee Economic Development Partnership (which handles 
certain program oversight functions of the SCLB) and the projects contractors/subcontractors and 
vendors, the SCLB shall not assign this Agreement or assign or delegate any of its duties or 
obligations under this Agreement to any other party without the prior written consent of the City. 
The City does not assume responsibility regarding the contractual relationships between the 
SCLB and any subcontractor. If City consents to any assignment or delegation to any other party, 
the SCLB shall provide City with the proposed assignment or delegation agreement prior to its 
execution for approval by City.  

B) The SCLB is solely responsible for all contractual activities performed under this Agreement. 
Further, the City will consider the SCLB to be the sole point of contact with regard to contractual 
matters, including payment of any and all charges resulting from the anticipated contracts. All 
contractors, subcontractors, or others used by the SCLB in performing the project shall be subject 
to the provisions of this Agreement and shall be licensed and qualified, as appropriate, to perform 
the duties required. Contractors must be procured through a competitive procurement process that 
complies with SCLB’s procurement policies. 

IX. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  

The SCLB shall comply with the Elliott Larsen Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 453, as amended, MCL 
37.2101 et seq., the Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 220, as amended, MCL 
37.1101 et seq., and all other federal, State, and local fair employment practices and equal opportunity 
laws. SCLB covenants that it shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment, to be employed in the performance of this Agreement, with respect to his or her hire, 
tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to 
employment, because of his or her race, religion, color, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, 



4 
 

marital status, or physical or mental disability that is unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform 
the duties of a particular job or position. In addition, as provided in Executive Directive 2019-09, any 
contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
with respect to his or her hire, terms, tenure, conditions or privileges of employment, or any matter 
directly or indirectly related to employment because of religion, race, color, national origin, sex, 
height, weight, marital status, partisan considerations, or a disability or genetic information that is 
unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position. The SCLB 
agrees to include in every contract or subcontract entered into for the performance of this Contract 
this covenant not to discriminate in employment. A breach of this covenant is a material breach of 
this Agreement. 

X. LIABILITY.  

A. The SCLB, shall not be held responsible nor liable for any claims, judgments, or costs arising out 
of activities to be carried out by the SCLB under this Agreement. The SCLB shall not be liable 
for any claims, judgments or costs merely by providing grant funding.   

B. The City represents and warrants that the SCLB is not, and shall not become, responsible for any 
obligations imposed upon the City by the 35th Circuit Court to repair and/or demolish the 
Property.  The involvement of the SCLB is limited to awarding BEP funds and overseeing BEP 
stabilization activities on the Property. 

C. The SCLB shall not be liable for any reason including any damage or loss to the property 
commonly known as 117 W. Exchange Street or any contiguous or adjacent properties resulting 
from any and all work performed related to or stemming from this Agreement. 

D. Nothing in this contract should be construed as a waiver of any governmental immunity by the 
City, the SCLB, its agencies, or employees as provided by statute or court decisions. 

XI. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  

No employee, officer, director, appointee or elected official of the City, the SCLB, the SCLB Board, 
or their families, shall benefit financially from any part of this Agreement. 

XII. ANTI-LOBBYING.  

Neither Party shall use any of the Program Funds awarded in this Agreement for the purpose of 
lobbying as defined in the State of Michigan’s lobbying statute, MCL 4.415(2): “‘Lobbying’ means 
communicating directly with an official of the executive branch of State government or an official in 
the legislative branch of State government for the purpose of influencing legislative or administrative 
action.”  

XIII. INSURANCE. 

The SCLB shall require all contractors and subcontractors providing activities or services under this 
Agreement to carry, and show proof of coverage, of comprehensive general liability, automobile and 
workman’s compensation insurance at levels consistent with SCLB’s contracting policies and 
contracts.  

XIV. CLOSEOUT. 

A determination of project completion, which may include a site inspection and an audit, shall be 
made by the City after the SCLB has satisfactorily completed the activities. 



5 
 

 

 

XV. NOTIFICATION OF DELAYS.  

The SCLB shall inform the City of any delays in the start-up of the project and any delays in progress 
toward completion of the project.  

XVI. PUBLICITY.  

City shall cooperate with SCLB and coordinate with SCLB for any press releases or public events 
regarding the project, including, but not limited to, being available for and attending press events for 
state and local representatives.  

 
XVII. GOVERNING LAW.  

 
This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Michigan without regard to conflicts of law principles therein, venue being in Shiawassee County, 
Michigan. 

 
XVIII. INDEPENDENT PARTIES.  

 
SCLB and the City are independent entities and neither is the agent or employee of the other. 
Neither Party shall have any right or authority to execute any document or make any 
representation on behalf of the other Party or to bind or obligate for any purpose the other Party 
as agent, employee or otherwise, without the express approval of the other Party. 

 
XIX. SEVERABILITY.  
 

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or otherwise unenforceable, such provision 
shall be severed and the entire agreement shall not fail on account thereof, and the balance of this 
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
XX. CONSTRUCTION. 

 
This Agreement shall be construed according to its fair meaning and as if prepared by both Parties. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year first 
written above. 

 
 

[signature page to follow] 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

 
 
 
SHIAWASSEE COUNTY LAND BANK 
AUTHORITY  
 
_________________________________ 
By:  Julie Sorensen 
Its:   President 
 
 
CITY OF OWOSSO  
 
_________________________________ 
By:  Robert J. Teich, Jr. 
Its:   Mayor 
 
 
__________________________________ 
By:  Amy K. Kirkland 
Its:   City Clerk 
 



 
 
 
 

301 W. MAIN  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0599  FAX (989) 723-8854 

 
 

 

DATE:  3.25.24 
TO:  CITY COUNCIL 
FROM:  CITY MANAGER 
SUBJECT: Approve Woodland Trails Development Agreement (HOA, Land Bank, City) 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In the early 2000’s, the developer of Woodland Trails condominium association installed a sewer system 
that the city found to be deficient and subsequently did not accept the system into its public sewer 
system.  So, since the time of installation, that sewer system has been considered private – mains and 
all.  For one reason or another (I have not been able to ascertain) the HOA nor the city enforced any 
performance bond against the original building/developer.  This would most likely have been a futile 
exercise as the builder promptly went bankrupt after the development was completed – most likely a 
casualty of the housing bubble burst in mid to late 200X’s.   
 
In the last 20 years, the sewer system has remained private with the City and the HOA trying 
unsuccessfully to negotiate repairs so that the city can finally accept the system as public subject to 
requirements and limitations in the city’s ordinance.  Now, with the Brownfield Project (BRA #23) there 
is an opportunity for the HOA, City, and County Land Bank to fix the deficiencies so that the city may 
fund the project and accept the sewer as public after the deficiencies are repaired. 
 
In the last year, the city has televised the system and bid out the repairs – subject to approval of the 
Brownfield Plan and this 3-party agreement.   
 
The Agreement ensures that the city is paid back for the money it advances from the Sewer Fund.  This 
is done in redundancy: 

1. The brownfield plan specifies that the city will be reimbursed for the advancement of funds to 
repair the sewer, and 

2. In the event that the capture is not enough to reimburse the city for this advancement (or the 
development stalls), the County Land Bank agrees that the city will be reimbursed from a 
reserve account created with the funds it receives from the sale of the 14 lots in the HOA to be 
developed. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the Woodland Trails Development Agreement. 
 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:  1.2, 1.4, 3.1, 3.4, 7.1, 7.4 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

APPROVING THE WOODLAND TRAILS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved Brownfield Plan #23 – 
Woodland Trails/Washington Park Development Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso wishes to repair and accept the currently private sewer system in the 
Woodland Trails Condominium Association into the city’s public sewer system subject to the requirements 
of city ordinance 34-151; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has identified needed areas of repair on said system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the system was built in the early 2000’s with the goal of eventually having it accepted as 
public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the deficiencies cannot be addressed by the Woodland Trails Homeowner’s Association; and 
 
WHEREAS, an opportunity to create a funding mechanism to reimburse the city to repair the deficiencies 
is now present in the form of Brownfield Plan #23 and this Woodland Trails Development Agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to approve the Woodland Trails Development Agreement. 

 
SECOND: The Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in the form attached, Woodland Trails Development Agreement. 
 
THIRD: Approval is contingent on BRA Plan #23 approval, construction bid approval regarding 

the required repairs to the system, and full execution of this agreement by the County 
Land Bank, Woodland Trails HOA, and the City. 











President
2024-03-21



 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

DATE: March 27, 2024 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: 21 Day Posting – $360,000 offer to purchase the Gould House 
 
 
Background: 
 
At their March 26 special meeting, the OHC voted to recommend that council accept the offer to 
purchase the Gould House received from Sean Harrington in the amount of $360,000.  The OHC 
would like to retain any artwork or non-furniture items in the house, the Amos Gould Chair, the 
piano, the display cases, and the chairs donated by a local attorney.  The remaining furnishings 
will convey with the home. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Authorize the posting of this offer for 21 days according to Section 14.3(B)(2) of the city charter 
governing the sale of real property. 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

AUTHORIZING 21- DAY POSTING OF PURCHASE AGREEMENT  
FOR THE SALE OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY AT  

515 N WASHINGTON STREET – THE “AMOS GOULD HOUSE” 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, owns parcel 050-470-033-001-00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has received an offer to purchase the 
property for three hundred and sixty thousand dollars ($360,000); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owosso Historic Commission (OHC) recommended City Council accept this offer at their 
March 26, 2024 special meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney is of the opinion that the 21-day rule applies to the sale of this property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the OHC wishes to retain certain items of personal property still in the home. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary, and 
in the public interest to sell the aforementioned parcel to Sean Harrington of 
Crestwood, KY in the amount of $360,000. 

 
SECOND: The city clerk is instructed to publicly publish this offer per Section 14.3(B)(2) of the 

city charter for twenty-one (21) days. 



































DocuSign Envelope ID: 35D75C4A-87FD-4271-9633-E85CD4938E18

03/25/2024



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W MAIN  ∙   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 ∙   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
  

 
 
 

 
DATE: April 1, 2024 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Clayton Wehner, Director of Engineering 
 
SUBJECT: Consumers Energy Electric Facilities Easement 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Recommend approval of the attached permanent easement granting Consumers Energy a 12’ easement 
through city owned parcel no. 050-470-000-001-00 (Armory Parking Lot) for the installation and 
maintenance of new electric facilities to service the property at 300 W. Main Street. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The city is in receipt of a request from Consumers Energy for a 12’ wide easement for the construction, 
operation, and maintenance of electric facilities in the city owned parcel 050-470-000-001-00 (Armory 
Parking Lot).  The electric facilities will include underground conduit and electric lines running from the 
transformer in the southeast corner of the lot south to the 300 W. Main St. property.   
 
City staff has reviewed the location of the proposed easement and agrees that its placement is 
appropriate. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
There are no direct fiscal impacts on the City. 
 
 
MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION GOALS:  



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

GRANTING A PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR ELECTRIC FACILITIES 
TO CONSUMERS ENERGY 

 
WHEREAS, Consumers Energy desires to install electric facilities on/in City owned parcel no. 050-470-
000-001-00 to provide electric service to the property at 300 W Main Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, Consumers Energy has requested the City grant a permanent easement measuring 12’ wide 
to allow for construction, operation, maintenance, and inspection of said facilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed the request, and concurs with the proposed location; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso is willing to grant a permanent easement for that portion of parcel number 
050-470-000-001-00 as described in Exhibit B of the easement agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST:  it has determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to grant a 
permanent easement as outlined by the terms set forth in the attached Easement for 
Electric Facilities between the City of Owosso and Consumers Energy for electric service 
to the property at 300 W. Main Street. 

 
SECOND: the Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to execute said easement 

documents.  















 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
   

DATE: March 26, 2024 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Amy Fuller, Assistant City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Parks and Recreation Millage 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
The Owosso Parks and Recreation Commission voted at their December 6, 2023 meeting to ask 
City Council to put a millage request on the August 2024 ballot. The ballot measure would 
request that .5 mill be levied for park capital improvements per the 2023 five-year Owosso Parks 
and Recreation Master Plan.  
 
The voters previously passed the 2018 Parks and Historic Sites Millage, of which approximately 
$250,000 was earmarked for the city's parks. Due to this funding, the Commission has been able 
to add pickleball courts at Bentley Park, increase parking and repair drainage problems at 
Bennett Fields, add a canoe/kayak landing downtown, build a playground at Collamer Park, 
install two new docks at Collamer Park, install disc golf signage, purchase a new scoreboard and 
make building improvements at Rudy DeMuth Fields, bring water to the community gardens and 
dog park at Collamer Park, plant trees at Hugh Parker Fields, make amphitheater improvements, 
and purchase new grills and picnic tables for several parks.  
 
None of this work was accomplished alone, the Parks and Recreation Commission has 
consistently partnered with community organizations to make the millage funds stretch as far as 
possible. The above projects wouldn't have been possible without help from Saginaw Bay WIN, 
the Kiwanis Club, the Curwood Festival, the Owosso baseball and softball communities, and 
countless community members who have helped along the way.  
 
There has been significant progress but with a park system consisting of approximately 250 acres 
and amenities dispersed over 12 parks, there is still more work to be done. The Commission 
suggests asking the voters for another millage to allow them to continue to make improvements 
to the city's parks.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
If passed by the voters in August of 2024, this ballot measure would generate an estimated 
$170,000 per year for two years. These funds, if approved in August by the voters will be 
earmarked for parks and recreation capital improvements. 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

PLACING A PARKS AND RECREATION MILLAGE ON THE 2024 AUGUST PRIMARY BALLOT 
   
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined that recreation 
opportunities are important to the community as a whole; and 
   
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has created a Parks and Recreation Commission to provide quality parks 
and recreation opportunities; and   
   
WHEREAS, in 2018 the voters of the City of Owosso approved a millage for two (2) years on all property 
within the City, the levy of which was dedicated to support parks and historic sites; and  
     
WHEREAS, the 2018 millage has expired and the Owosso City Council believes that it is desirable to 
continue to make improvements to the city’s parks through the levy of another .5 maximum millage for two 
(2) years for that purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is estimated that such levy would generate $170,000 each year from property within the 
City of Owosso; and 
   
WHEREAS, the 2024 primary election on August 6, 2024 is the next available election when the millage 
question can be placed on the ballot.  
   
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
   

FIRST: the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to file a request with the Shiawassee 
County Clerk’s Office requesting the Owosso parks millage proposal be placed on the 
2024 primary election ballot for August 6, 2024.   

 
SECOND:  the proposition to be placed on the ballot for consideration by the registered voters in the 

City of Owosso be printed as follows:   
 

PROPOSITION TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVYING OF .05 MILLS TO 
PROVIDE FUNDING TO MAINTAIN, IMPROVE, AND UPGRADE PARKS 

WITHIN THE CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

Shall the City of Owosso levy a new additional millage of .5 mill ($.50 per 
$1,000.00) on taxable value of property located in the City of Owosso, in 
accordance with Section 9.1 of the Owosso City Charter? The millage shall be 
levied for two years beginning with the 2025 tax levy year and running through the 
2026 tax year (inclusive). If approved, the millage will raise, in the first year of such 
levy, an estimated revenue of $170,000 per year to provide funding to the City of 
Owosso Parks and Recreation Commission. Revenue will be used to maintain, 
improve, and upgrade parks within the City of Owosso. 
 
If approved and levied in full, a portion of such millage may be subject to capture 
by the Owosso Downtown Development Authority and Owosso Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority. 
 

 
Yes/No 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
DATE: April 1, 2024 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Aleigha Geiger, City Utility Biller  
 
SUBJECT: Unpaid Utility Billings to be transferred to Taxes 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Water Department asks that Council please review the list and, if acceptable, approve publication of 
Notice of Collection by the Clerk’s Office.   
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
In accordance with the Charter, this time each year the Water Department prepares a listing of unpaid 
water/sewer bills that could be transferred to taxes.  The unpaid bill listing is primarily made up of unpaid 
past due, final water bills, but can include active uncollectible bills from the previous year. 
  
A letter explaining the collection procedure will be sent to each owner along with a copy of the original 
billing.  Any billing that remains unpaid after April 30, 2024 will be added to the 2024 summer real 
property tax bill with an additional 10% penalty.  
  
If you have any questions, please direct them to Katherine Fagan or myself.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Theoretically there would be no fiscal impacts as the unpaid charges are transferred to taxes, though in 
actuality we do experience some losses.  As with special assessments for demolition or clean-up costs 
unpaid utilities liens could potentially fall victim to the tax sale process if the property goes into tax 
foreclosure.   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Delinquent Utilities to Tax List
Tuesday, March 26, 2024
Service Address Owner Name Customer Name Parcel # Delq Utility Penalty Total 

Amount
422 ABBOTT ST LUDINGTON, ANNIE HARRIS ALISSA 050-140-001-001-00 $22.46 $2.25 $24.71
1018 ADA ST IRR SMITH, GARY SMITH, GARY 050-510-000-022-00 $301.44 $30.14 $331.58
521 ADAMS ST CLEARWATER ENTERPRISES, LLC MCANDREW ROXIE M 050-250-036-003-00 $142.91 $14.29 $157.20
626 ALGER AV LAMROUEX, ASHLEY & PARKER, CAROL CHAPMAN RYAN 050-010-017-035-00 $385.34 $38.53 $423.87
848 ALGER AV THOMAS, EDWARD THOMAS EDWARD 050-010-002-026-00 $328.61 $32.86 $361.47
820 BEEHLER ST LABRANCHE, DAVID J & JUDITH LABRANCHE DAVID 050-660-006-016-00 $384.41 $38.44 $422.85
424 CASS ST AVITTS, DEBORAH AVITTS DEBORAH 050-651-000-015-00 $218.18 $21.82 $240.00
425 CASS ST MCNINCH, ROBERT C II MCNINCH ROBERT II 050-651-009-006-00 $549.55 $54.95 $604.50
704 N CHIPMAN ST HICKS, CHRISTOPHER J CONKLIN JACOB 050-690-000-028-00 $225.91 $22.59 $248.50
221 S CHIPMAN ST MINCY, CRAIG ANTHONY JACKSON LOIS 050-100-001-015-00 $562.58 $56.26 $618.84
300 S CHIPMAN ST HOENICKE, RAYMOND & SHARON HOENICKE RAYMOND 050-623-000-003-00 $88.74 $8.87 $97.61
309 S CHIPMAN ST WALLEN INVESTMENTS MICHIGAN, LLC WALLEN INVESTMENTS MI INC 050-100-002-004-00 $90.63 $9.06 $99.69
309 S CHIPMAN ST WALLEN INVESTMENTS MICHIGAN, LLC WALLEN INVESTMENTS 050-100-002-004-00 $30.27 $3.03 $33.30
421 CLINTON ST SCHMITTER, NICHOLAS SCHMITTER NICHOLAS 050-651-003-010-00 $501.94 $50.19 $552.13
510 CLYDE ST WELLS FARGO BANK VANSTRATE AMY 050-270-000-133-00 $291.63 $29.16 $320.79
540 E COMSTOCK ST DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST BRYAN SANDRA/MCCARTY LEON 050-180-003-001-00 $391.79 $39.18 $430.97
839 E COMSTOCK ST VANHORN, DEBRA VANHORN DEBRA 050-580-000-077-00 $471.94 $47.19 $519.13
214 CORUNNA AV APT 2 MILLER, DAVID J TRUST STREET POTTER ANGEL 050-651-022-009-00 $245.35 $24.53 $269.88
306 CORUNNA AV RESSEGUIE, MIKE W BLACKER JOSH 050-651-022-004-00 $122.14 $12.21 $134.35
980 CORUNNA AV SPALENY, LAWRENCE & TIA UNDERWOOD JR THEODORE 050-010-022-003-00 $274.45 $27.44 $301.89
718 N DEWEY ST HOWARD, CHANCE & FOSTER, REBECCA ROMANCZUK CHELSIE 050-140-003-001-00 $114.63 $11.46 $126.09
804 N DEWEY ST WOOD, EARL WOOD EARL 050-140-003-005-00 $268.74 $26.87 $295.61
755 DIVISION ST SWARTHOUT, TINA SWARTHOUT TINA 050-420-005-009-00 $503.71 $50.37 $554.08
808 DIVISION ST ELLIOTT, LAWRENCE D & CAROLYN J ELLIOTT CAROLYN 050-652-008-004-00 $471.94 $47.19 $519.13
426 E EXCHANGE ST ADKINS, JAMES & BETTY ADKINS JAMES D 050-666-000-015-00 $283.01 $28.30 $311.31
503 E EXCHANGE ST AESCHLIMAN, BAYLEE AESCHLIMAN BAYLEE 050-666-000-029-00 $152.14 $15.21 $167.35
508 E EXCHANGE ST RUSSELL, ROBERT FOSTER CHARLES 050-666-000-038-00 $501.66 $50.17 $551.83
303 GENESEE ST GUTTING, JAMES L LUNA TERRY 050-651-006-012-00 $91.74 $9.17 $100.91
305 GENESEE ST KOPASZ, LAWRENCE BLACKOUT CONSTRUCTION LLC 050-651-006-011-00 $471.94 $47.19 $519.13
615 GLENWOOD AV SELBIG, STEVEN & TONI C SELBIG STEVEN 050-010-015-014-00 $423.28 $42.33 $465.61
667 GLENWOOD AV GILLIAM, HARLAN A GILLIAM HARLAND 050-010-015-001-00 $471.94 $47.19 $519.13
201.5 GOODHUE ST SVARC, DAREN KRYS MATTHEW 050-240-003-001-00 $147.64 $14.76 $162.40
811 GRACE ST EHLERT, WILLIAM L & WHITNEY D BAILEY SHIRLEY 050-622-003-007-00 $692.39 $69.24 $761.63
617 GRAND AV FURR, LARRY & SUSAN FURR SUSAN 050-420-003-004-00 $298.74 $29.87 $328.61



731 GRAND AV JENKINS, CHRISTOPHER M JENKINS CHRISTOPHER 050-420-006-009-00 $181.81 $18.18 $199.99
524 HARRISON AV LARRIVEY, ROBERTO HADDIX JANET 050-010-024-008-00 $227.64 $22.76 $250.40
643 N HICKORY ST SCHUTT, NICHOLAS SCHUTT NICHOLAS 050-240-002-019-00 $201.31 $20.13 $221.44
917 N HICKORY ST BLANKS, CHERYL A BLANKS CHERYL 050-460-003-001-00 $471.94 $47.19 $519.13
817 ISHAM ST LEE, THOMAS E LEE THOMAS 050-602-004-006-00 $471.94 $47.19 $519.13
916 E KING ST CANZE, CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN CHRISTOPHER 050-020-000-005-00 $152.14 $15.21 $167.35
115 W KING ST APT B SHATTUCK, MAURICE B JR & JENNIFER SHATTUCK MAURICE 050-640-033-001-00 $69.96 $7.00 $76.96
412 E MAIN ST EDEN PRAIRIE RES CARE SVCS, LLC VANNOORD, JESSE 050-542-000-005-00 $538.00 $53.80 $591.80
908 W MAIN ST MOSKAL, PHILIP MOSKAL, PHILIP 050-660-015-006-00 $377.91 $37.79 $415.70
1205 W MAIN ST PRINCE, TROY O MICHIGAN AUTO PLAZA 050-113-014-001-00 $385.34 $38.53 $423.87
1500 MCMILLAN AV LEAF RELEAF LABS, LLC LEAF RELEAF LABS 050-553-000-008-00 $581.56 $58.16 $639.72
312 S OAK ST MCCURDY, KARLA & MICHAEL MCCURDY KARLA 050-180-005-007-00 $471.94 $47.19 $519.13
316 OAKWOOD AV DSV SPV3, LLC COMBS JUSTIN 050-580-000-054-00 $2,020.15 $202.01 $2,222.16
1000 W OLIVER ST STUART, GUY IV STUART III GUY 050-670-004-011-00 $201.38 $20.14 $221.52
1217 PEARCE ST WEINERT, GREGORY M & JOANN WEINERT GREGORY 050-270-000-080-00 $165.27 $16.53 $181.80
414 N SAGINAW ST ROCKWELL, CYNTHIA LALONDE WANDA 050-470-008-006-00 $81.69 $8.17 $89.86
621 N SAGINAW ST ROY, LAURIE ROY LAURIE 050-240-003-006-00 $455.57 $45.56 $501.13
1145 S SHIAWASSEE ST MOLNAR, GARY RULE ERIC 050-115-002-018-00 $19.72 $1.97 $21.69
1149 S SHIAWASSEE ST LAWSON, THOMAS J LAWSON THOMAS 050-115-002-019-00 $203.41 $20.34 $223.75
1408 W STEWART ST CRAYNE, JUSTIN & EVA BISHOP GREGORY 050-113-010-004-00 $19.99 $2.00 $21.99
1015 S WASHINGTON ST CROWE PROPERTIES, LLC YAKLIN TRAVIS 050-652-011-012-00 $201.54 $20.15 $221.69
647 N WATER ST SIMPLEX PROPERTIES, LLC LIGHTHILL BLAYZE 050-470-035-004-00 $39.26 $3.93 $43.19
1220 N WATER ST FOOTE, DEBORAH & EDITH FOOTE DEBORAH 050-390-005-007-00 $370.38 $37.04 $407.42
321 E WILLIAMS ST LAWSON, TIMOTHY P LAWSON TIMOTHY 050-470-008-010-00 $535.02 $53.50 $588.52

Totals: $18,968.64 $1,896.78 $20,865.42


	AGENDA
	Virtual Viewing Link
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	Minutes of March 18, 2024

	PROCLAMATIONS/SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	1. Parkinson's Awareness Month 
	2. Promotional Ceremony - Fire Department Employees

	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	1. Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate - 344 West Main Street
	2. Proposed Brownfield Plan #23

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Set Public Hearing-Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate-300 West Main Street
	2. MDOT Local Street Inventory-Decertification of Division Street
	3. MI-HOPE Grant - Additional Funds Acceptance
	4. Bid Award - MI-HOPE Grant Project
	5. Professional Services Agreement-CIS James Miner Connection Project-Engineering Services
	6. Contract Authorization-Ambulance Services to Rush Township
	7. Bid Award-Woodland Trails Sanitary Sewer Repair Project
	8. Bid Award - 2024 Street Light Project - Materials Purchase
	9. Bid Award - 2024 Streetlight Project- Installation
	10. Purchase Authorization - John Deere 325G Compact Track Loader
	11. Purchase Authorization-Ferric Chloride
	12. Purchase Authorization - Sodium Hypochlorite
	13. Purchase Authorization - Bulk Lime

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1. Blight Grant Agreement-117 West Exchange Street
	2. Woodland Trails Development Agreement
	3. Proposed Property Sale-Twenty-One Day Posting
	4. Consumers Energy Electric Facilities Easement-Armory Parking Lot
	5. Parks and Recreation Millage Request
	6. Unpaid Utility Charges

	COMMUNICATIONS
	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



